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BOARD’S REPORT
To,
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure In presenting their 35*" Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company and the accounts for the Financlal Year ended March 31, 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

A summary of the comparative financlal results (Standalone and Consolldated) for the Financial Year 2022-23
and 2021-22 is glven below:

(In Rs Lakhs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 | 2021-22
Sales/Income/Revenue from Operations 2,55,542.49 | 2,01,310.16 | 2,55,516.66 | 2,01,308.35
_Other Income 1,495.18 1,169.52 1,111.16 1,117.66
| Total Income 2,57,037.67 | 2,02,479.68 | 2,56,627.82 | 2,02,426.01
Total Expenditure 2,38,757.86 | 1,90,573.39 | 2,39,063.04 | 1,90,599.43
Profit/(Loss) Before Extraordinary items 18,279.81 11,906.29 17,564.78 11,826.58
and Tax
Exceptional Items - Profit/{Loss| -— -- -- -
Share of Net Profit (Loss) of Joint Venture - - {589.21) (527.50)
Less: Provision for Taxation
-Current Tax 4,851.05 3,168.18 4851.05 3,168.18
-Deferred Tax (177.11) (120.99) (177.11) (120.99)
-Mat Credit Entitlement - - - -
-Previous Year Tax Adjustment 6.63 | (13.97) | 6.63 (13.97) |
Profit After Tax 13509.24 | 8873.07 | 12,29500|  8,265.86 |

STANDALONE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, on standalone basis, revenue from operations stood at Rs. 2,55,542.49 Lakhs
as agalnst Rs. 2,01,310.16 Lakhs in the previous year. The total income stood at Rs. 2,57,037.67 Lakhs as
against Rs, 2,02,479.68 Lakhs In the previous year. The profit before tax (before exceptional items) stood at
Rs. 18,279.81 Lakhs as against Rs. 11,906.29 Lakhs in the previous year. The profit after tax (after exceptional
items) stood at Rs. 13,599.24 Lakhs as agalnst Rs. 8,873.07 Lakhs In the previous year.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL PERFO RMANCE

During the year under review, on consolidated basis, revenue from operations stood at Rs. 2,55,516.66 Lakhs
as against Rs. 2,01,308.35 Lakhs in the previous year. The total income stood at Rs. 2,56,627.82 Lakhs as
against Rs. 2,02,426.01 Lakhs In the previous year. The profit before tax (before exceptional items) stood at
Rs. 17,564.78 Lakhs as against Rs. 11,826.58 Lakhs In the previous year. The profit after tax (after exceptional
items) stood at Rs. 12,295.00 Lakhs as against Rs. 8,265.86 Lakhs in the previous year.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Your Company’s plant/s were operating smoothly and no major breakdown was reported.
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CHANGE IN THE STATUS OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the approval of the Shareholders of the Company
applied for change in the status of the Company from a private company limited by shares to a public
company limited by shares with the Registrar of Companies {‘RoC')/MInistry of Corporate Affalrs, NCT of
Delhi & Haryana. Pursuant to which the RoC vide SRN F56301740 dated 06 January 2023 issued Fresh
Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon the change in the status of the Company from Private
Company to Public Company, resulting Into the change in the name of the Company from ASK Automotive
Private Limited to ASK Automotive Limited.

CREDIT RATING

As on 31 March, 2023, the long-term rating of the Company by Credit Rating Agency CRISIL Is AA- and short-
term rating is Al+.

BUY BACK

Pursuant to the proposal of the Board of Directors of the Company on 24 September 2022 and subsequent
approval of the shareholders of the Company as on 26 September 2022, your Company concluded the
buyback of 37,50,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/- each at a price of Rs. 240/- per equity share, for an
aggregate amount of Rs. 90,00,00,000 (excluding buyback tax), In September 2022, resulting in reduction of
the paid-up Share Capital of the Company to 19,71,42,600 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each.

The buyback offer was made to all existing shareholders of the Company as on 26 September 2022, recard
date belng 24 September 2022 for the purpose, but only one shareholder i.e. Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathee
tendered his shares, pursuant to which buyback was carried in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company Is Rs. 45,00,00,000 as on 31 March 2023 comprising
22,50,00,000 equity shares of 2 each. During the financial year 2022-23, your Company extinguished
37,50,000 equlty shares (physically destroyed equity share certificate} consequent to buyback in September
2022 and which resulted Into reduction in the paid-up equity share capital by Rs. 75,00,000. Consequently,
the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as of 31 March 2023 stood at Rs. 39,42,85,200 consisting of
19,71,42,600 equity shares of Rs. 2/- each.

MATERIAL CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY. AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the
end of the financial year to which these financlal statements relate and the date of this report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserves for the Financial Year ended on 31
March 2023. However, the Company has transferred Rs. 75,00,000 to the Capital Redemption Reserve. The
Balance of Other Equity stands at Rs. 651,05,76,000.

DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year ended on 31 March 2023.
There were no unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on 31 March 2023,



ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3){a) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the Annual
Return as on 31 March 2023, will be available on the Company’s website at www.askbrake.com.

REPORT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company has a Joint Venture, ASK Fras-Le Friction Private Limited, ventured with Fras-Le SA, Brazil and a
Wholly Owned Subsidiary named ASK Automoblles Private Limited.

There is no Company that has become or ceased to be the loint venture, Wholly Owned Subsidiary or
Associate Company of the Company during the year under review.

The highlights of performance and flnanclal position of Wholly Owned Subsidiary & Joint Venture of the
Company is provided in Form AOC-1 which is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE-1 to this Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and prescribed Indian Accounting Standard on
consolidated Financial Statements, the audited consolidated Financial Statements are provided In the Annual
Report.

THE DETAILS !N RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

internal Financial Controls, forming part of Internal Control Framework, are adequate and operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

During the year under review, no material observation has been received from the Statutory Auditors of the
Company on the inefficlency or inadequacy of such controls.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS [‘BOARD} & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL [‘KMP’) AND
CHANGES AMONG THEM DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW. INCLUDING. CHANGES WHICH HAVE
OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO THE DATE OF THE REPORT

The Composition of the Board & KMP, are as follows:

' S. | NAME OF DIRECTOR DIN/PAN DESIGNATION DATE OF | DATE OF
| NO. APPOINTMENT LCESSATION
1. | Mr. Kuldip Singh 00041032 | Chairman and 18-01-1988 N.A.
Rathee Managing Director
2. | Mrs. Vijay Rathee 00042731 | Director* | 26-10-1995 N.A.
3. | Mr. Prashant Rathee 00041081 | Whole Time Director* 27-04-2018 N.A.
4. | Mr. Aman Rathee 00041130 | Whole Time Director* | 27-04-2018 N.A.
5. | Mr. Rajesh Katarla 08528643 | Whole Time Director* | 07-09-2019 N.A.
6. | Mr. Kumaresh Chandra | 00388546 | Independent Director® | 01-04-2023 N.A.
Misra
7. | Ms. Deepti Sehgal 09772630 | Independent Director* | 01-04-2023 N.A.
8. | Mr. Arun Duggal 00024262 | Independent Director® | 01-05-2023 N.A.
9. | Mr. Yozesh Kapur 00070038 | Independent Director* | 01-05-2023 | N.A,
m Mr. Vinay Kumar 07721040 | Independent Director | 01-05-2023 [ N.A.




_'_I_Piparsania
_11. | Mr. Naresh Kumar | ANNPK2542H| Chief Financlal Officer | 28-03-2023 N.A.
| 12. | Ms. Rajani Sharma | AUAPS9561Q, Company Secretary | 01-04-2018 N.A.

¥ under Non-Executive category
* belng designated as Executive Director

During the year under review, followlng changes have taken place In the Key Managerial Personnel {"KMP’)
of the Company:
- Board in their meeting held on 28 March 2023 approved the following changes:
e Mr. Naresh Kumar, Chief Financial Officer {“CFO’) was appointed as CFO & KMP of the Company.
e Ms. Rajani Sharma, Company Secretary was appointed as Compliance Officer of the Company and
further re-designated as Vice President (Legal) and Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the
Company.

During and after the closure of financlal year 2022-23, the followlng changes have taken place In the Board
of the Company:
- Board in their meeting held on 28 March 2023 proposed the following changes, which was approved by the
Shareholders In their meeting held on 05 April 2023:
©  Mr. Kumaresh Chandra Misra and Ms. Deepti Sehgal, were appointed as Independent Director in the
Non-Executlve Category for a period of 3 years w.e.f 01 April 2023.

- Board In their meeting held on 29 April 2023 proposed the following changes, which was approved by the
Shareholders in thelr meeting held on 08 May 2023:
e  Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathee was appointed as Chairman and Managing Director for a period of 5 years
w.e.f 01 May 2023, not liable to retire by rotation.
® Mr. Prashant Rathee, Mr. Aman Rathee & Mr. Rajesh Katarla, Executive Directors were re-appointed
for a period of 5 years w.e.f 01 May 2023, liable to retire by rotation.
© Ms. Vljay Rathee was re-appointed as Director in the Non-Executive Category for a perlod of 5 years
w.e.f 01 May 2023, liable to retire by rotation.
©  Mr. Arun Duggal, Mr. Yogesh Kapur and Mr. Vinay Kumar Piparsania, were appointed as Independent
Directar in the Non-Executive Category for a period of 3 years w.e.f 01 May 2023,

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In compliance with Sectlon 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the act”) read with SEBI (Listing Oblligations
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Independent Directors of the Company have
submitted the declaration(s) that each of them meet the criteria of independence as provided In Section
149(6) of the Act read with sub-rule (1) and sub-rule {2) of Rule 6 of the Companles (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and there has been no change In the clrcumstances which may affect their status as
independent director during the year. in the Board’s opinion, the Independent Directors are persons of high
repute, integrity and possess the relevant proficiency, expertise and experience in their respective fields.

Famillarization Programme for Directors:

The Directors (Independent and Non-Independent) are made to Interact with Senior Management Personnel
and are glven all the documents sought by them for enabling a good understanding of the Company, its
various operations and the industry of which It is a part.

The role, rights, duties and responsibilities of iIndependent Directors have been Incorporated in the Letters of
Appolntment issued to them. The amendments / updates in statutory provisions are informed from time to
time. The information with respect to the nature of industry in which the Company operates and business
model of the Company, etc. Is made known through varlous presentations on operational performance,
strategy, budgets & business forecasts, etc. to the Board.
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FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEE & BOARD

The Board of Directors of the Company finalised the criteria for formal annual evaluation of the Directors,
Board and Its various Committees. However, no formal evaluation of the Directors, Board and its varlous
Committees was done till the date of this Report.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board ensures that a transparent Board nomination process is in place that encourages diversity of
thought, experlence, knowledge, perspective, age and gender. It is ensured that the Board has an
appropriate blend of functlonal and industry expertise.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is in compllance with the Secretarlal Standards on meetings of Board of Directors {$5-1) and
General Meeting (55-2).

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Company follows the prescribed Board procedures and furnishes detailed notes in advance on the
businesses to be dealt with at the Board Meetings. The Board has been meeting regularly ensuring that the
gap between two consecutive meetings does not exceed one hundred and twenty days. Regular meetings of
the Board are held to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies and other businesses.

The notice of Board meeting is given at least 7 days prior to the date of the meeting to all the Directors of the
Company, however, in case of short notice, consents of the Directors are obtalned. The Agenda of the Board
meetings are circulated well in advance prior to the date of the meeting. The Agenda also includes detailed
notes on the items to be discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take an informed decision at the
meeting.

The Company had 14 Board meetings and the attendance of the Directors during the financial year under
review is as follows:

No. of Date of | Name of Director and thelr presence In each Meeting
Meetings | Meeting | Mr. Kuldip Mrs. Vijay Mr. Prashant Mr. Aman Mr. Rajesh
| Singh Rathee Rathee Rathee ___Rathee Kataria
1 09/04/2022 | - - Present Present Present
2. 25/06/2022 Present Present -- - Present
3. 12/08/2022 Present Present Present - Present
4. 25/08/2022 Present Present Present Present Present
5. 24/09/2022 Present - Present Present Present
6. 26/09/2022 Present - Present Present Present
7. 28/09/2022 Present - Present Present Present
8. 30/09/2022 Present Present Present Present Present
9. 06/10/2022 Present Present Present Present Present
10. 07/12/2022 Present Present Present Present Present
11. 20/12/2022 Present - Present Present Present
12. 09/01/2023 Present - Present Present -
13. 04/03/2023 Present Present | Present Present Present
14, 28/03/2023 Present Present |  Present Present Present
Total No. of meetings 13 8 13 : 12 13
ttended by each
irector
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CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTEE(S}

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 29 April, 2023, constituted following committee(s) of the
Board.

(I} AUDIT COMMITTEE*

Audit Committee consists of 4 Independent Directors and 1 Executive Director In the following manner:

S.No. | Name Designation
1. | Mr. Arun Duggal Chairperson
2. | Mr. Yogesh Kapur Member
3, | Mr. Vinay Kumar Piparsania Member
4, | Ms. Deeptl Sehgal Member
5. | Mr. Aman Rathee Member

Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee shall be responsible for, among other things, as may be required by the relevant stock
exchange(s) in India where the equity shares of the Company are proposed to be listed (the “Stock
Exchanges”) from time to time, the following:

Powers of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall have powers, including the following:

(1) toInvestigate any activity within its terms of reference;

{2) toseekinformation from any employee;

{3) to obtaln outside legal or other professional advice; and

(4) tosecure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, If it considers necessary.

Role of Audit Commilttee
The role of the Audit Committee shall include the followIng:

(1) oversight of financial reporting process and the disclosure of financial information relating to the
Company to ensure that the financlal statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

(2) recommendation to the Board for appointment, re-appointment, replacement, remuneration and
terms of appointment of auditors of the Company and the fixation of the audit fee;

(3)  approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

(4) examining and reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:
a. matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included In the

Board’s report in terms of clause {c) of sub-sectlon 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b. changes, if any, In accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
€. major accounting entries Involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
e. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
f. disclosure of any related party transactlions; and
g modifled opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

(5) reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements before
submilssion to the Board for approval;

(6) revlewlng, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other
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(8)

than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the
monitoring agency monitoring the utllisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties and
omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company, subject
to the conditions as may be prescribed ;

Explanation: The term "related party transactions" shall have the same meaning as provided In Clause 2{zc) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations and/or the applicable Accounting Standards and/or the Companies Act, 2013,

(9)

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)

(19)
(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

(24)
(25)

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the
internal control systems;

reviewing the adequacy of Internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the Internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the officlal heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

discussion with Internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon;

reviewIng the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there
is suspected fraud or Irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and
reporting the matter to the Board;

discusslon with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

looking into the reasons for substantial defaults In the payment to depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (In case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

monitoring the end use of funds through public offers and related matters;

overseelng the vigil mechanism established by the Company, with the chairman of the Audit
Committee directly hearing grievances of victimization of employees and directors, who used vigil
mechanism to report genulne concerns in appropriate and exceptional cases;

approval of appointment of chief financial officer (i.e., the whole-time finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances from/investment by the holding company In the
subsidiary exceeding Rs. 1,000,000,000 or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower
including existing loans/ advances/ Investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this
provision; and

considering and commenting on ratlonale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes Involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders;

approving the key performance Indicators for disclosure in the offer documents; and

carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Audit Committee as may be decided
by the Board and/or as provided under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations or any
other applicable law, as and when amended from time to time.

* No Committee(s) meetings happened, as the constitution was done after end of Financial Year 2022-23.

(1) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE*

Nominatlon & Remuneration Committee consists of 3 Independent Directors in the following manner:

S. No. Name Deslkznation
1 Mr. Kumaresh Chandra Misra Chairperson
2. | Mr. Arun Duggal Member




' 3, [ Mr. Yogesh Kapur | Member

Terms of Reference for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be responsible for, among other things, the following:

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or “Board of
Directors”) a policy relating to the remuneratlon of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees (“Remuneration Policy”);
For appointment of an independent directors, evaluation of the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, preparation of a description of the role
and capabllities required of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an independent director shall have the capabllities identified in such description. For
the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee may:
a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;
b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
c.consider the time commitments of the candidates.
Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent directors and the Board;
Devising a policy on Board diversity;
Identifying persons who are qualifled to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal and carrying out evaluation of every director’s performance (including
independent director);
Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent director, on the basis of
the report of performance evaluation of Independent directors;
Recommend to the board, all remuneration, In whatever form, payable to senior management;
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the Remuneration Policy, should
ensure that-
a. the level and composition of remuneration be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;
b. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and
c.remuneration to directors, key managerlal personnel and senior management Involves a balance
between fixed and Incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and Its goals.
perform such functlons as are required to be performed by the compensation committee under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021, as amended, including the following:
a. administering the employee stock option plans of the Company, as may be required;
b. determining the eliglbility of employees to participate under the employee stock option plans of
the Company;
c.granting options to eligible employees and determining the date of grant;
d. determining the number of options to be granted to an employee;
e. determining the exercise price under the employee stock option plans of the Company; and
f. construing and interpreting the employee stock option plans of the Company and any agreements
deflning the rights and obligations of the Company and eligible employees under the employee
stock option plans of the Company, and prescribing, amending and/or rescinding rules and
regulations relating to the administration of the employee stock option plans of the Company.
frame suitable policies, procedures and systems to ensure that there is no violation of securities laws, as
amended from time to time, including:
a. the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; and
b. the Securities and Exchange Board of Indla (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfalr Trade Practices
Relating to the Securities Market) Regulations, 2003, by the trust, the Company and Its
employees, as applicable.



Carrying out any other activities as may be delegated by the Board and other functions required to be carried
out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as provided under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI
Listing Regulations or any other applicable law, as and when amended from time to time.

* No Committee(s) meetings happened, as the constitution was done after end of Financlal Year 2022-23.

{ili) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE*

Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of 2 Independent Directors and 2 Executive Director in the
following manner:

S. No. Name Designation
1 Mr. Kumaresh Chandra Misra Chalrperson
2, Mr. Arun Duggal Member
3. | Mr. Prashant Rathee Member
4, Mr. Aman Rathee Member

Terms of Reference for the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall be responsible for, among other things, as may be required
under applicable law, the following:

considering and looking into various aspects of interest of shareholders, debenture holders and other
security holders

resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-recelpt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.;

formulation of procedures In line with the statutory guidelines to ensure speedy disposal of varlous
requests recelved from shareholders from time to time;

giving effect to allotment of Equity Shares, approval of transfer or transmission of Equity Shares,
debentures or any other securitles;

Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/consolidation/renewal, etc.;

review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services
being rendered by the registrar & share transfer agent;

to dematerialize or rematerialize the issued shares;

review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices
by the shareholders of the company; and

Carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee as
contained in the SEBI Listing Regulations or any other applicable law, as and when amended from time to
time.

* No Committee(s) meetings happened, as the constitution was done after end of Financial Year 2022-23,

{li1) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE*

Risk Management Committee consists of 3 Independent Directors and 2 Executive Director in the following
manner;

S. No. Name Designation
" | Mr. Yogesh Kapur - Chalrperson
2 Mr. Vinay Kumar Piparsania Member
3. Mr. Kumaresh Chandra Misra Member




4, Mr. Prashant Rathee | Member |
5. | Mr. Aman Rathee | Member |

Role and responsibility of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

o  Formulation of a detailed risk management policy which shall Include: {a) a framework for identification
of internal and external risks specifically faced by the listed entity, in particular including financial,
operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber security risks or
any other risk as may be determined by the Risk Management Commlittee; (b} measures for risk
mitigation including systems and processes for Internal control of identified risks; and {c) business
continuity plan;

o  Ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks
associated with the business of the Company;

e  Monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy
of risk management systems;

o  Periodically review the risk management policy, at least once In two years, including by considering the
changing Industry dynamics and evolving complexity, and recommend for any amendment or
modification thereof, as necessary;

o  Keep the Board of directors of the Company informed about the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken; and

e  Review the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief risk officer (if any).

o Tolimplement and monltor policles and/or processes for ensuring cyber security;

Any other similar or other functions as may be laid down by Board from time to time and/or as may be

required under applicable law, as and when amended from time to time, including the SEBI Listing

Regulations.

* No Committee{s) meetings happened, as the constitution was done after end of Financial Year 2022-23.
AUDITORS

The shareholders of the Company at their 34*" Annual General Meeting (AGM) had approved re-appointment
of M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No, 001076N/N500013) (‘WC’) as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company, for the next term (second & final) of five years i.e. from the conclusion of
34 AGM till the conclusion of 39t AGM of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REPORY

The Auditors Report doesn’t contaln any quallfication, reservation or adverse remark. The Auditors Report is
attached with the financial statements in the Annual Report.

During the year, the Auditors have not reported any matter under Section 143{(12) of the Companies Act,
2013, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3) (ca) of the Act.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Companles Act 2013, the Board of Directors In thefr meeting held
on 28 March, 2023, re-appointed M/s Vinod Kumar & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial
Auditor of the Company to conduct the Secretarlal Audit for the Financial Year i.e. 2022-23,

The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 Issued by Secretarial Auditor do
not contain any qualification, reservatlon or adverse remark so need not require any explanation or
comment. A copy of the report is annexed with the Annual Report.



INTERNAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 read with Rule 13 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 of the
Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 25 June, 2022, appointed M/s Aneja
Assurance Pvt. Ltd. as Internal Auditor of the Company to conduct the Internal Audit for the Financial Year i.e.
2022-23.

The Internal Audit Report do not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark so need not require
any explanation or comment. A copy of the report is annexed with the Annual Report.

COST ACCOUNTING RECORDS

Though Cost Accounting Records are not applicable to the Company, however, your Company is maintaining
Cost Accounting Records.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR
DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Identification, evaluation, control, minimisation and mitigation forms an integral part of the Company’s
plans and procedures. Your Company has a Risk Management Mechanism in place which persistently aims to
identify and evaluate risks and to take appropriate steps to control, minimise, manage and mitigate risks.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Details of Loans, Guarantees and investment covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013, continulng for this financial year also, forms part of the Notes to the Financlal Statements provided
in this Annual Report.

During the financial year, the Company provided the following Loans, Guarantees or Investments:

(i) The Company provided fresh corporate guarantee to ASK Automobiles Pvt. Ltd., wholly owned subsldlary,
to cover their facility of Rs. 40,00,00,000, making the total guarantee to Rs. 254,00,00,000.

(i) The Company has Invested an amount of Rs. 12,00,50,000 in ASK Fras-Le Friction Pvt. Ltd., Joint Venture,
for subscription of 1,20,05,000 Equity Shares by way of Rights Issue.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the year under review with
related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basls. During the period under
review, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties
which could be considered material and accordingly, the disclosures in Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable.

The related party disclosures are provided in the Notes to the Financial Statements provided In this Annual
Report.

THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE.

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.



Further, no significant/material penalties have been imposed on the Company by any statutory authority/ies
during the period under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We the Directors of your Company hereby certify that:
l.  Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

Il. We have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

lll. We have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other Irregularitles;

IV. We have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

V. We have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND
DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The ‘Board Diversity Policy’ and ‘Nomination and Remuneration Policy’ were yet to be approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company. Further, the Code of Conduct of the Company provide for the duty of the
Directors.

The aforesaid policies of the Company on directors’ appointment and remuneratlon, Including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters, as required
under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be made avallable on the Company’s
website I.e. www.askbrake.com as and when approved by the Board of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company belleves that the development of employees is one of the most important enablers for an
organization. This is being done at both Individual and team levels. Sustained development of its employees,
both professional and personal, is the hallmark of human resource policies. The Company value its Human
Resources and is committed to ensure employee satisfaction, development and growth. Industrial relations
remained harmonlous.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Investor
Education and Protectlon Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), dividends
of a company which remain unpald or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the
Unpaid Dividend Account shall be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF”).

In terms of the foregolng provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, no dividend remains unpaid/unclaimed for
the past Seven Years hence no amount was required to be transferred to the IEPF by the Company during the
year ended 31 March, 2023,



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to the standards of good Corporate Governance, which emphasis on
transparency, professionalism and accountability with the aim of enhancing long term economic value of all
its stakeholders.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, EXPORTS AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS

AND OUTGO

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

{I) Steps taken or Impact on conservation of energy: -

a) Varlable frequency drive (VFD) Installation for alr compressor and dust collectors.

b) Replacement of Diesel with PNG for melting and heating operations.

c) Installation of energy efficient motors and pumps for cooling tower.

d) Installation of modulator {auto changeover) for alr compressor.

e} Introduction of electric tilting furnace.

f) Interlinking of holding furnace temperature with machine operations.

g) Use of Electric Vehicle fork-lifter Instead of diese!l operated.

h) Recuperator on central melting furnace to utilize hot exhaust air for pre-heating on ingots.

(i) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

a) Renewable energy contributes around 79.00 lakh units approx. (through solar power and wind
power).

b) Replacement of diesel fired burner(s) with gas fired burner(s) having high calorific value and low
pollution.

(iif) Capltal Investment on enersv conservation equipment
The Company has not made any capital investment on energy conservation equipment during the
year under review. However, the Company has made capital investments in replacing high energy
consuming equipment/ machinery/apparatus with low energy consuming equipment/
machinery/apparatus.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

i, Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

(i) The Company is aggressively working towards development of precision parts for light-weighting and
heat management to be used in Electric Vehicles (EV), Internal Combustion Engines (ICE) vehicles, All-
Terraln Vehicles (ATV), power tools, outdoor equipment and defence applications in its state-of the-art
Tool Room & Design Centre.

(1) In Braking Division new and Improved formulations have been developed.

(iii) The Company has installed Equators to enable Its quality control and tracking of high precision critical
components to enhance customer satisfaction by consistent delivery of high-quality products.

(iv) Introduction of jet cooling system on dies to reduce shrinkage porosity and leakage problems.

{(v) Thermal mapping device {camera) installed to monitor and optimise and die temperature.

2. Beneflts derived as a result of the above efforts

() Development of world class quallty products for export and domestic markets.

{li) Readiness for EV transition and light-weighting trends.

(lif) Diversification opportunities In non-automotive space like power tools, outdoor equipments and defence
applications.



3. In case of imported technology (Imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year)

The absorption of technology for Safety Control Cables is under process wherein new products are being
developed.

4. Expenditure Incurred on Research and Development

1) Expenditure on R&D

a. Capital Nil

b. Recurring Rs. 68.15lakh (previous year 62.82 lakh)
c. Total Rs. 68.15lakh (previous year 62.82 lakh)

d. Total R&D expense as % of total turnover/ Sales 0.03% (previous year 0.03%)

2) Future Plan of action

a. Design Centre and Tool Room to develop tools for high precision for light weighting and heat
management systems.

b. Adoption of advanced material englneering in aluminium alloys and braking systems.

€. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTFLOW

1) Exports:

a) Actlvities relating to exports:

Your Company is exporting Its Braking and Aluminium light-welghting precision solutions In Automotive
Segment and has also started exporting in Non-Automotlve Segment also.

b) Export Plans:

The Company plans to add further export destinations and to add further products/solution offerings to the
existing customers during the next financial year 2022-23.

2) Total Foreign Exchange used and earned:

a) Forelgn Exchange used Rs. 4565.08 Lakhs (Last Year - Rs. 5020.86Lakhs)
b) Foreign Exchange earned Rs. 9061.81 Lakhs (Last Year - Rs. 7521.87 Lakhs)
c) Net Foreign Exchange earned (b-a) Rs. 4496.73 Lakhs (Last Year - Rs. 2501.01 Lakhs)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

To comply with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companles Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{Corporate Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the Company has adopted the Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Policy and established the CSR Committee. Moreover, the Company also incorporated a Trust in the
name of ‘AHSAAS’ (‘Trust’) through which the Company undertakes Its CSR activities.

During the year under review, the Company was required to spend an amount of Rs. 275.05 Lakhs for CSR
activities in terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, however, the Company has
spent an amount of Rs. 2,75,05,117 (inciuding allocation of Rs. 60,00,000 for Ongoing Projects), therefore, an
excess amount of Rs. 38,842 was spent. The company have deposited Rs. 60.00 Lakhs in separate CSR
account for ongoing project in the month of April 2023,

Salient features of CSR Policy, are available on Company’s website at www.askbrake.com. An Annual Report
with detailed view on CSR activities Is annexed herewith as ANNEXURE-2.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors In their meeting held on 28 March, 2023, re-constituted
the CSR committee, which now consists of 2 Independent Directors, 1 Non-Executive Director & 1 Executive
Director in the following manner:

S.NO. | NAME DESIGNATION ||
1. | Ms. Deepti Sehgal Chairperson i




' 2. Mr. Kumaresh Chandra Misra Member
3. Ms. Vijay Rathee Member __1I
4. | Mr. Rajesh Kataria Member
VIGIL MECHANISM

Further, the Company to strengthen its vigil Mechanism has adopted Whistle Blower Policy for directors,
employees and other stakeholders of the Company to report genuine concerns.

As part of Whistle Blower Policy, an Ethics Committee has been formed and an Independent third party
service provider has been appointed to receive protected disclosures and share the same with the Ethics
Committee for appropriate resolution.

Whistle Blower Policy provides for (a) adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use the Vigll
Mechanism; and (b) direct access to the Board Member In appropriate or exceptional cases. It Is affirmed
that no personnel has been denled access to the Ethics Committee or the Managing Director of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMU NERATION

The Information required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companles Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of
the Companles {(Appolntment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of
employees of the Company will be provided to members upon request in writing. Any shareholder,
interested, may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE { PREVENTION, PROHIBITION

AND REDRESSAL] ACT, 2013

As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preventlon, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013, your Company has a mechanism in place to redress complaints reported under it.
Internal Complaint Committee (ICC) has also been set up to redress the complaints received of sexual
harassment. In the Financial Year 2022-23, No complaint was received by ICC.

APPRECIATION
The Board acknowledges with gratitude the co-operation and assistance, which has been extended by the

Banks and business associates during the Financial Year under review. The Board also places on records Its
deep appreciation of the services rendered by the employees at all levels.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

FOR ASK AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED FOR ASK AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED
b P

KULDiP . SINGH RATHEE PRASHANT RATHEE

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTCR

DIN: 00041032 DIN: 00041081

DATE: 16-05-2023

PLACE:GURUGRAM



5.

ANNEXURE 1

Form AOC-1

{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing sallent features of the financlal statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

For the financial year ended 31* March, 2023

PART A SUBSIDIARIES

{Rs. In Lakhs)

' $l. No.| Name of the Subsidiary

Reporting perlod for the subsidiary eoneernecT, if different from the holding

ASK AUTOMOBILES PVT. LTD.

b | company's reportingperiod et
2 Reporting currency snd Exchange rate as on the last date of the reltevant Financial NA
year In the case of forelgn subsidlaries
3. | share Capital(Rs.} 75.00
| 4. | Reserves & Surplus|Rs.) (469.19)
| 5. | Total Assets{Rs. 22808.10
| 6. | Total Liabilities{Rs.] 22808.10
' 7. | Investments NIL
| 8. | Turnover o 4.36
| 9. | Profit|Loss) before taxation (Rs.) (438.94)
| 10. | Provision for taxation NIL
| 11. | Profit[Loss) after taxation (Rs.) |438.94)
| 12. | Proposed Dividend NIL
| 13. | % of shareholding: 100%
PART B ASSOCIATES AND JO!INT VENTU RES
Statement pursuant to Sactlon 129(3) of the Companles Act, 2013 related to Associate Companles and Joint Venturas
{Rs. in Lakhs}
$l. No.| Name of Assoclatas or Joint Ventures ASK FRAS-LE FRICTION PVT. LTD.
1. | Latast audited Balance Sheet Date B 31.03.2023
2. | Shares of Assoclate or Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end
Number 4,31,20,000
Amount of Investment in Assoclatas or Joint Venture 4312.00
Extent of HoldIng {in e rcentage) - 49%
3. | Description of how there Is significant Influence JoInt Venture/Shareholding
4. | Reason why the Associate/Joint Venture is not consolidated Consolidated
5. Net worth attributeble to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 810.95
| 6. Profit or Loss for the year {1202.47)
[ I. Consldered in Consolidation 589,21
il Not Considered in Consolldation {613.26)
NOTES:
1) There were no Assoclates or JoInt Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR ASK AUTOMOTIVE UMITED FOR ASK AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED

KULDIP . SINGH RATHEE PRASHANT RATHEE
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
DIN: 00041032 DIN: 00041081

A P

DATE: 16-05-2023
PLACEGURUGRAM




ANNEXURE3
ASK AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken:

The Company’s CSR Policy enables the Company to undertake all the projects/programs/activities as stipulated in Schedule VIl of the
Companles Act 2013 (the Act). The Company has also Incorporated a trust to undertake Its CSR activities namely AHSAAS (‘Trust’).

During the year under review, the Company was required to spend an amount of Rs. 2,75,05,117 for CSR activitles, however, the Company has
spent an amount of Rs. 2,75,43,959 (including allocation of Rs. 60,00,000 for the below mentioned Ongoing Project [transferred to a separate
Bank Account during the FY 2023-24]) which Is Rs. 38,842 in excess of the required amount.

Further, the Company on approval of the Board, based on the recommendation of the CSR Committee, undertook CSR Project “Establishment
of Vocational Training Centre” at Jhaljar, a multl-year project/ongoing project {‘Ongolng Project’) durlng the FY 2021-22 and accordingly an
amount of Rs. 2,10,00,000 was allocated for the said project, out of which an amount of Rs. 2,09,84,900 was transferred to a separate Bank
Account.

Furthermore, an amount of Rs. 12,50,000 was transferred to a separate Bank Account pertaining to the aforementioned Ongoling Project,
during the FY 2022-23.

Furthermore, the closing balance in separate unspent CSR Account(s) on 31t March, 2023, stands at Rs. 70.30 Lacs**.
During the year under review, the Company has started Phase-2 of the aforesald Ongoing Project, with the approval of the Board which Is
based on the recommendation of the CSR Committee and accordingly an amount of Rs. 60,00,000 was allocated for the said Phase-2 and since

the same remained unspent, so the entire amount has been transferred to a separate Bank Account.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee as on 31* March, 2023 was es follows:

sl. No.| Name of Director Designation / Number of meetings of CSR| Number of meetings of CSR|
Nature of Directorship | Committee held during theyear Committee attended during the year
1. | Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathee Chairman 3 3
2. | Ms. Vijay Rathee | Member 3
3. | Mr. Rajesh Kataria | Member 3

The Board of Directors vide thelr meeting dated 28th March, 2023, re-constituted the CSR Committee as follows:

Sl. No. Name of Director | Deslgnation / Nature of
| Directorshia
1. Ms. Deeptl Sehgal | Chaimerson
2. | Mr. Kumaresh Chandra Misra | Member [
3. Ms. Vijay Rathee Member |
4. Mr. Rajesh Kataria Member |

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Pollcy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website
of the company: https://askbrake.com

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule
8, if applicabie: Not Applicable.

5. (a) Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. 1,37,52,55,870
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs, 2,75,05,117
(<} Surplus arlsing out of the CSR projects or programmes or activitles of the previous financial years: NIL
{d) Amount required to be set off for the financlal year, If any: Not Applicable
{e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [{b}+{c)-{d}]: Rs. 2,75,05,117

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Rs. 2,75,00,685
{b) Amount spent In Administrative Overheads: Rs. 43,274
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, If applicable: Not Applicable
(d) Total amount spent for the Financlal Year [{a)+(b}+{c)]: Rs. 2,75,43,959

Raapei babed -



{e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent B Amount Unspent{inRs)

for the Financlal Total Amount Transferred to Unspent CSR Amount transferred to any fund specifled under Schedule

Year {In Rs.) Account as per Section 135(6) V| as per second proviso to section 135(5}

Amount {In Rs.) Date of transfer Name of the Fund | Amount Date of Transfer
2,15,43,959 60,00,000 29% Aprll, 2023 NA | NA NA
{f) Excess amount for set-off, If any:
Sl. No. Particular Amount|In Lacs]
{1) Two parcent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 2,75,05,117
(i1} Total amount spent for the Financlal Year Rs. 2,75,43,959
(1) Excess amount spent for the financlal year [{1l}-{1}] Rs. 38,842
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if Nil
any 1
v Amount available for set off In succeeding financlal years [|lilj4ivi] Rs. 38,842
7. Detalls of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. | Preceding |Amount Balance Amount Spent In| Amount transferred to any fund Amount remaining to |Deficiency,
No. | Financlal |transferred | Amountin| the Financlal Year | specified under Schedule VIl as per |be spent In succeeding fany
Year to Unspent | Unspent | {inRs) second proviso to section 135 {5), if financial years. {in Rs.)

CSR Account | CSR any.
under Account Amount (InRs). | Date of
section 135 under Transfer
{6) {In Rs.) section
135 (6) {in
Rs.)
1. |2020-21 |2,09,84,900 |2,09,84,900 - -
1,44,21,026 {2021-22) -
6,75,495*%[2022-23| 58,88,379
2. [2021-22 [12,50,000 |12,50,000 - - 12,50,000

b An amount of Rs. 7.84 Lacs was transferred to Ahsaas Trust from CSR Unspent A/c, out of which Rs. 6.76 Lacs was actually spent.

8. Whether any capital assats have been created or acquired through Corporate Soclal Rasponsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No

9. Specify the reason(s), If the company has failled to spend two per cent of the average net proflt as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

FOR ASK AUTOMOTIVE LIMI j

haagd’ BN

DEEPTI SEHGAL

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR/CHAIRMAN CSR COMMITTEE

DIN: 09772630

DATE: 16/05/2023
PLACE: GURUGRAM

FOR ASK AUTOMOTIVE LIMITED

2

RAJESH KATARIA

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly
known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) {‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India
('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

———
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK
Automotive Private Limited) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont’d)

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the maiters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate interna! financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standaione financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK
Automotive Private Limited) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont’d)

reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern; and

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial
statements;

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial

statements of the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK
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respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

vi.

the Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position as
at 31 March 2023;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

- The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

note 46(c) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ('the Ultimate Beneficiaries’)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 46(d) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses iv(a) and iv(b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023; and

Proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software
which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023
and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s-ﬁgistration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Ashish Gera l. k )

Partner
Members

hip No.: 508685

UDIN: 23508685BGYCQS3842 -0 /0~

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and

equipment and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment, right of use assets were verified
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification

(c) Thetitle deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties

where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee) disclosed in note 3 to the standalone financial statements are held in the
name of the Company, except for the following property, for which the Company's
management is in discussion with the relevant authority to get the same registered in the
name of the Company:

Description | Gross Held in name | Whether Period Reason for not being
of property | carrying | of promoter, | held held in name of
value director or company

(T In their
Lakhs) relative or
employee

Land- Plot | 678.93 | Karnataka No From April | Nearing to completion
No.1786, Industrial 2012 for 10 | of lease term, KIADB
Part-1, Area years has demanded
Narsapura Development lease additional ¥ 334.00
Industrial Board period. Lakhs (¥ 83.50 Lakhs
Area, Kolar, (KIADB) Postend of | per acre) as against
Bangalore lease initial price of ¥ 340.00
period, Lakhs (¥ 85.00 Lakhs

land has to | per acre) for

be approximately 4 acres

transferred | land. The company has

in the | filed its  objection

name  of | against ex-parte

the demand of excessive

company. enhancement and

requested KIADB to

review the demand due

to which Land has not

been transferred in

Company's name post

expiry of lease period.

For title deeds of immovable properties in the nature of freehold land situated at Haryana with
gross carrying value of ¥ 7,375.68 lakhs as at 31 March 2023, which have been mortgaged as
security for loans or borrowings taken by the Company, confirmations with respect to title of
the Company have been directly obtained by us from the respective lenders.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

{d) The Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment including Right of use
assets or Intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and no
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed
as compared to book records. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have
substantially been confirmed by the third parties.

{b) As disclosed in note 42 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned a working capital limit in excess of ¥ 5 crore by banks based on the security of
current assets. The quarterly statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed
by the Company with such banks and such statements are in agreement with the books of
account of the Company for the respective periods which were not subject to review, except for
the following:

Name of | Working | Nature of current assets offered as security For Quarter, Information

the Bank / | capital disclosed as per

financial limit statement, Information as

institution | sanction per books of accounts,
ed (T in Difference and Remarks,
Lakhs) if any

HDFC Bank | 2,550.00 | First Pari Passu charge on current assets and | Refer details mentioned in

Limited movable fixed assets of the Company both below table

present and future excluding assets exclusively
financed by term lenders.

Kotak 3,025.00 | First Pari Passu hypothecation charge on all | Refer details mentioned in
Mahindra existing and future current assets and all existing below table

Bank and future movable fixed assets excluding assets

Limited exclusively financed by term lenders.

Axis Bank | 2,500.00 | First Pari Passu hypothecation charge on entire | Refer details mentioned in
Limited current assets and movable fixed assets below table

(excluding assets exclusively financed by term
lenders) both present and future of the Company. )
Citi  Bank | 2,525.00 | First Pari Passu charge on present and future | Refer details mentioned in
N.A. stocks and book debts and first pari passu charge below table

on all movable fixed assets of the Company
except the assets which are exclusively charged
to any lender for term loan facility.

Quarter ended Information Information as | Difference Remarks / reasons, if any
disclosed as per books of (Z In Lakhs)
per statement accounts

| (¥ In Lakhs) (¥ In Lakhs)

Inventories

June-2022 16,044.42 16,044.42 Nil

September-2022 17,123.66 17,123.66 Nil NA

December-2022 15,062.74 15,062.74 Nil

March-2023 15,312.95 15,312.95 Nil
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

Trade Receivables

June-2022 17,148.97 20,531.84 (3,382.87) | The difference is on account .
September-2022 18,140.78 21,379.77 (3238.99) | of  trade  receivables

discounted through sales
December-2022 14,39625 16,95103 (2,55478) invoicediscounting faci“tynot
March-2023 17,092.64 21,062.13 |  (3,069.49) | netted off during quarterly

closure of books of accounts.

Trade Payables

June-2022 21,091.00 21,091.00 Nil
September-2022 21,310.16 21,310.16 Nil NA
December-2022 18,776.17 18,776.17 Nil
March-2023 17,052.20 17,052.20 Nil

(ii) (a) The Company has provided loans to its Subsidiary and Joint Venture and provided guarantee
for loan taken by its Subsidiary during the year as per details given below:

. Guarantees Loans
Particulars (Z in Lakhs) (¥ in Lakhs)
Aggregate amount provided/granted during the year:

- Su'bsidiary 4,000.00 3,115.80

- Joint Venture - -
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date:

- Subsidiary 25,400.00 5,215.90

- Joint Venture 8,350.00 1,066.50

{b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
investments made, guarantees provided and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans
and guarantees provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.
Further, the Company has not given any security or advances in the nature of loans during
the year.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and principal amount is not due for repayment currently,
however, the receipt of the interest is regular.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies, firms, LLPs
or other parties.

(e) The Company has not granted any loan which has fallen due during the year. Further, no
fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans that existed as at the
beginning of the year.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans, which are repayable on demand without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans and investments made
and guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable. Further, the Company has not
entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act.

>
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been
considered as deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act only in respect of specified products of the Company. For
such products, we have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the
Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of
cost records under the aforesaid section, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have
not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have
been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of the | Nature  of | Gross Amount Period to | Forum where
statute dues Amount paid which the | dispute is
(T In | under amount relates | pending
Lakhs) Protest (T In | (Financial
Lakhs) Year)
Income tax Dual 88.47 - 2020-2021 Centralized
Act, 1961 disallowance Processing
of Corporate Centre
social
responsibility
expenses

(viii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted

(b)

(c)

in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations
received from banks and financial institution and representation received from the
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that
the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money
raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

(x)

(xi)

{xii)

(xiii)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(xiv) (a)

(xv)

(b)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the
Company on short term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.
According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary or joint venture.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary or joint venture company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial pubiic offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the
Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Ruie 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our
audit.

The whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year, as shared with us by
the management have been considered by us while determining the nature, timing and extent
of audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related
Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as
prescribed under section 133 of the Act. As disclosed in note 1 to standalone financial
statements (corporate information), the company’s status was converted from Private Limited
to Public Limited on 6 January 2023 on receipt of the revised certificate of incorporation from
the registrar of companies and the Audit Committee under section 177 of the Act was not
constituted until the year end. Audit Committee was constituted subsequently with effect from
29 April 2023.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and
accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(xvii)

{xviii)

(xix)

(xx) (a)

(b)

{(xxi})

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any Core Investment Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge
of the plans of the Board of Directors and management, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amount towards
Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining to other than ongoing projects as at end of the
current financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has transferred the
remaining unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under sub-section
(5) of section 135 of the Act, in respect of ongoing project, within a period of 30 days from the
end of financial year to a special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of
section 135 of the Act.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect
of said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of ASK Automotive
Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
{‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly
known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023,
we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of the
Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Interna! Financial Controls with Reference to
Standalone Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, and
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements include
those policies and procegugegr_m (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly rel’;l’@é 8- 'a’pgactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide

~
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of ASK Automotive
Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standaione financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAL.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fir '-§1§?gistration No.: 001076N/N500013
\ee cE
5 cl-(. 4

Ashish Gera Voo

Partner \

Membership No.: 508685 . =
UDIN: 23508685BGYCQS3842

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023

Chartered Accountants



ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(41l amounts ave in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 44,745.44 46,301.79
Capital work-in-progress 3 652.82 203.73
Right-of-use assets 4A 721.64 1,437.40
Goodwill 4B 18,191.01 18,191.01
Other intangible assets 4C 310.77 418.56
Financial assets
(i) Investments s 4,387.00 3,186.50
(ii) Loans SA 6,015.78 3,166.60
(iii) Other financial assets 6 1,173.92 912.14
Non-current tax assets (net) 7 66.31 495.05
Other non-current assets 8 359.39 25].86
Total non-current assets 76,624.08 74,564.64
Current assets
Inventories 9 15,312.95 12,436.95
Financial assets
(i) Loans SA 266.63 -
(ii) Trade receivables 10 21,062.13 20,116.05
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents I1 110.91 94.59
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12 15.00 26.48
(v) Other financial assets 6 691.00 46.40
Other current assets 8 1,352.25 903.73
Total current assets 38,810.87 33,624.20
Assets held for sale 36 - 106.00
Total assets 115,434.95 108,294.84
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 3,942.85 4,017.85
Other equity 14 65.138.95 62,555.97
Total equity 69,081.80 66,573.82
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 15 6,306.05 4,723.77
(ii) Lease liabilities 16 83.87 810.65
Provisions 17 2,562.25 2,403.34
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 19 2.796.11 2.971.42
Total non-current liabilities 11,748.28 10,909.18
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 10,044.39 5,744.44
(ii) Lease Liabilities 16 658.69 651.63
(iii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21 4,305.35 3,174.96
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 21 12,746.85 14,704.02
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 22 2,187.51 2,094.18
Provisions 17 721.78 554.30
Current tax liabilities (net) 23 281.28 268.87
Other current liabilities 18 3.659.02 3.619.44
Total current liabilities 34,604.87 30,811.84
Total liabilities 46,353.15 41,721.02
Total equity and liabilities 115,434.95 108,294.84

The accompanying notes are an inteytral part of the standalone financial sta (1-50).

This is the standalone balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chaitered Accountants ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Firms {stration No.: 001076N/N500013

™
v O 4 :
QO .\
Wz S ks Doy

&y
Ashish Gera " ip Singh Rathee Prashant Rathee Naresh Kumar Rajani Sharma
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Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023
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ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Income
Revenue from operations 24 255,542.49 201,310.16
Other income 25 1.495.18 1,169.52
Total income 257.037.67 202.479.68
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 26 179,856.45 140,380.75
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 27 (1,655.33) (1,035.42)
Employee benefits expense 28 13,910.38 12,270.21
Finance costs 29 1,085.34 805.19
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 5,978.35 5,582.51
Other expenses 31 40,054.54 32,808.10
Dies for own use (471.87) 1237.95)
Total expenses 238,757.86 190,573.39
Profit before tax 18,279.81 11,906.29
Tax expenses
Current Tax
- Current year 32 4.851.05 3,168.18
- Prior years 32 6.63 (13.97)
Deferred tax 32 (177.11) 1120.99)
Total tax expenses 4.680.57 3.033.22
Profit after tax for the year 13,599.24 8,873.07
Other comprehensive income:
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 7.17 126.61
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 12 (1.80) (31.87)
loss in subsequent years
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 5.37 94.74
Total comprehensive income for the year 13,604.61 8.967.81
Earnings per equity share (INR)
Basic and Diluted 33 6.83 4.39

The accompanving notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements (1-50).

This is the standalone statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Ashish Gera ldip Singh Rathee Prashant Rathee
Partner RES o0 anaging Director Executive Director
Membership No.: 508685 SUACS DIN: 00041032 DIN: 00041081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023
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ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U34300DL19388PLC030342

(Al amounis are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stuted)

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities

B.

Profit before tax 18,279.81 11,906.29
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 5,978.35 5,582.51
Excess liability / provision written back (138.43) (393.11)
Provisicn for doubtful debts 12.12 0.01
Net unrealised profit on foreign currency transaction (18.67) (64.77)
Government grant (284.26) (247.45)
Loss/(Gain) on sale/discarding of property, plant and equipment 28.10 (2.50)
Gain on assets held for sale (6.00) -
Amount written off 20.74 -
Interest income classified as investing cash flow (563.92) (214.23)
Finance cost 1,081.74 792.83
Gain on lease modifications 117.23) 10.261
Operating profit before working capital changes 24,372.35 17,359.32
Movements in working capital :

Change in trade receivables (942.08) (4,193.58)
Change in inventories {2,876.00) (1,168.87)
Change in trade payables (824.23) 2,942.64
Change in financial assets (511.58) (134.66)
Change in other assets (449.59) (221.69)
Change in other financial liabilities 25539 1,311.83
Change in provisions 333.56 279.84
Change in other liabilities 291.17 1,310.50
Cash generated from operations 19.648.99 17.485.33
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 14,435.80) £3.016.86)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A} 15.213.19 14.468.47
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work in progress) (4,689.89) (8.388.12)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 423.05 86.94
Proceeds from assets held for sale 106.00 318.00
Purchase of non current investments (net) (1.200.50) (75.00)
Unsecured Loans given {3,115.80) (2,100.10)
(Purchase)/Redemption of fixed deposits (net) (54.81) 1033
Interest received 235.66 216.06
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (8.296.29) 19.931.89)
Cash flow from financing activities

Movement of short term borrowings (net) 4,617.05 1,414.00
Proceeds from long term borrowings 3,614.00 2,698.84
Repayment of long term borrowings (including current maturities) 12,349.87) (1,635.02)
Principal payment of finance lease liability (refer note 43) (628.91) (587.83)
Interest payment of finance lease liability (refer note 43) (79.18) (128.17)
Interest paid (977.04) (667.94)
Payment for buyback of equity shares (9,000.00) (5,992.50)
Payment of tax on buyback of eyuity shares 12,096.63) 11,396.021
Net cash used in financing activities (C) 16,900.58) 16.294.64)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 16.32 (1,758.06)
Cash and cash equivalents at b ing of the fi ial year 94.59 1,852.65
Cash and cash equi at end of the fi ial year (refer note 11) 110.91 94.59
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows: As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprises of the following :
= Cash on hand

- Balance in current accounts

Bal as per

of cash flows

4.76 5.54
106.15 89.05
110.91 94.59

The standalone statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

The accompany iny notes are an intewral part of the standalone financial statements { 1-50).

This is the standalone statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
irm's {itration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Membership No.: 508685

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023
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Date: 16 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)

DIN: 00041081
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viresh Kumar
Chief Financial Officer

t

Rajani Shdrma
Company Secretary
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ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital*
As at 31 March 2023

Balance as at 1 April 2022 (equity share of INR 2 each)

Changes in equity share capital ]

Balance as at 31 March 2023

4,017.85

(75.00)|

(equity share of INR 2 each

3,942.85

As at 31 March 2022

Balance as at 1 April 2021 (equity share of INR 2 each)

Changes in equity share capital

Balance as at 31 March 2022

(equily share of INR 2 each
4,068.85 | (51.00 4,017.85
* Refer Note No. 13 for details
B. Other Equity”
As at 31 March 2023
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Capital redemption General reserve  Securities premium Reta]ned Total other
reserve earnings nity
As at 1 April 2022 59.00 10.08 94.05 62.392.87 62,555.97
Profit for the year - - - 13,599.24 13,599.24
Other comprehensive income - - - 537 537
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 13,604.61 13,604.61
Less: Transferred to capital redemption reserve (refer note 13 (vii)) 75.00 - - (75.00) -
Less: Buyback of shares (refer note 13 (vii)) - - - (8,925.00) (8,925.00)|
Less: Income tax on buyback of shares - - - (2,096.63) (2,096.63)]
As at 31 March 2023 134.00 10.05 94.05 64,900.85 65,138.95
As at 31 March 2022
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Capital redemption General reserve  Securities premium Retained Total other
reserve earnings edquity
As at 01 April 2021 8.00 10.05 94.05 60,813.58 60,925.68
Profit for the year - - - 8,873.07 8,873.07
Other comprehensive income - - - 94.74 94.74
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 8,967.81 8,967.81
Less: Transferred to capital redemption reserve (refer note 13 (vii)) 51.00 - - {51.00) -
Less: Buyback of shares (refer note 13 (vii)) - - - (5,941.50) (5,941.50)|
Less: Income tax on buyback of shares - - - (1,396.02) (1,396.02)
As at 31 March 2022 59.00 10.05 94.05 62,392.87 62,555.97
For nature and purpose of each reserve refer note 14.1
# refer note 14 for details.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements £ 1-501
This is the standalone statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of standalone financial statements

CIN: U34300DL1988PL.C030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

1.

Corporate Information

ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) (‘the Company’) is a Public
Limited Company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at Flat No. 104, 929/1, Naiwala, Faiz
Road, Karol Bagh, New Delhi-110005. The Company has one wholly owned subsidiary and one Joint Venture
Company in India. The Company was incorporated as a private limited (ASK Automotive Private Limited) on
18 January 1988. The Company during the year passed a special resolution in the extraordinary general meeting
of the shareholders held on 7 December 2022 for conversion to a public limited Company. The Company
received a certificate of incorporation from the Registrar of Companies on 6 January 2023 and was converted
to a public company.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of auto components including advance braking
systems, aluminum light weighting precision solutions and safety control cables primarily for automobile
industry. The Company is supplier to the major leading Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) in India
like Honda, Hero MotoCorp, Bajaj Auto, TVS Motors, Suzuki, Yamaha, Mahindra, Royal Enfield, OLA,
Ather, Revolt, Maruti, Piaggio etc. and having strong presence in secondary market (Independent aftermarket).
The Company has manufacturing facilities in the states of Haryana, Karnataka, Gujarat, Himachal Pradesh and
Uttarakhand.

These standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (reporting date) have been prepared
as per the requirements of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

Basis of preparation
a. Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These standalone financial statements (‘financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘M(CA’) under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘Act’) read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and presentation requirements of Division II of
Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable. The Company
has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized and approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 16 May 2023.

b. Functional and presentation currency
These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (‘INR”), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs upto two place of decimal,
unless otherwise indicated.

¢. Basis of measurement
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in India. The standalone financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Defined benefits (assets)/liability Present value of defined benefits obligations
"l. 'f‘ \
- )
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ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of standalone financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

d.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities on the date of the standalone financial statements. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and future periods. Information about judgments
made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the
standalone financial statements is included in the following notes:

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives
of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility
of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimatc of the DBO is based on underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual
defined benefit expenses.

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based
on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can
be utilized.

Significant judgments

Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheet date, on the basis of the management judgment, changes in
facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of disclosure against the outstanding
contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Classification of leases — The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various premises. The
assessment (including measurement) of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not limited to,
transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to extend/terminate etc. After the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to extend
or to terminate.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework with
respect to measurement of fair values. This includes treasury division which is responsible for overseeing all
significant fair valweomeasurements, including Level 3 fair values, and report directly to chief financial
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ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of standalone financial statements (continued)

CIN:

U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

2A.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the changes have occurred.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Current-non-current classification

(b)

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current,

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the normal operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;

c) itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as
non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. Terms of a lability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilitics include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified
as non-current.

Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of

classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of standalone financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PL.C030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

ii,. Mecasurement at reporting date

(©)

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non- monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences on restatement/ settlement of all monetary items are recognized in the standalone statement of
profit and loss.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs,
except for those carried at fair value through Profit and Loss which are measured initially at fair value.
However, trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant
financing components.

. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost; or
fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL.

Investment in equity instrument are classified at fair value through profit or loss, unless the Company
irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Company does not have any fixed
liabilities under the category of FVTPL,

R




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automoetive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of standalone financial statements (continned)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

iii. Derecognition

i

(@

©

Financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expire. The Company also de-recognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in statement of profit
and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

Equity Investment in subsidiary and joint venture

Investments in equity instruments of joint venture and subsidiary company are accounted for at cost less any
provision for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial Statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Freehold Land is carried at cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at
cost of acquisition or construction which includes capitalized borrowing cost. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable purchase
taxes or levies, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use
and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. After initial recognition, items of
property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and / or accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labor, any other costs directly attributable / allocable to bring the item to working condition for its intended
use.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains or losses-arising on sale/disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the
standalong §tatement T profit and loss.
/
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ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of standalone financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PL.C030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

ii.

i,

Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended use at the
reporting date.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method based on the
estimated useful life of each asset as determined by the management. Depreciation is charged over the number
of shift a plant or equipment is used in the business in accordance with schedule II of the Companies Act.
Depreciation for assets purchased during the year is proportionately charged i.e. from the date on which asset
i1s ready for use. Depreciation for assets sold during the year is proportionately charged i.e. up to the date on
which asset is disposed off.

The useful lives have been determined based on internal evaluation done by management and are in line with
the estimated useful lives, to the extent prescribed by the Schedule II of the Companies Act.

Life in Years

Buildings 30
Plant and machinery 15 to 20
Electrical installations 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipments 5
Vehicles 8

Dies and Moulds 7to 10
Computers 3

Based on internal valuation done by the management, Hangers and trollies are depreciated at year end based
on the physical availability of respective assets.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Modification or extension to an existing asset, which is of capital nature, and which becomes an integral part
thereof is depreciated prospectively over the remaining useful life of that asset.

() Goodwill

()

Represents amounts paid over the identifiable assets towards Business Takeover transaction is carried forward
based on assessment of benefits arising from such goodwill in future. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually at each balance sheet date in accordance with the Company’s procedure for determining the
recoverable amount of such assets. The recoverable amount of Cash Generating Unit (CGU) is based on value
in use. The value in use for Goodwill is determined based on discounted cash flow projections.

Other Intangible Assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment loss. P (PN
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Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Distribution network
Represents allocation of amounts paid towards Business Takeover transaction is carried forward based on
assessment of benefits arising from such network in future. Such expenditure is amortised on period of ten

years on straight line basis.

The above periods also represent the management’s estimation of economic useful life of the respective
intangible assets.

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Amortisation

Technical know-how is being amortised over a period of seven years on a straight line basis.

Computer software is being amortised over a period of six years on a straight line basis.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise of raw material, work in progress, finished goods, packing material and stores
and spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

The basis of determining costs for various categories of inventories are as follows: -

Raw materials, components, stores and spares, - Weighted Average Method

Packing material, Loose Tools, gauges and

instruments

Work-in-progress and finished goods - Material cost plus appropriate proportion of

labour, manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related
finished goods. Raw materials held for use in production of finished goods are not written down below cost,
except in cases where material prices have declined, and it is estimated that the cost of the finished goods
will exceed its net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-
item basis.

Non-current assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Such non-current assets classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any expected loss is
recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The criteria for held for sale classification is
regarded as met only.-when the assets is available for immediate sale in its present conditio ; nly to
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terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be
sold. The Company treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when:

i. The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset;

ii.An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable);

iii. The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value;

iv. The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification, and

v.Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the
consolidated balance sheet.

(j) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business and reflects Company’s unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only
on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not
contain significant financing components. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less loss allowance.

Transfer of Financial Assets

The Company transfers certain trade receivables under invoice discounting arrangements. These do not
qualify for derecognition, due to existence of the recourse arrangement. Consequently the proceeds received
from such transfers with recourse arrangements are recorded as loans from banks / financial institutions and
classified under short-term borrowings.

(k) Impairment of assets
Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no
significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets
are measured at lifctime ECL. The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using
ECL model, are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is
indication of any impairment. If any indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Assets that do not generate independent cash flows are grouped together into cash generating units
(CGU). An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is determined:

i in case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and

ii. in case of-a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash
flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in
N\
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(The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount
rate (pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the respective company
suitably adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset). For this purpose, a cash
generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

Impairment losses are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or services provided to the Company prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest rate method. Borrowings are de-recognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus, etc. The undiscounted amount of short-
term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognised as an expense in
standalone statement of profit and loss as the related service is rendered by employces.

ii) Other long-term employee benefits:

Other long-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the standalone statement of profit and
loss as and when they accrue. The Company determines the liability using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
with actuarial valuations carried out as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses in respect of such
benefits are charged to the standalone statement of profit and loss.

iti) Post employment obligations
a. Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company makes payments to defined contribution plans such as provident fund and employees’ state
insurance. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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b. Defined Benefit Plans:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the standalone statement
of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included
in retained earnings in the standalone statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments
are recognised immediately in profit and loss as past service cost.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made..

However, Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is
tax collected on value added to the commodity or supplies made by the seller on behalf of the government.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as follows:
Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods and there are no unfulfilled obligations. Revenue is measured
based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, service level credits,
performance bonuses, price concessions, staggered discount on early payments and incentives, if any, as
specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Sale of services

The Company recognizes revenue from sales of services over time, because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company. Revenue from services provided is recognised
upon rendennggaﬂ\tfhe services, in accordance with the agreed terms with the customers where ultimate
collection of t reve-rﬁm\-nl reasonably expected.
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Other operating revenue

All export benefits under various policies of Government of India are recognised on accrual basis when no
significant uncertainties as to the amount of consideration that would be derived and as to its ultimate
collection exist.

Other income
Interest income is recognised on accrual basis using the effective interest method.
Contract assets

Contract assets is right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer and
performance obligation satisfied. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional, in the nature of unbilled receivables. Upon completion of the attached
condition and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade
receivables upon invoicing. A receivables represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that
is unconditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer or has raised the invoice in
advance. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.c., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Government grants

Government grants related to property, plant and equipment are included in the non-current liabilities as
deferred government grant and are credited to Profit and loss on the basis of fulfillment of export obligation
and presented within other income in accordance with the primary conditions associated with purchase of
assets and related grants.

Export benefit entitlements are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss when the right to
receive benefit is established in respect of the exports made and the realisation is reasonably certain.

Leases

A lease is defined as “a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of leases

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on
several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s
option to extend/purchase etc.

Recognition and initial measurement
At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance
sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove
the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement
date (net of any incentives received).

f £ {/—__ x\\'-.
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Subsequent measurement

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily
available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate (IBR). Lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable
payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for
payments made and increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if
there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of
recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an
expense in standalone statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its IBR to
measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay for last long-
term funds raised.

Income-tax

Tax expense recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and
current tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax assets on unrealised tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss
will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of futurc
operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of
any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside standalone
statement of profit and loss is recognised outside standalone statement of profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares
outstanding during the year end, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.
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Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be
estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed. Contingent assets are
neither recognised nor disclosed in the standalone financial statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and
related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

(w) Borrowing cost

(x)

)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition, construction or erection of qualifying assets are
capitalised. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the year
in which they are incurred.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange
rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank. Apart from this
derivatives are used as short term investment instruments as a treasury management function.

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognized in net profit
in the standalone statement of profit and loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, the derivatives are measured
at fair value through standalone statement of profit and loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are
included in other income.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 31 March 2023, MCA
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

a) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the cntities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant
to the standalone financial statements.

b) Ind AS & - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8
to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company has
evaluated the gmegdihcﬂi‘_aqd there is no impact on its standalone financial statements.

4 . ¥

(
Z NEW DELH| 2
\’
N




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of standalone financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

¢) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of
this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of standalone financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

3 Property. plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress {continued)

3.6 Assets classified as held for sale

The Company was allotted plot no. GH-33 situated at Sector-1, IMT Manesar, Gurugram, by Haryana State Industrial and Infrastructure Development
Corporation ("HSIIDC") vide RLA no. HSIIDC/CGHS/Manesar/2007/599-600 dated 8 January 2007 for the purpose of building a group housing
project. Subsequently, the Company has constructed an apartment building on this land including car parking and service basement, known as “ASK
Greens” according to scheme of HSIIDC. During the financial year 2017-18 , upon completion of construction of flats, the Company filed a deed of
declaration with sub-registrar, Manesar, thereby converting the aforesaid land and building into 40 flats having a total value of INR 3,640 Lakhs. These
group housing flats have been classified as held for sale, details as follows:

Particulars Amount
As at 1 April 2021 424.00
Sold during the vear 318.00
As at 31 March 2022 106.00
Sold during the year 106.00
As at 31 March 2023 -
4 Right of use assets. Goodwill & Other intangible assets

4A Right of use assets
Gross block Amount
As at 1 April 2021 935.49
Additions 1,702.94
Disposal/Adjustment (371.35)
As at 31 March 2022 2,267.08
Additions -
Disposal/Adjustment 1183.74)
As at 31 March 2023 2,083.34
Accumulated Amortisation
As at 1 April 2021 157.67
Charge for the year 672.01
Disposal/Adjustment -
As at 31 March 2022 829.68
Charge for the year 640.47
Disposal/Adjustment 1108451
As at 31 March 2023 1.361.70
Net Block
As at 31 March 2023 721.64
As at 31 March 2022 1,437.40

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of standal fil ial st (continucd)
CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

4 Right of use assets, Goodwill & Other intangible assets {continued

4B Goodwill

Gross block

Amount

As at 1 April 2021

18.191.01

Additions
Disposal

As at 31 March 2022

18.191.01

Additions
Disposal

As at 31 March 2023

18.191.01

Accumulated Impairment

As at 1 April 2021

Charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31 March 2022

Charge for the year
Disposal

As at_31 March 2023

Net Block

As at 31 March 2023

18.191.01

As at 31 March 2022

18.191.01

The carrying value of goodwill arose at the time of business purchase of erstwhile APK Automotive and AK Auto Industries by the Company
amounting to INR 18,191.01 Lakhs, has been tested for impairment annually at each balance sheet date in accordance with the Company's procedure
for determining the recoverable amounts of the after market business which is a cash generating unit (CGU). The recoverable amount of CGU is based
on value in use. The value in use for Goodwill is determined based on discounted cash flow projections. These calculations uses management
assumptions and discounted pre tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a § year period. Cash flow
projection beyond 5 years time period are extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rate. Certain key assumptions considered by the

management for impairment testing of CGU are stated below:
» Weighted average cost of capital: 16.20%

* Revenue growth rate: 13%

* Terminal growth rate: 4%

The management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the key assumptions used in the value in use calculation would cause the

carrying value of the CGU to materially exceed its value in use.

4C Other intangible assets

Distribution Computer Technical Total
Gross block Network Software Know How
As at 1 April 2021 493.00 563.12 160.60 1,216.72
Additions - 6.12 - 6.12
Disposal - - - =
As at 31 March 2022 493.00 569.24 160.60 1,222.84
Additions - 2.61 3.60 6.21
Disposal - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 493.00 571.85 164.20 1,229.08
Accumulated Amortisation
As at 1 April 2021 147.90 388.96 119.12 655.98
Charge for the year 49.30 80.17 18.83 148.30
Disposal - - - -
As at 31 March 2022 197.20 469.13 137.95 804.28
Charge for the year 49.30 45.62 19.08 114.00
Disposal - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 246.50 514.75 157.03 918.28
Net Block
As at 31 March 2023 246.50 57.10 7.17 310.77
As at 31 March 2022 295.80 100.11 22.65 418.56

4C.1 The Company does not have any outstanding contractual commitments to purchase any items of intangible assets.




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Autometive Private Limited)

Notes forming part of

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342
{All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except atherwise stated)

5 Investments As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Non current
Investments carrying at cost (fully paid up)
Ungquoted
A Injoint venture
ASK Fras-Le Friction Private Limited (face value INR 10 each) 43.120,000 4,312.00 31.115,000 3,111.50
B In wholly owned subsidiary
ASK Automobiles Private Limited (face value INR 10 each) 750,000 75.00 750,000 75.00
Total jpvestments 4,387.00 3,186.50
5.1 Refer note 35 for information about interest in Subsidiary and Joint Vengure.
5.2 The Company has received an offer letter dated 14th December 2022 from ASK Fras-Le Friction Private Limited, Joint Venture of the Company (‘JV’) for subseription of its 1,20,05,000 (One Crore Twenty
Lakhs Five Thousand) equity shares of INR 10/- each. With the consent of the Board, Company has invested an amount of INR 12,00,50,000 (INR Twelve Crores Fifty Thousand) in the JV on 21 December
2022 for subscription of its 1,20,05,000 (One Crore Twenty Lakhs Five Thousand) equity shares of INR 10/- cach on right basis.
5A  Losns As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
= — Current Non-current Current Non-current
Loans to related parties
Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated
Loan to ASK Fras-le Friction Private Limited 266.63 799.88 - 1,066.50
Loan to ASK Automobiles Private Limited - 5,215.90 - 2,100.10
“Total Loans 266.63 601578 - 3.166.60

Loan given to ASK Fras-lc Friction Private Limited (Joint Venture) is receivable in 4 equal yearly instaliments of INR 266,625 Lakhs commencing from 20 January 2024 and carries Interest rate of 9% pa
receivable on quarierly intervals,

The company has sanctioned an unsecured loan to ASK Automobiles Private Limited (subsidiary), for purchase of fixcd assets including land, construction of building, purchase of plant and machinery and
for meeting working capital requirements, for an amount not exceeding INR 10,000 Lakhs to be disbursed upto March 2024. The Intercst Rate on the Loan Amount is repo rate + 1.90% for loan disbursed
during financial year 2021-22 , repo rate + 2.30% for the loan disbursed during financial year 2022-23 and repo rate +3.30% for the loan to be disbursed during finencial year 2023-24. The loan is repayable
in sixty equal monthly installments w.e.f 01 April, 2024. Interest accrued upto March 2024 is payable in 4 equal quarterly instalments starting from 7 July 2024. Interest accrued from 1 April 2024 is payable

on 7th day after end of each quarter.

6  Other financial assets

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Current Non-current Current Nen-current
Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months (refer note 12) - 66.92 . -
Security deposits 283.98 731.55 0.20 865.37
407.02 37545 46.20 46.77
Total other financial asset £91.00 1,173.92 46.4 91214

#This amount includes INR 162.92 lakhs as at 31 March 2023 towards Initial public offer related transaction costs, which the Company will recover or adjust this amount from selling shareholders or reserves

and surplus in proportion to the offer for sale or fresh issue of equity shares respectively to be decided in due course. Refer note 39 also.

7  Non-current tax assets (net)

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Advance income tax® 66.31 495.05
Total non-current tax assets {net} 66.31 495.05
*Net of provisions for income tax 7,021.19 11,188.32

8 Other assets

As at 31 Mareh 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Current Non-current Current Nou-current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances to suppliers 371.01 - 145.64 -
Prepaid expenses 20027 56.26 178.65 55.21
Capital advances - 30293 - 196.45
Advance to employees 13.52 - 6.22 -
Balances with government authorities 97.52 0.20 138.68 0.20
GST Recoverable on goods in transit 662.23 - 423.96 -
Other assets 7.70 - 10.58 -
otal other assets 135225 35939 903.73 25186

9  Inventories As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value
Rew materials* 3,155.60 245658
Work-in-progress 3,699.75 3.481.02
Finished goods** 6,342.77 4.906.17
Packing material 446.94 395.77
Stores and spares including loose tools 1,667.89 119741
Total Inventories 15312.95 1243695
*Includes raw material in transit 197.62 74.03
**Tncludes sale of goods in transit 2,095.61 1,628.63




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)

Notes forming part of st:

dalone fi fal statements { i )

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

10 Trade receivables As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Unsecured a B .
Receivable from related partics (refer note 39) 17.65 54.81
Receivahle from others
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 21,044.48 20,061.24
Trade receivables - credit impaired 16.03 33.39
Total 21,078.16 20,149.44
Less: Loss allowance (16.03) (33.39)
Total trade receivables 21,062.13 20,116.05

10.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2023

Qutstanding for followiny years from due date of pavment#
Particula
artieutars Unbilled Not Due Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months years

(i) Undisputed Trade ivabl idered good 1,402.80 16,560.27 3,092.65 6.41 - - - 21,062.13
Lif) Undisputed Trade reccivables ~ credit impaired - - 0.21 3.09 12.73 - - 16.03
Total 1,402.30  16,560.27 3,092.86 9.50 12.73 - - 21,078.16
Less: Loss allowance - - 10.21) (3.09) 112.73) - - 116031
Total trade receivables 1,402.80  16,560.27 3,092.65 641 = - - 2106213

10.2 Trade Receivables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following years from due date of pay ment#
Particulars . Less than6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
Unbilled Not Due months years

(i) Undisputed Trade ivabl idered good 2,494.08 16.017.64 1,599.45 4.87 0.01 - - 20,116.05
{ii} Undisputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - 391 - 2948 - 3339
Total 2,494,08  16,017.64 1,599.45 8.78 0.01 29.48 - 20,149.44
Less: Loss allowance - - - 13911 - 129.48| - 13339
Total trade receivables 249408  16.017.64 1.599.45 4.87 001 = - 20.116.05
¥ Al the Trade receivables of the Company have a due date of payment associated with them.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days.
Refer note 38(B)(T)(a) for details of the Company's credit risk policy and exposure.
Refer note 39 for Trade receivables outstanding from related party.

103 Trade receivable includes receivable amounting to INR 3,219.97 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 3,525.28 lakhs) from a , which are di: d under an ar with HDFC Bank Ltd and the
customer, where the obligation to pay may arise due to unforeseen cvent of default by the Company's customer. The Company, therefore, recognizes the trade les and corr ding b ing in
financial statements till the payment is made by the custormer to bank on due date in d with the requi of Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, Also, refer note 40 of the standalone financial
statements for reclassification of prior period balances to confirm to such classification.

11 Cash and cash equivalents As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Balance with Banks
- In current accounts* 106.15 89.05
Cash on hand 4.76 5,54

Total cash and cash equivalents 11051 9¢.59

*Includes balance of INR 70.30 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 65.64 lakhs) in unspent CSR expenditure account which is not readily available for use (refer note 31.2).
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard 10 cash and cash equivalents as at the end of each year,
The Company has undrawn borrowing facilities aggregating to INR 6,808.84 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 11,372.66 lakhs) for future operating activities. This includes INR 1,780.03 Lakhs (31 March 2022:
INR 1.474.72 Lakhs) towards sales invoice discounting (refer note 20).

12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Balances with banks:*

Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 1023
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than 12 months 6.68 16.25
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 7524 —————
8192 2648
Amount disclosed as "Other financial assets" {refer note 6} 166.921 =
Total Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents 15.00 2648

* Margin Money with banks (for guarantees to customers and governiment authorities) including accrued interest amounting to INR 81,92 lakhs, (31 March 2022 ; INR 26.48 lakhs).
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to other bank balances as at the end of each year.

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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(AN amounts are in INR Lakks, except otherwise stated)

13 Equity share capital

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

— Number ~ Amount Number Amount
(i} Authorised share capital
Equity shares of face value INR 2 each (31 March 2022: INR 2 each) 225,000,000 4,500.00 225,000,000 4,500.00
225,000.000 4.500.00 225.000.600 4,500.00
(i} Issued. subscribed and fully paid-un shares
Equity shares of face value INR 2 each (31 March 2022: INR 2 each) 197,142.600 3,942.85 200,892,600 4,017.85
Total equity share capital = 197,142,600 _ 394285 200,892,600 4017.85

(iii) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised share capital
At the beginning of the year 225,000,000 4,500.00 225.000,000 4,500.00
Increased duriny the ) ear N - - -
As at the end of the vear 225,000.000 4.500.00 225,000.000 4.500.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
At the beginning of the year 200,892,600 4,017.85 203,442,600 4,068.85
Buyback of Shares (refer note (vii) below) 13.750,000, 175.00) 12.550.0001 (51.00)
As at the end of the vear 197,142,600 3,942.85 200.892.600 4.017.85

(iv)  Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value of INR 2 per share. All the existing equity shares rank pari passu in all respects including but not limited to entitlement for dividend, bonus
issue and right issue. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to reccive the remaining assets of the Company after settling of a1l liabilities, in proportion to their sharcholding.

(v) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares of face value INR 2 each

As at 31 March 2023
Number % of Holding

As at 31 March 2022
Number % of Holdinz

Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathee

81,488,400 41.33%

85,238,400 42.43%

Mrs. Vijay Rathee 63,676,200 32.30% 63,676,200 31.70%
Mr. Prashant Rathee 28,187,999 14.30% 28,188,000 14.03%
Mr. Aman Rathee 23,789,998 12.07% 23,790,000 11.84%
197,142,597 100.00% 200,892,600 100.00%
(vi) Asuiegate number of ejuity shares issued as bonus and shares issued for id other than cash for the year of five years i diately s din: the reporting date. -
Equity shares of face value INR 2 ¢ach For the year ended

31March 2023 31 March2022 31 March 2021

31 March2020 31 March2019 31 March 2018

Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalization of
- number of sharcs - - 152,581,950

- 42.353,000

(vii) During the year ended 31 March 2023, with the approval of the Board of Directors, the Company offered buyback of 37,50,000 (Thirty seven lacs fifty thousand only) fully paid-up equity shares of Face
Value of INR 2/- (Two only) each at a price of INR 240/- (Two hundred and forty only) per Equity share, on a proportionate basis through the tender offer process. The buyback procedure was completed in

September 2022, which resulted in a total cash outflow of INR 9,000.00 Lakhs (excluding tax on buy back). In accordance with the requiremen
Lakhs has been adjusted from retained earnings, Consequent to such buyback, the Company extinguished 37,50,000 equity shares, the paid-up e
Lakhs and capital redemption reserve of INR 75 Lakhs (representing the nominal value of the shares bought back) has been created out of retained

t of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of INR 9,000.00
quity share capital of the Company was reduced by INR 75
carnings.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, with the approval of the Board of Directors, the Company offered buyback of 25,50,000 (Twenty five lacs fifty thousand only) fully paid-up equity shares of Face
Value of INR 2/- (Two only) each at a price of INR 235/- (Two hundred and thirty five only) per Equity share, on a proportionate basis through the tender offer process. The buyback procedure was
completed in September, 2021, which resulted in a total cash outflow of INR 5,992.50 Lakhs (excluding tax on buy back). In accordance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of INR
5,992.50 Lakhs has been adjusted from retained eamings.Consequent to such buyback, thc Company extinguished 25,50,000 equity shares, the paid-up equity share capital of the Company was reduced by
INR 51 Lakhs and capital redemption reserve of INR $1 Lakhs (representing the nominal value of the shares bought back) has been created out of retained camings.

{viii) Equity Shareholding of Promoters

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year* As at 31 March 2023 As 2t 31 March 2022

Promoter's name Number of % of total shares % Change during Number of % of total shares % Change during
Shares the year Shares the year

Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathee 81,488,400 41.33% 4.40% 85,238,400 4243% 2.90%

Mrs. Vifav Rathee 63676200 32.30% 0.00% 63.676.200 31.70% 0.00%

145.164.600_ 73.63%

148.914.600 74.13%

Promoters for the purpose of this disclosure means promoters as defined under section 2(69) of the Companies Act, 2013

*As per Annual Return i.¢. Form MGT-7 dated 08 December 2022, filed by the Company with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for the year ended 31 March 2022, there has been a change in the list of

promoters. Basis the Annual Return filed, Mr., Prashant Rathee and Mr, Aman Rathee are no lenger the promoters of the Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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14 Other equity As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 10.05 10.05
Add/Less: Movement during the year - -
10,05 10.05
Capital redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 59.00 8.00
Add: Additions (refer note 13 (vii)) 75.00 51.00
134.00 59.00
Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 94.05 94.05
Add/Less: Movement during the year . R —
94.05 - %4.08
Retained earnings®
Balance at the beginning of the year 62,392.87 60,813.58
Add: Profit for the year 13,599.24 8.873.07
Add: Other comprehensive income 537 94.74
Less: Transferred to Capital Red ion Reserve (refer note 13 (vii)) (75.00) (51.00)
Less: Buyback of Shares (refer note 13 (vii)) (8,525.00) (5.941.50)
Less: Income Tax on buyback of shares 12.096.63 (2,396.02)
64,900.85 6239287
—Total ofler equity §513895 6255597
@This includes balance of INR 120.89 Lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 115.52 Lakhs) arising or. account of gain/(loss) booked on of post emp benefits oblig: through other
comprehensive income.
14.1 Nature and purpose of other equity
- General reserve: This represents appropriation of profit by the Company and is available for distribution of dividend.
- Capital redemption reserve: This represents (i) non-distributable reserve created as per provisions of ssction 55 of the Companies Act, 2013 on redemption of 0% Non ible red: ble prefe
shares redeemed during the year ended 31 March 2018 (ii) Amonnt ferred to capital redemption reserve as per provisions of section 68 of the Companics Act, 2013 on Buy back of equity shares during
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
- Securities premium: This premi ived on issue of shares, which can be utilised only in d with the provisions of the C ies Act, 2013 for specified purposes.
- : This represents the net profits after all distributions and transfers to other reserves.
15 Borrowings (non-current) As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Secured borrowings
Term loan
From banks {note (i) to iii)) 3418.02 4.466.23
From others (note {iv)) 4.313.50 _1,999.50
Total borrowings 173152 6,466.33
Less: Current ities of long term b ings (i ded in note 20) 142547 1,742.56
rrowings 630605 472377
Note :- Borrowings taken from Banks and others have been utilised for the purpose for which they were sanctioned and availed.
Interest rates, repayment and other terms of the borrowings:
Term Loans
Asat As at
Nerticnlars 31 March2023 31 March 2022
(i) Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited: Term Loan INR 5,000 lakhs sanctioned and availed by Company for purchase of Plant and Machinery and C ion of Building at - 1,767.99
Plot No.13-14, Sector-5, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon-122050 (Haryana) and was secured by exclusive charge on movable fixed asscts acquired out of this loan. This Loan
was also secured by Exclusive charge over immovable property being land and building situated at Plot No.28, Sector-4, Plot No. 155-1 56, Sector-5 and Plot No. 13-
14, Sector-5, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon (Haryana). This Loan was zlso secured by personal guarantee of Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathee, Mrs. Vijay Rathee, Mr. Prashart
Rathee and Mr. Aman Rathee, being Directors of the Holding Company as at 31 March 2021. The loan was disbursed in January 2019 with a moratorium period of 6
months repayable in 54 monthly installments and has been repaid in December 2022. Rate of interest is 3 months MCLR,
(i) Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited: Working Capital Term Loan TNR Z,700 lakhs is sanctioned under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme of National Credit 2,11802 2,698.84
Guarantee Trustee Company Ltd. (NCGTC) and is secured by way of second hypothecation charge on all existing and future current assets and movable fixed assets
Tuding assets exclusively fi d by Term lenders and second hypothecation charge on i ble property being land and building situated at Plot No. 66 & 67,
Udyog Vihar, Phase-1, Gurgaon {Haryana) . The said loan is also secured by second hyp ion charge on ble fixed assets acquired for Plant situated at Plot
No. 13-14, Sector-5, IMT Manesar and second charge over immovable property (Industrial} being land and building situated at Plot No.28, Sector-4, Plot No. 155-
156, Sector-5 and Plot No. 13-14, Sector-S, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon-122050 (Haryana). Out of sanctioned loan amount, INR 2,000 lakhs was disbursed in March 2021
and INR 698.84 Laks disbursed in Dec. 2021 with a tenor of 5 years with a moratorium period of 1 year from the date of first disbursement and will be repaid on
monthly basis by March 2026. Rate of interest is Repo Rate + <Spread>.
(iii} Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited: Werking Capital Term Loan INR 1,300 lakhs is sanctioned and availed under Ej y Credit Line Gy Scheme of National 1,300.00 -
Crecit Guarantec Trustee Company Ltd. (NCGTC) and is secured by way of second exclusive charge on all existing and future current assets and movable fixed assets
iuding assets exclusively fi d by Term lenders and second exclusive charge on moveable fixed assets of the borrower acquired with the proceeds of working
capital term foan (WCTL). This loan is also secured by second charge on immovable property being land and building situated at Plot No. 66 & 67, Udyog Vihar,
Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana), second exclusive charge on immovable property being land and building situated at Plot No. 13-14, Sector-5, IMT Manesar , second
charge on i ble property being land and building situated at Piot No.28, Sector4 and second exclusive charge on immovable property being land and
building situated at Plot No. 155156, Sector-5 , Gurgaon, Haryana. The loan was disbursed in March 2023 with a tenor of 6 years with a moratorium period of 2 year
from the date of first disbursement and will be repaid on monthly basis by March 2029. Rate of interest is 3 Month MCLR.
(iv) Bajaj Finance Limited: Term Loan INR 5,500 lakhs is sanctioned and availed by Company for reimbursement of expenditure on piant and machinery , out of which 4,313.50 1,999.50
INR 2,000 lakhs was disbursed in March 2022 with a tenor of 5 years including 1 year moratorium , repayment wili be in monthly installments starting from May
2023 and ending in April 2027. The loan is sceured by exclusive charge over plant and machinery reimbursed out of the said loan. Rate of interest is 7.75% pa.
Further, INR 1,700 lakhs was disbursed in January 2023 with a tenor of 5 years including 1 year moratorium , repayment will be in monthly installments starting from:
May 2023 and ending in June 2027. The loan is secured by exclusive charge over plant and machinery reimbursed out of the said loan. Rate of interest is 8.75% pa.
Further, INR 614 lakhs was disbursed in March 2023 witk a tenor of 5 years inciuding 1 year moratorium , Tepayment will be in montkly installments starting from
May 2023 and ending in June 2027. The loan is secured by exclusive charge over plant and machinery reimbursed out of the said loan. Rate of interest is 8.75% pa.In
addition, fi ial to be maintained during the tenure of the loan are 1) External Debt/Earning before interest depreciation and tax (ED/ EBIDTA): not more
than 2x and 2) External Debt/Tangible Networth (ED/ TNW): not more than 1.25x .
Total Secured borrowings (Non-Current) 7.731.52 6,466.33

A \q Dl O/r\!,\
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16 Leasel es As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
— Current Non-current Current Non-current
Lease liability (refer note 43) N 658.69 83.87 651.63 810.65
Total Lease liabilitles 658.69 83.87 _651.63 810.65

17  Provisions

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

= _Current Non-current Current  Non-currenf
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 17.1) 521.89 2,126.09 38284 1,983.32
Provision for compensated absences 199.89 436.16 171.46 420.02
Total provisions — . 72178 2562.25 554.30 2.403.34

17.1  Defined benefit plan and long term employment benefits

A General description:
Gratuity (Defined benefit plan):

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each year. The gratuity plan is governed by the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employes who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The
scheme is unfunded. Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Compensated absence (other long term employee benefits):
The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long term
ployee benefit for purp Such long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. The expense related to
d at are ised in dal of prefit and loss as employee benefits expense.

Vears is presented below:

A reconclliation of the Company’s defined benefit obligation (DBO) and plan assets, i.e. the gratuity plan, to the amounts presented in the statement of financial position for each of the reporting

Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Assets and liability (Balance Sheet position)
Present value of obligation 2,647.98 2,366.16
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net liability 2.647.98 2,166.16
C  Expenses recojnised during the y ear*
For the year For the year
ended ended
o 31 March2023 31 March 2022
Income statement 406.25 410.46
Other comprehensive income {7.17) (126.61)
Total expenses recoynised duriny the vear 399.08 283.85

* During the year ended 31 March 2023, the expense r d in the standal

employees within the Group Companies.

D  Defined benefit obligation
The details of the Company’s defined benefits obligations are as follows:

Changes in the present value of oblisation

of profit and loss is lower by INR 20.69 Lakhs vis-a-vis the acturial valuation report on account of transfer of

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of obligation as at the beginning 2,366.16 2,195.26
Current service cost 268.52 270.05
Interest expense 158.42 140.39
Re-measurement or actuarial (gain) / loss arising from:
- change in demographic assumptions (22.90) (62.25)
- change in financial assumptions (98.33) (59.74)
- experience adjustments 114.06 (4.62)
Benefits paid 1137.95| 1112.93)
Present value of obligation as at i ear end 2.647.98 2.366.16
E  Bifurcation of net liab]litv —
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current liability 521.89 382.84
Non-current liabilit. - 2.126.09 198332
Net liability 2.647.98 2.166.16
F  Eipenses recounised in the standalone statement of profit and loss
For the year For the year
ended ended

31 March2023 31

31 March 2022

Current service cost 268.52 270.05
Net interest cost on the net defined benefit liabilir, 15842 140.39
Expenses recoi:nised in the standalone statement of tirofit and loss 426.94 41044
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G _Other comurehensive income

For the year For the year
ended ended
- 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Actuarial (gains) / losses
- change in demographic assumptions (22.90) (62.25)
- change in financial assumptions (98.33) (59.74)
- experience variance 114.06 14.62)
Conmonents of defined benefit uynised in other comprehensive income 1717 1126.611

H  Financial assumptions: The princival financial assuiristions used in the valuation are shown in the table below:

Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate {per annum) 7.30% 6.70%
Salaty growth rate {prer annum} 9.00% 9.00%

1 _Demographic assumptions —

As at As at

31 March2023 31 March 2022

Mortality rate (% of [ALM 2012-14) 100.00% 100.00%

Withdrawal rate (all ages) 16.00% 13.00%

These assumptions were developed by with the assi: of ind, dent actuary. Discount factors are determined close to each vear-end by reference to market yields of high quality corporate

bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on current
ial bench ks and ’s historical experience.

J  Sensitivity ysis: Signi actuarial ptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have
been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year, while holding all other assumptions constant, The results of sensitivity analysis is given
below:

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation { Base| 2.647.98 2,366.16
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Decrease Locrease Decrease Increase
Discount rate (- / + 1%} 2,789.36 2,519.49 2,523.17 2,226.03
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 5.34% (4.85%) 6.64% (5.92%)
Salary growth rate (- / + 1%) 2,533.38 2,767.87 2,241.95 249857
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity (4.33%) 4.53% (5.25%) 5.60%
Attrition rate (- / + 50% of attrition rate} 2726.64 2607.02 2485.09 2306.05
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity 2.87% (1.55%) 5.03% (2.54%)
The change in defined benefit obligation due to 1% 1 d in mortality rate, if al! other assumptions remain constant is negligible.
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another
as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior year,
K The following is expected maturity profile of defined benefit pavments in future vears:
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Duration of defined benefit payments (valued on undiscounted basis)
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting year) 521.89 382.84
Between 2 and 5 years 1,456.18 1,090.26
Bevond § vears 2,146.29 2.445.33
Total exprected pay ments 4.124.36 3.918.43
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 5 years (31 March 2022: 6 years)
18  Other liabilities As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
= Current __Non-current Current Non-current
Deferred government grant - - 251.59 -
Advances from customers 1,180.45 - 674.62 -
Statutory dues payable 2,478.57 - 2.693.23 -
Total uther liabilitics. 3.659.02 - 101944 -

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank}
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19  Deferred tax labilities (net) As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Amount Attributable to:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 3,671.90 3,788.55
Provision for compensated absences (160.08) (148.85)
Provision for gratity (666.44) (595.51)
Provision for bonus (45.36) (64.88)
Other temyroray differences 1391, 17.891
‘Total deferred tax liabilities (net) 2,796.11 2,971.42
19.1 Movement in deferred tax liabilities
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Standalone Standalone Other Standalone Standalone Other
balance sheet statement of  comprehensive balance sheet statement of  comprehensive
profit and loss income profit and loss income
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 3,671.90 (116.65) - 3,788.55 (18.40) 2
Provisions
Provision for compensated absences (160.08) (11.23) - (148.35) 4.46 -
Provision for gratuity (666.44) (72.73) 1,80 (595.51) (74.88) 31.87
Provision for bonus (45.36) 19.52 - (64.88) (35.51) -
Other liabilities
Other temy orary differences (3.91) 3.98 - (7.89) 334 -
Total 2,796.11 177.11) L3¢ 2,971.42 {120.99) 31.87
Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax credit to standalone statement of profit and loss account (177.1D) (120.99)
Deferred tax credit in Other Comprehensive Income 1.80 31.87
Total {17531 189.12)
20  Borrowings (Current) As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Loans repayable on demand
Secured
Working capital loans {note (i) to {iv)) 5,398.95 476.60
Current maturities of long term borrowing {refer note 15) 1,425.47 1,742.56
Unsecured
Borrowings on account of sales invoice discounting (refer note 20.1) 3,219.97 3,525.28
Borrowings (current) 10,044.39 5,744.44
Interest rates and repayment terms of the borrowings:
. N As at As at
‘Working capital loan from banks a1 2020 31 March 2022
(i) HDFC Bank Limited: Working Capital facility secured by first pari passu charge on current assets and movable fixed assets of the company both present and future 1,839.19 216,76
excluding assets exclusively financed by term lenders. The said loan is also secured by first pari passu charge on immovable property being land and building at Plot
No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana). In addition, financial covenants to be maintained during the tenure of the loan are 1) Total outside
liability/Tangible networth (TOL/ TNW): less than 1.00x and 2) Current Ratio: more than 1.00x .
(i) Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited: Working capital facility is secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge on all existing and future current assets and all existing 804.29 171.51
and future ble fixed assets excluding assets exclusively fi d by term lenders. The said loan is also secured by first pari pasu mortgage charge on immovable
property being land and building situated at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana).
(iti) Axis Bank Limited: Working Capital facility from Axis Bank Limited is secured by way of first pari passu hypothecation charge on entire current assets and movable 2,187.46 86.31
fixed assets (excluding assets exclusively fi d by term lenders) both present and future of the company. The said loan is also secured by first pari pasu charge by
way of cquitable mortgage on i ble property being land and building situated at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana).
(iv) Citi Bank N.A. : Working capital facility is secured by First pari passu charge on present and future stocks and book debts and first pari passu charge on all movable 568.01 2.02
fixed assets of the Company except the assets which are exclusively charged to any lender for term loan facility. The said loan is also secured by way of equitable
mortgage on land & building located at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana).
Total Working capital loan from banks 5,398.95 476.60

20.1 Borrowings on account of sales invoice discounting represents invoices discounted from HDFC Bank Limited. Also, refer note 40 of the standalone financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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1] Trade payables

21

21

21

: U34300DL1983PLC030342

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 21.1) 4,305.35 3,174.96
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 12,746.85 14,690.22
Total outstandinit ducs to related parties | refer note 39§ - 13.80
Total trade payables 17,052.20 17,878.98
1 Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) have been identified by the Company from the available information. According to such identification, the disclosures in respect to Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is as follows:

Particulars As at Asat
40 Murch 2023 11 March 2022
(i) Details of dues to micro and smail enterpriscs as per MSMED Act, 2006 the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of each accounting year
- principal amount 4,305.35 3,174.96
- interest amount Nil Nil
(if) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each Nil Nil
(iiiy The amount of interest due and pavable for the year (where the principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid); Nil Nil
(iv) The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil Ni}
(v} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small Nil Nil
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23
2 Trade payables- Ageing Schedule**
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Qutstanding for following 3 ears from due date of pay ment#
Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Tatal
soars
(i) MSME - 4,260.31 45.04 - - - 4.305.35
(i} Others 3.115.68 8.563.49 1.046.04 21.16 0.48 12 746.85
Total 3,115.68 12.823.80 1,091.08 21.16 0.48 - 17.052.20
.3 Trade payables- Ageing Schedule**
As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following years from due date of payment#
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
vears
(i) MSME - 3,174.96 - - - - 3,174.96
ii) Others 4.448.74 934246 906.76 0.51 5.55 = 14.704.02
Total 4,448.74 12.517.42 90676 0.51 558 < 17.878.98

#All the Trade payables of the Company have a due date of payment associated with them.
**The Company does not have any disputed outstanding balances.

22 Other financial liabilities carried at amortised cost As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Current Non-current Current Nop-current

Capital creditors* 639.25 - 687.34 -
Interest accrued 44.80 - 20.34 -
Employee related payable 1,366.57 - 1,227.57 -
Security deposit received 118.50 - 117.26 -
Others liabilities 18.39 - 41,67 -
Total other financial liabilities 2,187.51 - 2,094.18 -

22,

22.

* includes INR Nil (31 March 2022: INR 13.66 Lakhs) payable to related partics.

1 Capital creditors As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 22.2) 172.76 128.79
Total outstandini: dues of creditors other than micro enteprises and small entetprises 466.49 b}

Total Capital creditors 639.25 687.34

2 Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 for Capital creditors

The micro enterprises and small enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information. According to such identification, the disclosures in respect to Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is as follows:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

(i} Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to

any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

- principal amount 172.76 128.79
- interest amount Nil Nil

(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the Nil Nil
appointed day during each accounting year;

(i) The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal bas been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid); Nil Nil

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil Nil

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are Nil Nil
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23

23 Current tax liabilities (net) As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Opening provision for income tax 268.87 106.24
Provision created during the year 4,853.66 3,187.14
Tax paid during the year 4.841.25 13,024,511
Total current tax liabilities (nef) 281.28 268.87

A ENANDID
SN
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Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Revenue from operations
Sale of Products
Sale of services
Other operating revenue

Scrap sales

251,918.18 199,333.94

832.69 297.10

Duty drawback and export benefits 203.71 248.43
2,587.91 1.430.69

255,542.49 201,310.16

Total revenue from operations

The revenue from customers (having more than 10% of total revenue) during the year is TNR 1,54,465.20 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 1,19,294.75 lakhs) arising from

sale of products and services.

Revenue is mainly derived from three customers which account for 34.52% (31 March 2022: 34.22%), 15.57% (31 March 2022: 13.45%) and 10.74% (31 March 2022;

11.71%) of the Company respectively arising from sale of products and services.

Refer note 45 for detailed disclosure.

25  Other income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
Bank deposits 60.37 1.82
Unsecured loans 461.19 147.95
Others 23.23 4622
Interest income on security deposits measured at fzir value 19.13 18.24
Foreign exchange gain (net) 265.83 195.21
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 36.26 2.61
Profit on sale of assets held for sale 6.00 -
Government Grant 284.26 24745
Excess liability / provision written back 138.43 393.11
Miscellaneous income 200.48 116.91
Total other income 1,495.18 1,169.52
26  Cost of material consumed For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Raw material consumed*
At the beginning of year 2,852.35 2,818.90
Add: Purchases during the year 180,606.64 140,414.20
Less: At the end of the year 3.602.54 2.852.35
Total cost of material cormed 179,856.45 140,380.75
*Includes packing material also.
27  Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance
Finished goods 4,906.17 4,464.36
Work-in-progress 3.481.02 2.887.41
Total opening balance 8,387.19 7.351.77
Closing Balance
Finished goods 6,342.77 4,906.17
Work-in-progress 3,699.75 3.481.02
Total closing balance 10,042.52 8,387.19
Total changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress {1,655.33) (1,035.42)
28 Employee benefits expense For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 11,875.61 10,476.47
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer note 28.1) 607.20 559.84
Gratuity (refer note 17.1) 406.25 410.46
Compensated absences 88.03 12.83
Staff welfare expenses 933.29 810.61
Total emplovee benefits expense 13.910.38 12,270.21

28.1

Defined contribution plan

The Company has certain defined contribution plans. The contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the prescribed rates of the basic salary as per

Employees' Provident Funds and Miscell Provisions Act, 1952. The contrit

obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.
The expense recognised during the year towards the defined contribution plan is INR 568.24 lakhs. (31 March 2022 : INR 519.60 lakhs)

d provident fund administered by the government. The
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29 Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest
Interest on fi ial liabilities d at amortised cost 999.28 644.76
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 328 19.90
Interest on lease liability 79.18 128.17
Others
Other borrowing cost 3.60 12.36
Total finance costs 1,085.34 ﬂﬂ_ﬂ
30 Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3} 5,223.88 4,762.20
Amortisation of other intangible assets (refer note 4C) 114,00 148.30
Amortisation of right of use assets (refer note 4A) 640.47 672.01
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 5978.35 5.582.51
31  Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Power and fuel 9,254.40 7,440.95
Consumption of stores and spares 541533 4,640.97
Job work charges 4,561.23 3,681.49
Contractual labour charges 12,778.61 11,042.26
Freight and forwarding 3,132.91 2,502.11
Rent expenses 265.76 217.38
Rates and taxes 58.73 43.60
Repair and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 427.02 298.86
- Building 24].64 172.98
- Others 276.66 248.65
Sales and promotion expenses 357.59 102.76
Travelling and conveyance 492.71 290.56
Telephone and communication expenses 54,76 43.01
Insurance 252.14 22343
Security expenses 367.66 371.63
Legal and professional expenses 959.75 570.20
Payment to auditor (refer note 31.1) 56.24 40.95
Testing expenses 89.12 78.28
Royalty 229.43 145.06
Provision for doubtful debts 12.12 0.m
Running and maintenance of vehicle 131.88 112.42
Amount written off 20.74 -
Property, plant and equipment discarded 41.13 0.11
C social ibility diture (refer note 31.2) 275.05 313.06
Miscellaneous expenses 301.93 222.37
Total other expenses 40,054.54 32.808.10
31.1 Payment to auditor (excluding Goods and Services tax wherever applicable ) For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
As auditor
- Audit fee 49.50 38.00
- Other Services 3.40 1.90
- Out of pocket expenses 3.34 1.05
56.24 40.95
31.2 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

In d: with the p

of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company had constituted a Carporate Social Responsibility

(CSR) Committee, The CSR C ittee has been and evaluating suitable ds CSR initiatives. During the current year

ended 31 March 2023, Company has contributed following sums towards CSR initiatives.

Details of CSR expenditure incurred for the year is outlined helow: For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 202 1 022

Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Act 275.05 313.06

Amount spent during the year on:

(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset - -

(i1} On purposes other than (i) above 21544 300.63

Shortfall® §9.61 12.43

@ The shortfall of INR 59.61 lakhs (31 March 2022; INR 12.43 lakhs) forms part of the ongoing projects.

Details of expenditure incurred For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
63.17

Contribution to a Trust ("AHSAAS") promoted by the Company for its CSR activities towards promoting 24484
healthcare including p ive healthcare, promoting education, empowering women and other activities

as defined under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

Expenditure directly incurred by the Company 152.27 355.79

Total expense incurred by the Company 215.44 300.63
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(a) Details of Unspent CSR Expenditure on Ongoing Projects (Section 135(6))

With Company

Opening Balance

Unspent amount for the year*

Transferred to Separate CSR Unspent Ae
Closing Balance

In Separate CSR Unspent A/c
Opening Balance

Transferred from Company
Amount spent during the ycur"
Closing Balance

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 20: 3 022
12.50 209.85
60.00 12.50
12,50 209.85
60.00 12.50
65.64 -
12.50 209.85
7.84 144.21
70.30 65.64

# This is the amount transferred by the ASK Automotive Limited to the AHSAAS, actual amount spent by the AHSAAS during the year is INR 6.76 lakhs.
* The Board of the company during the year under review has approved INR 60 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 12.50 lakhs) for ongoing projects.
As per Section 135(6) of the Companies Act 2013, the Company is required to transfer the unspent amount pertaining to ongoing project to a special account called
“Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account” within 30 days from end of respective financial year. In this regard the Company has transferred INR 60 Lakhs (31
March 2022: INR 12.50 Lakhs) to the special account on 29 April 2023. Out of the amounts deposited in the bank account for prior year, Company has transferred to

AHSAAS INR 7.84 Lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 144.21 lakhs).

32 Income tax expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit and Loss
Current tax
Current Year 4,851.05 3,168.18
Prior Years 6.63 (13.97)
Deferred tax (Credit) during the year (refer note 19.1) (177.11) {120.99)
Total 4,680.57 3,033.22
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Deferred tax during the vear (refer note 19.1) 1.80 31.87
Total income tax expense 4,682.37 3.065.09
(i) Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit before income tax expense 18,279.81 11,906.29
Other Comprehensive income before tax 7.17 126.61
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 25.168% 4.602.47 3.028.44
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calenlating taxable income:
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 69.22 78.79
Tax Provision for carlicr year 6.63 (13.97)
Government grant income (71.54) {62.28)
Others 75.59 34.11
Income tax expense 4.682.37 3.065.09

33 Earnings per share

Eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the average number of equity shares and weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding. The reconciliation of the number of shares and weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share to
the number of equity shares and weighted average number of ordinary equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earings per share is as follows:

Number of shares

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening 200,892,600 203,442,600
Buvback of shares {refer note 13 (vii}i (3.750.000) {2,550.000}
Closing 197,142,600 200.892.600
Weighted average number of shares For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening 200,892,600 203,442,600
Adiusted buyback of shares 11,900,685 (1.487.5001
Closing. 198,991,915 201,955,100
The numerators and denominators used to calculate the basic and diluted EPS are as follows:

For the year ended Faor the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (A) 13,599.24 8.873.07
Numbers of equity shares (in Lakhs) (B) 1,971 2,009
Weighted average number of equity shares (in Lakhs) (C) 1,990 2,020
Nominal value per equity share (refer note 13(iv)) 2.00 2.00
Earnings per equity share (INR)
Basic and Diluted (D) (D=A/C) 6.83 4.39
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

34 Segment Reporting
The business aclivity of the Company falls within one operati viz. facturing of auto comp including advanced braking systems, aluminium
lightweighting precision solutions and safety control cables (carlicr considered as friction material components; pressure die casted, machined and painted components; and
safety control cables) primarily for automobile industry and substantial sale of the products is within India. The Board of Directors, which has been identified as being the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), evaluates the Company's perfc llocat based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the
Company as a single unit, Therefore, there is one reportable segment for the Company.
For information about revenue by geography and revenue from major customers, refer note 45A and 24 respectively.

35 Information about interest in Other entities

A Interest in subsidiary
The Company’s interest and share in subsidiary.

Principal place of Ownership interest as at Ownership interest as at
business 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1__ASK Automobiles Private Limited India 100% 100%

No. Name

B Interest in Joint venture

Principal place of Ownership interest as at ‘Ownership interest as at
business 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1 __ASK Fras-Le Friction Private Limited India 49% 49%

No. Name

The Company’s interest in joint venture in the jointly controlled operations as at 31 March 2023 are as follows:

No. Name of joint venture partner Description of Nature of operation
interest
1 Fras.Le S.A.. Brazil Jom:yu d A joint venture agreement effective from 5 December 2017. The principal activity of the venture is the production
ras-Le s AL B :::raoﬁo; and marketing of commercial vehicle brake pads and brake linings (also refer note 35.1 below)
35.1 As per joint venture agreement, the scope and value of work of each partner has been clearly defined and pted by the p The Company’s share in the jomt venture
company is duly accounted for in the accounts of the Company in d with such division of work and therefore does not require separate disclosure.
36 Capital and other commitments*
Estimated amount of ining to be d on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) is outlined in the table below:
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Property, plant and equipment - Capital commitment {gross! 121555 51139
Less: Advances paid (271,531 (174.311
Propeity, plant and equipment- Canital commitment { net) 944,02 337.08

*The above amount excludes Goods and Services Tax.
37 Contingent liabilities

(i)  Corporate guarantees given to banks on account of facilities granted by banks te joint venture and subsidiary company.

The following is a description of claims and assertions where a p ial loss is possible, but not probable. The Company beli that none of the contingencies described
below would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows:

Description Purpose of gnarantee As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
ASK Fras-le Friction Private Limited* Term Loan and Working capital requirement 8,350.00 8,350.00
ASK Automobiles Private Limited Term Loan and Working capital requirement 25,400.00 21,400.00
Total 33,750.00 29.750.00

*As co guarantor with Fras-Le S.A., Brazil as per their shareholding in Joint venture company.

(i) Others
Surety bonds executed by the company in favor of the President of India, under Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (EPCG) for importing capital goods at
concessional rate of custom duty. As at 31 March 2023, there is no unfulfilled export obligation. As at 31 March 2022, amount of duties and taxes saved of INR 845.82
Lakhs against which there was an unfulfilled export obligation.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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A
(0]

(4]

(a)

Financial instruments - Fair values measurement and risk management

Fair values measnrement

Financial instruments - by category

The accounting classification of each category of financial instuments, their carrying values and fair values are set out below:

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Total Carrying value Total Carrying value
Fair Valae Fair Value Fair Value i
Fair Value Total Fair
Particulars :,'""“"' through Oher ot Cogy| 102 il Value through Profitor 'TTOUEMOWEr L ised Cost|  Value
rofit or Comprehensive Loss Comprehensive
Loss income income
Financial assets
Loans - - 6,282.41 6,282 41 . . 3,166.60 3,166.60
Trade receivables - - 21,062.13 21,062.13 . 20,116.05 20,116.05
Cash and cash equivalents = . 110.91 11091 . - 94.59 94.59
Other bank balances - - 15.00 15.00 - - 2648 26.48
Other deposits - . 66.92 66.92 - - - =
Security deposits - - 1,015.53 1,015.53 - - 865.57 B65.57
Other financial assets - - 782.47 782.47 - - 92.97 92.97
Total financial assets - - 29.335.37 2933537 - - 24.362.26 24.362.26
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 16,350.44 16,350.44 - - 10,468.22 10,468.22
Lease liability - . 742.56 742.56 - - 1,462.28 1,462.28
Trade payables - - 17,052.20 17,052.20 - - 17,878.98 17.878.98
Capital creditors - - 639.25 639.25 - - 687.34 687.34
Interest accrued - - 44.80 44.80 - - 20.34 20.34
Employee related payable - . 1,366.57 1,366.57 - - 1,227.57 1,227.57
Security deposil received - 118.50 118.50 - - 117.26 117.26
Others liabilitics - - 18.39 18.39 - - 41.67 4167
Total financial liabilities - - 3633271 36.332.71 - = 31.903.66 31.903.66

Investment in joint venture and subsidiary is measured at cost as per Ind AS 27, *Separate financial statements” and hence, not presented here.

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk;

- Liquidity risk;

- Market risk - Foreign exchange;

- Market risk - Interest rate; and

- Commodity price risk

Risk management framewark
The Company’s board of di has overall responsibility for the establish and ight of the Company’s risk management framework. The board of directors have authorised senior
to establish the p , who ensures that executive management controls risks through the mechanism of properly defined fromework.
The Company’s risk policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risks limits and controls, to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and
aims to maintain a disciplined and ive control envi in which all employ d d their roles and obligali

Credit risk
The maximum exposure to eredit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the standalone balance sheet are as follows:

As at31 March As at 31 March
b1} 3 I 5

Financial assets

Loans 6,282.41 3,166.60
Trade receivables 21,062.13 20,116.05
Cash and cash equivalents 11091 94.59
Other bank balances 15.00 26.48
Other deposits 66.92

Security deposits 1,015.53 865.57
Other financial assets 782.47 9297

Tatal financial assets 29335.37 24.362.26

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s
receivables from customers, loans.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit ralings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies. While cash and
cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

The maximum exposure 1o the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade ivables. Trade receivables are d and are derived from revenue eamned from customers primarily
located in India. The Company does menitar the economic environment in which it operates.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of loan and whether there has been a significant increase in credi risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the loan as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial ition. It considers and supportive forwarding-looking inf ion. Especially the following indi are incorpy d:

+ actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or ditions that are expected to cause 2 signi change to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

* actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the borrower

Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company
grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss (ECL) model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The
Company uses a provision matrix to pute the d credit loss all for trade bles. The provision matrix takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors
such as Company’s histori peri for
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{i) Expected credit loss for investment carried at amortised cost and other financial assets
As at 31 March 2023

" . Expected .

Estimated gross carrying amount of Expected credit Carrying amount net of
Asset group default P "b.l:ﬂz‘:: loss impairment provision
Loan 6,282.41 % - 6.282.41
Cash and cash equivalents 110.91 0% - 110.91
Other bank balances 15.00 0% - 15.00
Other deposits 66.92 0% - 66.92
Security deposits 1,015.53 0% - 1,015.53
Other financial assets 782.47 0% - 78247
As at 31 March 2022

Estimated gross carrying amount of Expected Expected credit Carrying amount net of
Asset group default  Probability of I impairment provisi

loss mpairment provision
default

Loan 3,166.60 0% - 3,166.60
Cash and cash equivalents 94.59 0% - 94.59
Other bank balances 26.48 0% - 26.48
Security deposits 865.57 0% - 865.57
Other financial assets 92.97 0% - 92.97
The credit risk for investment carried at amortised cost and other financial assets is considered negligible. However, specific provision is made in case a p ble is idered to be

non -recoverable.
(ii) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

The Company’'s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:

Particulars Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Trade i id| good - Ul d 21,062.13 20,116.05
Trade receivables - credit impaired 16.03 33.39
Total 21,078.16 20,149.44
Less : Loss allowance 116.03) (33.391
Carrving amount of trade receivables (net of loss allowance} 21,062.13 20,116.05
The following table summarises the change in the loss allowance:
Loss allowance as on 1 April 2021 46.67
Add/(Less): Loss allowance (net) (13.28)
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2022 3339
Add/(Less): Loss allowance (net) (17.36)
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2023 16.03
(b} Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketabl and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under d facilities. M rolling

(i

forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity
operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these,
monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requi and debt fir ing plans.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities. The amourts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

As at 31 March 2023 Contractual cash flows

More than 5

6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years yeirs Total
Financial liabilities - borrowings* 9,597.79 1,054.42 2,104.85 4,811.38 385.90 17,954.34
Lease liabilities 343.52 344.45 69.10 19.06 - 776.13
Trade payables 17,052.20 - - - . 17,052.20
Other financial liabilities 2.187.51 - - - - 2,187.51
Total 29.181.02 1.198.87 2.173.95 4.830.44 385.90 37.970.18
As at 31 March 2022 Contractual cash flows

6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More “;::ri Total
Financial liabilities - borrowings* 5,060.67 1,042.58 1,943.49 3,230.39 46.84 11,323.97
Lease liabilities 369.53 365.17 736.27 11232 - 1,583.29
Trade payables 17,878.98 - - - - 17,878.98
Other financial liabilities 2.094.18 - - - - 2,094.18
Total 25403.36 1.407.75 2.679.76 334271 46.84 32,880.42

*Amortised amount of upfront fees/charges paid at the time of sanction/disbursement of loan in the above outstanding is INR 0.50 lakhs (31 March 2022 INR 1.56 lakhs). This amount further
includes future undiscounted cash flows for interest on term loans INR 1603.41 lakhs (31 March 2022 INR 854.21 lakhs).

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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{¢} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Marke1 risk comprises two types of risk: currency risk and interest

rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk

within

while

P

the return.

[0

{ii)

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to the effects of fluctuation in

the prevailing foreign currency rates on its financial position and cash flows. Exposure arises primarily due to exchange rate fl ions between the jonal y and other
currencies from the Company’s operating, investing and financing activities.
Exposure to currency risk
The summary of quantitative data about the Company’s unhedged exposure to currency risk, as expressed in INR :
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2023
Amount in foreign currency Exchane rate Amount in INR

USD EURO IPY USD EURO JPY Usb EURO JPY
Financial assets
Trade receivables 20.88 0.00 - 2222 89.61 0.62 1.716.41 0.13 -

2088 0.00 B 1.716.41 0.13 -

Financial liabilities
Trade pavables 030 - 154.41 2222 89.6) 0.62 2467 - 9543

030 - 154.41 24.67 - 95.43
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2022

Amount in foreign currency Exchange rate Amount in INR

USD EURO JPY USD EURO JPY USD EURO JPY
Financial assets
Trade receivables 23.88 - - 75.81 84.66 0.62 181027 - -

2338 - = 1.810.27 - -

Financial liabilities
Trade pavables 197 - 118.72 75.8) 84.66 0.62 149.26 - 73.88

197 - 118.72 149.26 - 73.88
Sensitivity analysis
A bly possible gthening ( 1g) of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at 31 March 2023 would have affected lhe of al i d inated in

functional currency and affected cqlnty and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is performed on foreign currency denominated monetary financial assets and financial
liabilities outstanding as at the year end. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Parti As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
USD sensitivity*

INR/USD- increase by 8.46% (as at 31 March 2022 3.13%) 143.12 51.99
INR/USD- decrease by 8.46% (as at 31 March 2022 3.13%) (143.12) 5199
EURO sensitivity*

INR/EURO- increase by 5.84%(as at 31 March 2022 1.67%) 0.01 =
INR/EURO- decrease by 5.84%(as at 31 March 2022 1.67%) 0.01) =
JPY sensitivity*

INR/JPY - increase by 0.69% (as at 3] March 2022 6.22%) (0.66) (4.60)
INR/JPY - decrease by 0.69% (as at 31 March 2022 6.22%) 0.66 4.60

* Holding all other variables constant
Note- We have idered change in afc

Interest rate risk

TP

id rate by the in closing and opening rate.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-
term borrowings and short term borrowings with variable rates.

Interest rate risk exposure

The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to
the at the end of the iniz wear are as follows:

As at 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
Variable rate borrowing 13,100.88 6,942.93
Weigthted average interest rate 7.58% 6.79%

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points {bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This

analysis assumes that all other variables, in foreign y rates, remain constant.
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest sensitivity®
Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (100 bps) {131.01) (94.05)
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points {100 bps) 131.01 94.05

* Holding all other variables constant

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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{d) Commedity price risk
Fluctuation in commeodity price in market affects directly or indirectly the price of raw material and components used by the Company. The Company sells its products mainly to Original
Equi| Manufac for whom it is ing auto The Company does regular negotiation / adjustment of prices on the basis of changes in commodity prices.

(II) Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, securities premium reserve and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. The primaty objective of the management of the Company’s cepital structure is to maintain an efficient mix of debt and equity in order to achieve a low cost of capital, while taking
into account the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to pursue business opportunities and adequate access to liquidity to mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash flows.

The Company ges its capital and makes to it in light of changes in i iti To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to

shareholders. raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as adjusted net interest-bearing debts divided by total capital.

As at 31 March As at 31 March

Partiedlars 2023 2022
Short term borrowings (refer note 20) 10,044.39 5,744.44
Long term borrowings {refer note 15) 6,306.05 4,723.77
Less : Cash and cash equivalent (refer note 11) (110.81) (94.59)
Adjusted net debt A 16,239.53 10,373.62
Total capital (refer note 13 and 14) B 69.081.80 66.573.82
Net debt to equity ratio {in times) * AB 0.24 0.16

*The Company's adjusted net debt has increased by INR 5,865.91 lakhs for capital expenditure and working capital requirement against increase in shareholder’s equity by INR 2,507.9% lakhs.

39 Related party disclosures
Discl of related parties/related partv ions pursuant to Ind AS 24 “ Related Partv Disclosures™.

A Name of the related parties and nature of the related party relationship:

Name of the entity Principal place of operation / country of incorporation

(D) |Entities in which directors of the Company and their|
relatives are able to exercise siguificant influence|
("Significant Influence”) with whom transactions|
have taken place.

A.P.Automotives Private Limited

AA Friction Materials Private Limited
Vijaylaxmi Infra Projects Private Limited
AHSAAS Trust

(ii) | Wholly Owned Subsidiary
ASK Automobiles Private Limited India

(iii) | Joint Venture

ASK Fras-Le Friction Private Limited India
_ Namg tion
(iv) | Key P | and i of Keyl|

management personnel ("KMP")

Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathee Managing Director
| Mrs. Vijay Rathee Director

| Mr. Prashant Rathee Executive Director

Mr. Aman Rathee Executive Director

M. Rajesh Kataria Executive Director

Mr. Kumaresh Chandra Misra Independent Director (w.c.f. 01 April 2023)
Ms. Deepti Sehgal Independent Director (w.e.f. 01 April 2023)
Mr. Arun Duggal Independent Director (w.c.f. 01 May 2023)
Mr. Yogesh Kapur Independent Director (w.e.f. 01 May 2023)
Mr. Vinay Kumar Piparsania Independent Director (w.c.f. 01 May 2023)
Ms. Rajani Sharma Company Secretary

Mr. Naresh Kumar Chief Financial Officer (w.e.t 28 March 2023)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)

Notes forming part of st

dalone financial stat

(continued)

CIN: U34306DL1988PLC030342
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

40 Restatement of previously reported financial information
During the current year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has restated the comparative financial information as at 31 March 2022 presented in these financial
statements due to classification of certain balances as further explained in Note 10.3 and 20.1. The impact of these adjustments as at 31 March 2022 and 01 April 2021 is
not considered to be material to the Company, as there is no impact on standalone statement of profit and loss, net worth or key financial ratios of the Company reported
in earlier years. The impact of restatement is detailed below:

41

A) Impact on standalone fi ial line items:
Amount as on Amount as on Amount as on Amount as on
Particulars Notes 31 March 2022 Adjustments | 31 March 2022 01 April 2021 | Adjustments| 01 April 2021
(Reported) (Restated) {Reported) (R d
Current assets
Trade receivables Note 10.3 16,590.77 3,525.28 20,116.05 13,270.41 2,587.88 15,858.29
Current liabilities
Borrowings Note 20.1 2,219.16| 3,525.28 5,744.44 1134.53 2.587.88 3.722.41
B) Impact on Standalone statement of Cash Flows
. As at As at
Particulars 31 Mareh 2022 | AUUSIIENES |y e 2022
{Reported) {Restated)
Movement in working capital
Change in trade receivables {3,256.18) (937.40) (4,193.58)
Cash flow from financing activities
Movement of short term borrowings (net) 476.60 937.40 1.414.00
C) Impact on key ratios
Asat . As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 | AUUSIMENts |4 eh 2022
(Reported) {Restated)
Current ratio 1.11 (0.02) 1.09
Debt equity ratio 0.13 0.05 0.18
Trade receivable turnover ratio 13.48 (1.42) 12.06
Capital work in progress (CWIP)
CWIP Ageing schedule #
As at 31 March 2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo:-e th:n 3 Total
ear:
Project in progress 652.82 - - 652.82
Proiects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 652.82 - - - 652.82
As at 31 March 2022 Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mal‘;ee :I::n 3 Total
Project in progress 203.73 203.73
Projects temyporarily suspended - -
Total 203.73 203.73
# The company has no CWIP, whose completion is due or has ded its cost d to its original plan.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of standalone fi ial (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounis are in INR Lakks, excepr otherwise stated)

42 Quarterly Statements submitted to Bank
The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions (Refer note no 20).
The periodical statements of current assets* submitted by the company with the banks and financial institutions are in agreement with books of

account except as under:

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Quarter Name of Bank | Particulars | Amount as | Amount as | Difference Reason for material discrepancies
of security |per books of| reported in
provided account the
quarterly
statement
Tune 2022 *+ * 1548526 | 12,102.39 | (3,382.87)|The difference is on account of trade
September 2022 = - 17,9327 | 13,95428 | (3.238.99)|Fcceivables  discounted ~through sales
invoice d g facility not netted off
December 2022 A il 13,237.60 | 10,682.82 | (2,554.78) during quarterly closure of books of
March 2023 ** ** 19,322.96 | 16253.39 | (3,069.57)|accounts.
For the vear ended 31 March 2022
Quarter Name of Bank | Particulars | Amount as | Amount as | Difference Reason for material discrepancies
of security | per books of| reported in
provided account the
quarterly |
statement |
June 2021 L4 e 8,908.89 | 10,761.89 1,853.00 AL
September 2021 28 1) H,F4.500) 12,299.28 794.78 e |
December 2021 L1 S 1391850 | 14,072.84 153.94 e
March 2022 58 . 1467402 | 10,933.40 |  (3,740.62) B

* Current Assets = Inventorics + Trade Receivables - Trade Payables

** Name of Bank & Security provided

Name of Bank | Particulars of Security provided |
HDFC Bank Limited Working Capital facility secured by first pari passu charge on current assets and movable fixed

assets of the company both present and future excluding assets exclusively financed by term
lenders. The said loan is also secured by first pari passu charge on immovable property being land
and building at Plot No, 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-1, Gurgaon (Haryana).

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited Working capital facility is secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge on all existing and future:
current assets and all existing and future movable fixed assets excluding assets exclusively financed
by term lenders. The said loan is also secured by first pari pasu mortgage charge on immovable,
property being land and building situated at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-I, Gurgaon
(Haryana).

Axis Bank Limited Working Capital facility is secured by way of first pari passu hypothecation charge on entire current|
assets and movable fixed assets (excluding assets exclusively financed by term lenders) both present
and future of the compeny. The said loan is also secured by first pari pasu charge by way of
equitable mortgage on immovable property being land and building situated at Plat No. 66-67,
Udyog Vihar Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana).

Citi Bank N.A. Working capital facility is secured by First pari passu charge on present and future stocks and book|
debts and first pari passu charge on all movable fixed assets of the Company except the assets|
which are exclusively charged to any lender for term loan facility. The said loan is also secured by
way of equitable mortgage on land & building located at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-I,

Gurgaon (Haryana).
*+* Reasons for material discrepancies
. Discounted
Quarter (,;::d:,;: Provisions Trade Total Remarks
et Receivables
June 2021 1,369.05 2,269.22 (1,785.27) 1,853.00 |Quarterly statements filed with the bank were based on
September 2021 1,560.49 2,965.97 (3,731.68) 794,78 |provisional numbers and difference is mainly on account
December 2021 116797 2,462.06 | (3,476.09) 153.94 of goods in transit and provisions and also on account of
— L — - t of trade receivables discounted through sales
March 2022 - (215.34) (3,525.28)| (3,740.62) | invoice discounting facility.




ASK Autemotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)

Notes forming part of dalone fi ial (continued)
CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stuted)
43 The Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the ining lease p di d at the i ] borrowing rate and has measured right-of-use asset at an amount
equal lo lease liability.
Right of use assets (net block):
Particulars Amount
As at 1 April 2021 I 17782
Additions 1.702.94
Deletions/Adjustment i (371.35)
| Amortisation during the year 1 672.01
As at 31 March 2022 1,437.40
Additions -
Deletions/Adjustment (75.29)
Amortisation during the year ]
As at 31 March 2023
Lease liability:
Particulars Amount
As at 1 April 2021 427.42
Additions 1,649.37
Deletions/Adj 26.68
Finance cost for the year 128.17
Repayment made during the year (including 716.00
Interest) o
A_s at 31 March 2022 1,462.28
Additions |
Deletions/Adjustment 90.81
Fmimce con for the yvear 79.18
Repayment made during the year (including 708.09
Unicrest)
As at 31 March 2023 742.56
Maturity profile of Lease liability;
Year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars | within 1 year| 1-3 years 3-5 years| i Above 5 years| Total
Lease payments (Cash) 687.97 88.16 - i 776.13
Less:~ Interest payments B | 29.28 429 F i 33.57
Lease Principal | 658.69 83.87 B - 742.56
Year ended 31 March 2022
Particulars within 1 ynr] 1-3 years 3-5 years Above 5 years| Tntal|
Lease payments (Cash) 734.71] 829.52 19,06, - 1,583.29
Less:- Interest payrents 83.08| 37.77| 0.16| E 121.01
Lease Principal 651.63] 79175 1890 | 1,462.28
Followinz amount has been recognised in standalonc statement of profit and loss account: .
Particulars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Amortisation on right of us¢ assel (refer 640.47 672.01
note 4A|
Interest on lease liabilities {refer note 29) 79.18 12817
Expenses related to short term leases (included 57.59 33.37
in Rent under other expenses) (refer note 31)
Total amount recognized in standalone 777.24 833.55
statement of profit and loss
44 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 7 "Statement of cash flows"- changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Particulars Non- current borrowings Current borrowings Interest accrued on Total
(inc. current maturities) (refer note 20) borrowings
(refer note 15) {refer note 22)
Opening balance as at 1 April 2021 5,401.53 2,587.88 24.60 8,014.01
(a) Changes from financing cash flow 1,063.82 1,414.00 {667.94) 1,809.88
(b) Interest charge to standalone statement of profit and loss - 664.66 664.66
{c) Amortisation of Bank charges during the year 0.98 - {0.98) -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2022 6,466.33 4,001.88 20.34 10,488.55
Opening balance as at 1 April 2022 6,466.33 4,001.88 20.34 10,488.55
(a) Changes from financing cash flow 1,264.13 4,617.05 (977.04) 4,904.14
(b) Interest charge to standalone statement of profit and loss - - 1,002.56 1,002.56
(c) Amortisation of Bank charges during the year 1.06 - (1.06) -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 7,731.52 8,618.93 44.80 16,395.25

refer note 43 for changes in liablity related to leases.
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ASK Automoetive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automative Private Limited)

Notes forming part of

(continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amonnts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

45 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
A Disaggregation of revenue

The Company has performed a disaggregated analysis of revenues considering the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues. This includes discl of by geography and
timing of recognition.
i For the year ended| For the year ended
R fi
evenue from operations M March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue by geography
Domestic* 246,641.74 191,540.69
Export” 9,714.00 8,857.09
Total 256,355.74 200,397.78
Adjustment for goods in transit net of opening-:
Domestic (395.64) (284.42)
Export 1417.61) 1.196.80 |
Total (813.25) 912.38
Net Revenue from operations 255.542.49 201.710.16
Revenue by time
Revenue recognised at point in time 255,542.49 201,310.16
Revenue recognised over time - =
Total 25554249 201,110.16
* Export benefit has been included in domestic reverme INR 203.7 Lakhs (31 March 2022 : INR 248.4 Lakhs)
" Indirect/Deemed exports included in export revenue INR 102.11 Lakhs (31 March 2022 : 147.08 Lakhs)
B. Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended|
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance 674.62 417.94
Add: Net Addition during the year 1,078.85 668.32
Less: Revenue recognised during the year 573.02 411.64
|Closing Batance 1,180.45 674.62

€. _Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Deseription As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Non-current ___ Current Non-current Current
Contract liabilities related to sale of goods
Advance from customers - 1,18045 - 674.62
D. Reconciliation of revenue recoznised in standalone statement of Profit and Loss with contract price

For the year ended For the year ended
Description 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract price 258,348.85 204,084.4)
Less: Discount, rebates, credits etc. R 2.806.36 | 2,774.25
Revenue from operations as per standal tat of Profit and Loss 255,542.49 201,310.16

46 Other disclosures required as per schedute III-

(2) Analvtical Ratios
Ratios Numerator Denominator 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 % Variance
[} Current Ratio {in times) Current assets Current liabilities 1.12 1.09 2.45%
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio (in times)* Tatal Debt (including lease Shareholder's equity 0.25 0.18 38.07%
liabilitiy)
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ralio (in times) Earnings available for Debt Debt Service (Interest and 512 5.05 1.30%
Service (Profit after lease payments + Principal
tax+Depreciation & repayments)
Amortisalion+{inance cost)
(d) Return on Equity Ratio (in %)3 Total comprehensive income | Average shareholders equity 20.06% 13.63%) 47.13%
(¢) Inventory turnover Ratio (in times) Cost of Goods Sold® Average Inventory 12.84 11,76 9.24%|
(f) Trade Receivables turnover Ratio (in times) |Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 12.4] 12.06 2.92%
(g) Trade payables turnover Ratio (in times) Purchase + Other Average trade payables 12.63 10.56 | 19.67%
{h) Net capital turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue from operations Working Capital (current 60.76 68.98 | -11.92%
assets -
current |abibities)
Li} Net profit Ratio (in %} Total comprehensive income | Revenue from operations 5.32% 4.45%) 19.51%
(i) Retum on Capital employed (in %)" EBIT (Profit before tax + Capital employed 26.78% 17.76% 50.80%,
Finance cost - Interest income | (AverageTotal Equity +
on loans) Average Non Current |
liabilities - Average loans &
Investment- Average Assets
held for sale}
(k) Return on investment (in %) Tncome generated from Average invested funds in - -
_ltrea i treasury i

Remarks for variance (in case of variance more than 25%)
*During the cnrrent year, there has been increase in the total debt (including lease liability) of INR 5,162.51 lakhs for capital expenditure and working capital requirement as against increase in

shareholder's equity by INR 2,507.98 lakhs.

*During the current year, net profit after tax has been increased by INR 4,636.80 Lakhs as ugainst increase in average shareholders' equity by INR 2,043.63 Lakhs.
#During the current year, EBIT has been increased by INR 6,340.44 Lakhs as against decrease in Capital Employed by INR 156.88 Lakhs.
€Cost of goods sold includes cost of raw material consumed and change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress .
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ASK Autometive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automoetive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of d (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

{Alt amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

(b) The Company has not invested or traded in crypto currency & virtual currency.

(¢} The Company has not advanced or loancd or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including forcign eutities (i diarics) with the
(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

{i1) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

4 4

@

=

(whether

Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantce, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(¢) The borrowings obtained by the company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken.

(f) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

that the intermediary shall:

d in writing or otherwise) that the

(g) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of acct that has been dered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under

the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(h) There has not been any proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules

made thereunder.
(i) Relationship with struck off companies

The Company has no ion/ Balance with companies struck off under section 248 of the Act to the best of the knowledge of the Company’s management except below;
Name of struck off company Nature of transactions Balance outstanding Relationship
As at 31 March 2023| As at 31 March 2022
Absolut Info Systems Private Limited Payables/vendor - - Vendor
Perfect Polyplast India Private Limited Payables/vendor - - Vendor
Rohit Industries Group (P} Ltd. Payables/vendor - 0.86 Vendor |

(@) The Company does not have any charges or satisfactions, which is yet to be registered with Registrar of companies, beyond the statutory year prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the

rules made thereunder.

X

=

to the standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the company except the one disclosed in note 3.4.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly exccuted in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in note 3

() The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of scction 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules 2017.

(m) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equi; (including right-of-use assets) or i ible assets or both during the current or previous year.
47 Certain y value or p ges) shown in various tables and paragraphs included in these dalone financial have been off or d as deemed
appropriate by the management of the Company.

48 Previous year figures regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current year's classification.

49 No significant subsequent events have occured post the balance sheet date 31 March 2023 which may require an adi to the dal 1

50 Authorisation of financial statements

The Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were approved by the board of directors on 16 May 2023.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charter ; countants ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) N
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

2ist Floor, DLF Square
Jacaranda Marg, DLF Phase i,
Gurugrem - 122 002
Haryana, Indio

T 491124 462 8099

F +91124 462 8001

Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly
known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) {‘the Holding Company’), its subsidiary (the Holding Company
and its subsidiary together referred to as ‘the Group’), and its joint venture as listed in Appendix 1, which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiary and joint venture, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133
of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, and its joint venture,
as at 31 March 2023, and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated
cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group, and its joint venture in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained together with the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 11 of the Other Matter section below, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

—
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK
Automotive Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont’d)

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
informaticn and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’s
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows of the Group including its joint venture in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and its joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of
its joint venture to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of
the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

e
Chartered Accountanis i 4 ')
\ /
\ /
N ! 7
N ALY



Walker Chandiok & CoLLLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK
Automotive Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controis
with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its joint venture to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group and its joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern; and

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the entities or
business activities within the Group, and its joint venture, to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements, of which we
are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

11.

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets
of ¥ 22,808.10 lakhs and net assets of Z (394.19) lakhs as at 31 March 2023, total revenues of F 4.36 lakhs
and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 76.20 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of
net loss (including other comprehensive income) of ¥ 595.43 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one joint venture, whose financial
statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial

Chartered Accountants



12.

13.

14.

Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK
Automotive Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont’d)

statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary and
joint venture, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act insofar as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiary and joint venture, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the
other auditors, referred to in paragraph 11, on separate financial statements of the subsidiary and joint
venture, we report that the Holding Company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have paid remuneration to their respective directors during the year in accordance
with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we
report that one subsidiary company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Further, we
report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to one joint
venture company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, since
this is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section
197(16) of the Act is not applicable in respect of such subsidiary company and joint venture company.

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the consideration of
the Order reports issued till date by us and by the respective other auditors as meniioned in paragraph 11
above, of companies included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
and covered under the Act we report that:

a) Following are the qualifications/adverse remarks reported by us and the other auditors in the Order
reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023 for which such Order reports have been issued till date and made available to us:

Holding
S | Name cIN Companyl | GRS ortwhich i
No Subsidiary/

Joint Venture qualified or adverse

1 ASK Automotive = U34300DL1988PTC030342 |Holding Company | Clause i(c) and ii(b)

Limited

2 | ASK Automobiles | U34300DL2021PTC381966 | Subsidiary Clause xvii
Private Limited

3 | ASK Fras-Le Friction | U34300DL2017PTC324954 | Joint Venture Clause ii(b), ix(d), xvii
Private Limited and xix

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary and joint
venture incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, we report, to
the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements;

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reparisiof the other auditors;
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK
Automotive Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont’d)

c)

d)

e)

f)

The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;
in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiary company and joint venture company, covered under the Act, none of the
directors of the Group companies and its joint venture company, are disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and joint venture company covered under the Act,
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A’ wherein
we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary
and joint venture incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act:

i. There were no pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 which would impact the consolidated
financial position of the Group, and its joint venture;

ii. ~ The Holding Company, its subsidiary company and joint venture company did not have any long-
term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses
as at 31 March 2023;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary company and joint venture company
covered under the Act, during the year ended 31 March 2023;

iv. a. Therespective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company and joint
venture company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary and joint venture
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, on the date of this audit report as
disclosed in note 47(b) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary
company or its joint venture company te or in any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding
Company, or any such subsidiary company or its joint venture company (the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and joint
venture company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary and joint venture
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, on the date of this audit report as
disclosed in the nate 47(c) to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, no funds
have been regeived by the Hoiding Company or its subsidiary company or its joint venture
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK
Automotive Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont’d)

company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, or
any such subsidiary company, its joint venture company shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the
subsidiary and joint venture, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the management representations under sub-clauses iv(a) and
iv(b) above contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Holding Company, its subsidiary company and joint venture company have not declared or
paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023; and

vi. Proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software
which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firpy' istration No.: 001076N/N500013

. X "\\ﬁ__ PN,
Membership No.: 508685 29 eOS
UDIN: 23508685BGYCQT2827

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK
Automotive Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont’d)

Appendix 1

List of entities included in the consolidated financial statements

S. No. Name of the entity Relation
1 ASK Automobiles Private Limited Subsidiary
2 ASK Fras-Le Friction Private Limited Joint Venture
PSRN
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of ASK
Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Annexure A

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of ASK Automotive Limited (‘the
Holding Company’), its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as
‘the Group'), and its joint venture as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company,
its subsidiary company and joint venture company, which are companies covered under the Act, as
at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and joint venture
company, which are companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (‘ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company'’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and joint venture
company, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, and the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of ASK
Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and joint venture
company as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controis with reference to consolidated financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary company and joint
venture company, the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and joint venture company, which
are companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on based on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it
relates to one subsidiary company, which is a company covered under the Act, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of ¥ 22,808.10 Lakhs and net assets of ¥ (394.19) Lakhs as at 31
March 2023, total revenues of ¥ 4.36 Lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to 2 76.20 Lakhs for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements also include the Group's share of net loss (including other comprehensive
income) of ¥ 595.43 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023, in respect of one joint venture company,
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of ASK
Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

which is a company covered under the Act, whose internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements have not been audited by us. The internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in so far as it relates to such subsidiary company and joint venture company have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our report
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements for the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and joint venture
company, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to such subsidiary
company and joint venture company is based solely on the reports of the auditors of such companies.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done by
and on the reports of the other auditors.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's istration No.: 001076N/N500013

A 0 Y s N

dl‘ﬁ f l;’ \
Ashish Gera S\ JE
Partner LAY

Membership No.: 508685 g A
UDIN: 23508685BGYCQT2827

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023
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ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 45,649.36 46,301.77
Capital work-in-progress 3 11,824.53 285.01
Right-of-use assets 4A 8,428.43 8,848.03
Goodwill 4B 18,191.01 18,191.01
Other intangible assets 4C 312.83 418.57
Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 404.06 -
(ii) Loans 5A 799.88 876.97
(iii) Other financial assets 6 1,001.26 872.77
Non-current tax assets (net) 7 66.31 495.05
Other non-current assets 8 1.395.25 421.35
Total non-current assets 88,072.92 76,710.53
Current assets
Inventories 9 15,357.62 12,436.95
Financial assets
(i) Loan 5A 266.63 -
(ii) Trade receivables 10 21,044.43 20,116.05
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 222.69 130.18
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12 15.00 26.48
(v) Other financial assets 6 562.34 119.88
Current tax assets (net) TA 2.06 -
Other current assets 8 2.577.02 910.30
Total current assets 40,047.79 33,739.84
Assets held for sale 3.6 - 106.00
Total assets 128,120.71 110,556.37
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 3,942.85 4,017.85
Other equity 14 60,434.02 59.172.98
Total equity 64,376.87 63,190.83
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 20,884.67 10,234.95
(ii) Lease liabilities 16 265.18 873.09
Provisions 17 2,565.26 2,40334
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 19 2,796.11 297142
Total non-current liabilities 26,511.22 16,482.80
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 10,916.32 5,744.44
(ii) Lease Liabilities 16 721.81 682.31
(iii) Trade payables
(a) Tota! outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21 4,319.55 3,174.96
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 21 12,665.64 14,709.26
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 22 3,876.45 2,122.61
Provisions 17 722.13 554.30
Current tax liabilities (net) 23 281.28 268.87
Other current liabilities 18 3.729.44 3,625.99
Total current liabilities 37,232.62 30,882.74
Total liabilities 63,743.84 47,365.54
Total equity and liabilities 128,120.71 110,556.37
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements (1 to 51).
This is the consolidated balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
’ > =
/ ws r/' ¢ .
b Nid ' ( I TSV P_)’L"" /
/\/ - L .| —
Ashish Gera ; "\ / Kuldip Singh Rathee Prashant Rathee Naresh Kumar Rajani Sharma
Partner NP i Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 508685 NREN A rc DIN: 00041032 DIN: 00041081 M.No. 14391
Place: Gurugram Piace: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023 Date: 16 May 2023 ON\ or1/ LN
‘< SN
) O\

< <
< NEW DELHI| =




ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 24 255,516.66 201,308.35
Other income 25 L111.16 1,117.66
Total income 256.627.82 202.426.01
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 26 179,857.90 140,380.75
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 27 (1,679.63) (1,035.42)
Employee benefits expense 28 13,936.67 12,270.21
Finance costs 29 1,119.00 808.24
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 6,070.39 5,590.99
Other expenses 31 40,230.58 32,822.61
Dies for own use (471.87) 1237.95)
Total expenses 239.063.04 190.599.43
Profit before share of net profits/(losses) of joint venture accounted for using 17,564.78 11,826.58
equity method and taxes
Share of net losses of joint venture accounted for using equity method (net of taxes) (589.21) (527.50)
Profit before tax 16,975.57 11,299.08
Tax expenses
Current Tax
- Current year 32 4,851.05 3,168.18
- Prior years 32 6.63 (13.97)
Deferred tax 32 (177:11) 1120.99)
Total tax expenses 4.680.57 3.033.22
Profit after tax for the year 12,295.00 8.265.86
Other comprehensive income:
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 717 126.61
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in 32 (1.80) (31.87)
subsequent years
Share of Other comprehensive (loss) of joint venture accounted for using (6.67) (1.55)
equity method (net of taxes)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax (1.30) 93.19
Total comprehensive income for the year 12,293.70 8.359.05
Earnings per equity share (INR)
Basic and Diluted 33 6.18 4.09

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements (1 to 51).

This is the consolidated statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Partner
Membership No.: 508685

Executive Director Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00041081

Managing Director
DIN: 00041032

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023
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Rajani SHarma
Company Secretary
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ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2023

CIN: U34300DL1988PL.C030342
(All amounis are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

A.  Cash flow from operating activities

C.

Profit before tax 16,975.57 11,299.08
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Share of net losses of joint venture 589.21 527.50
Depreciation and amortisation expense 6,070.39 5,590.99
Excess liability / provision written back (138.43) (393.11)
Provision for doubtful debts 12.12 0.01
Net unrealised (profit)/ loss on foreign currency transaction (16.30) (64.77)
Government grant (284.26) (247.45)
Loss/(Gain) on sale/discarding of property, plant and equipment 28.10 (2.50)
Gain on assets held for sale (6.00) -
Amount written off 20.74 -
Interest income classified as investing cash flow (204.03) (162.37)
Finance cost 1,107.91 794.21
Gain on lease modifications (17.23) 10.261
Operating profit before working capital changes 24,137.79 17,341,33
Movements in working capital :
Change in trade receivables (924.38) (4,193.56)
Change in inventories (2,920.67) (1,168.86)
Change in trade payables (898.85) 2,947.87
Change in financial assets (358.08) (168.77)
Change in other assets (1,681.98) (228.22)
Change in other financial liabilities 264.25 1,311.86
Change in provisions 336.91 279.84
Change in other liabilities 340.90 1,317.05
Cash generated from operations 18,295.89 17,438.54
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (4,437.86) (3,016.86)
Net cash flow from operating activities {A) 13.858.03 14.421.68
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capitel work in progress) (15,412.55) (8,575.76)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 424.06 86.95
Proceeds from assets held for sale 106.00 318.00
Purchase of non current investments (net) (1,200.50) -
(Purchase)/Redemption of fixed deposits (net) (206.54) 10.33
Interest received 203.41 164.20
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (16.086.12) (7.996.28)
Cash flow from financing activities
Movement of short term borrowings (net) 4,617.05 1,414.00
Proceeds from long term borrowings 13,553.37 8,210.02
Repayment of long term borrowings (including current maturities) (2,349.87) (1,635.02)
Principal payment of finance lease liability (Refer Note 44) (886.19) (7,943.36)
Interest payment of finance lease liability (Refer Note 44) (86.64) (129.55)
Expenses paid towards increase in authorised share capital - (2.26)
Interest paid (1,430.49) (673.19)
Payment for buyback of equity shares (9,000.00) (5,992.50)
Paviment of tax on buyback of equity shares (2,096.63) 11,396.01)
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) 2.320.60 (8.147.87)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 92.51 (1,722.47)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the fi ial year 130.18 1,852.65
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year (refer note 11) 222.6% 130.18
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the consolidated statement of cash flows : As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprises of the following :
- Cash on hand 5.83 6.45
- Balance in current accounts 216.86 123.73
Bal as per lidated stat. t of cash flows 222.69 130.18

The consolidated statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements (1 to 51).

This is the consolidated statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Partner N Managing Director
Membership No.: 508685 om— DIN: 00041032
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 16 May 2023

Date: 16 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)

P

Prashant Rathee
Executive Director
DIN: 00041081

—

Naresh Kumar
Chief Financial Officer

Rajani Sharma
Company Secretary
M.No. 14391



ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 31 March 2023
CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital*
As at 31 March 2023
Balance as at 1 April 2022 (equity share of INR 2 each) Changes in equity share capital Balance as at 31 March 2023

(eyuity share of INR 2 each}
4,017.85 (75.00) 3,942.85

As at 31 March 2022
Balance as at 1 April 2021 (equity share of INR 2 each) Changes in equity share capital Balance as at 31 March 2022

{equity share of INR 2 each}
4,068.85 151.00} 4,017.85

* Refer Note No. 13 for details

B. Other Equity #
As at 31 March 2023

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Capital redemption General reserve Securities Retained earnings Total ? ther
reserve premium equity
As at 01 April 2022 59.00 10.05 94.05 59,009.88 59,172.98
Profit for the year - - - 12,295.00 12,295.00
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - - (1.30) (1.30)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 12,293.70 12,293.70
Less: Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve (refer note 13(vii)) 75.00 - - (75.00) -
Less: Buyback of Shares (refer note 13(vii)) - - - (8,925.00) (8,925.00)
Less: Income Tax on buyback of shares - - - (2,096.63) (2,096.63)
Less: Expenses for increase in authorised share capital (refer note 14) - - - (11.03) (11.03)
As at 31 March 2023 134.00 10.05 94.05 60,195.92 60,434.02
As at 31 March 2022
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Capital redemption General reserve Securitics Retained earnings Total other
reserve premium equity

As at T April 2021 8.00 10.05 94.05 58,041.60 58,153.70
Profit for the year - - - 8,265.86 8,265.86
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - - 93.19 93.19
Total comprehensive i for the vear - - - 8.359.05 8,359.05
Less: Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve (refer note 13(vii)) 51.00 - - (51.00) -
Less: Buyback of Shares (refer note 13({vii)) - - - (5,941.50) (5,941.50)
Less: Income Tax on buyback of shares - - - (1,396.01) (1,396.01)
Less: Expenses for increase in authorised share capital (refer note 14) - - - (2.26) (2.26)
As 2t 31 March 2022 59.00 10.05 94.05 59,009.88 §9,172.98
For nature and purpose of each reserve refer note 14.1
# refer note 14 for details.

The accompanving notes are an integral part of the lidated financial statements (1 to 51).

This is the consolidated statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)

Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Ashish Gera Kuldip Singh Rathee  Prashant Rathee Naresh Kumar Rajani fharma

Partner Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: 508685 DIN: 00041032 DIN: 00041081 M.No. 14391

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2023 Date: 16 May 2023




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

1.

2.

Corporate Information

ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited) (‘the Holding Company’)
is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India with its registered office situated at Flat No. 104, 929/1,
Naiwala, Faiz Road, Karol Bagh, New Delhi-110005. The Holding Company was incorporated as a private
limited (ASK Automotive Private Limited) on 18 January 1988, has one wholly owned subsidiary and one
Joint Venture Company in India. The Holding Company during the year passed a special resolution in the
extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders held on 7 December 2022 for conversion to a public limited
Company. The Holding Company received a certificate of incorporation from the Registrar of Companies on
6 January 2023 and was converted to a public company.

The Holding Company together with its subsidiary is herein referred to as "the Group”. The Holding Company
is engaged in the business of manufacturing of auto components including advance braking systems, aluminum
light weighting precision solutions and safety control cables primarily for automobile industry. The Holding
Company is supplier to the major leading Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) in India like Honda,
Hero MotoCorp, Bajaj Auto, TVS Motors, Suzuki, Yamaha, Mahindra, Royal Enfield, OLA, Ather, Revolt,
Maruti, Piaggio etc. and having strong presence in secondary market (Independent aftermarket). The Group
has manufacturing facilities in the states of Haryana, Karnataka, Gujarat, Himachal Pradesh and Uttarakhand.
The Subsidiary has a manufacturing facility under development in the state of Rajasthan.

These Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (reporting date) have been
prepared as per the requirements of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

Basis of preparation
a. Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(‘MCA’) under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable. The Group has uniformly applied
the accounting policies during the periods presented.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized and approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 16 May 2023.

b. Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (‘INR’), which is also the Group’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs upto two place of decimal,
unless otherwise indicated.

¢. Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The consolidated financial statements have been

prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Defined beneﬁt; Gassehwjlhablllty Present value of defined benefits obligations




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

d. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities on the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and future periods. Information about judgments
made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives
of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility
of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual
defined benefit expenses.

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based
on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can
be utilized.

Significant judgments

Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheet date, on the basis of the management judgment, changes in
facts and legal aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of disclosure against the outstanding contingent
liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Classification of leases — The Group enters into leasing arrangements for various premises. The assessment
(including measurement) of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of
ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to extend/terminate etc. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to extend
or to terminate.

e. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has an established control framework with
respect to measurement of fair values. This includes treasury division which is responsible for overseeing all
significant fair Valueﬁsaii}?‘sqlents, including Level 3 fair values, and report directly to chief financial
officer. & )

(3
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ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as
possible. The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the changes have occurred.

f.  Principles of consolidation

i) Subsidiary

Subsidiary includes the entity over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed or has right to variable return from its involvement with the entity, and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power (that is, existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities)
over the entity. The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls the entity, in case the under-lying facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to above mentioned parameters that determine the existence of
control.

Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group, and they are
deconsolidated from the date when control ceases.

The consolidated financial statements of subsidiary arc fully consolidated on a line-by-line basis. Intragroup
balances and transactions, and income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
while preparing the said consolidated financial statements. The un-realised gains resulting from intra-group
transactions are also eliminated. Similarly, the un-realised losses are eliminated, unless the transaction
provides evidence as to impairment of the asset transferred.

ii) Equity accounted investees

The Group’s interest in equity accounted investees comprise interests in joint venture.

A joint venture is an agreement in which the Group has joint control and has right to the net assets of the
arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.

Interest in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognized at cost
which includes the transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements
incudes the Group’s share of Profit and Loss and other Comprehensive Income (OCI) of equity-accounted
investee until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

Dividends received or receivable from joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of the investment

Where the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

AND
ST




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automoetive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

2A.

Transactions elimination on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transaction with equity accounted investees are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that here is no evidence of
impairment.

The entities considered in the consolidated financial statements in the year are listed below:

S. Name of the entity Country of Nature of % of Ownership

No. Incorporation Interest 31 March 2023

1 ASK Automobiles Private | India Subsidiary 100%
Limited*

2 ASK  Fras-Le Friction | India Joint Venture 49%
Private Limited

*ASK Automobiles Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary since its incorporation on 7 June 2021.

Changes in ownership interests

The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

When the Company loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss) in the same manner as would be required
if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly
controlled entity.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Current-non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the normal operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c) itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months-4fis 1 the tebo




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)
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Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as
non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified
as non-current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents. The Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification
of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates at the date
of the transaction.

Measurement at reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non- monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences on restatement/ settlement of all monetary items are recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for
those carried at fair value through Profit and Loss which are measured initially at fair value. However, trade
receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing
components.




ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PL.C030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

ii.

iil.

.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost; or
- fair value through profit or loss CFVTPL’)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at EVTPL.

Investment in equity instrument are classified at fair value through profit or loss, unless the Company
irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Group does not have any fixed liabilities
under the category of FVTPL.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group de-recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Group also de-recognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in consolidated
statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assp,t‘: ?ff.ﬁ(pilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated ba
where there i€ a legallv\éh orceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intgnt
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ASK Automotive Limited (formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)
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i,

i,

on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

Equity Investment in joint venture

Investments in equity instruments of joint venture is accounted for at cost less any provision for impairment
in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial Statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Freehold Land is carried at cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at
cost of acquisition or construction which includes capitalized borrowing cost. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable purchase
taxes or levies, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use
and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. After initial recognition, items of
property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and / or accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labor, any other costs directly attributable / allocable to bring the item to working condition for its intended
use.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising on sale/disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended usc at the
reporting date.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Depreciation

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method based on the
estimated useful life of each asset as determined by the management. Depreciation is charged over the number
of shift a plant or equipment is used in the business in accordance with schedule II of the Companies Act.
Depreciation for assets purchased during the period is proportionately charged i.e. from the date on which
asset is ready for use. Depreciation for assets sold during the period is proportionately charged i.e. up to the
date on which asset is disposed off.
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The useful lives have been determined based on internal evaluation done by management and are in line with
the estimated useful lives, to the extent prescribed by the Schedule II of the Companies Act.

Life in Years

Buildings 30
Plant and machinery 151020
Electrical installations 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipments 5
Vehicles 8
Dies and Moulds 7to 10
Computers 3

Based on internal valuation done by the management, Hangers and trollies are depreciated at year end based
on the physical availability of respective assets.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Modification or extension to an existing asset, which is of capital nature, and which becomes an integral part
thereof is depreciated prospectively over the remaining useful life of that asset.

Goodwill

Represents amounts paid over the identifiable assets towards Business Takeover transaction is carried
forward based on assessment of benefits arising from such goodwill in future. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually at each balance sheet date in accordance with the Company’s procedure for determining
the recoverable amount of such assets. The recoverable amount of Cash Generating Unit (CGU) is based on
value in use. The value in use for Goodwill is determined based on discounted cash flow projections.

Other Intangible Assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition,
an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Amortisation

Technical know-how is being amortised over a period of seven years on a straight line basis.

Computer software is being amortised over a period of six years on a straight line basis.

Distribution network

Represents allocation of amounts paid towards Business Takeover transaction is carried forward based on

assessment of benefits arising from such network in future. Such expenditure is amortised on period of ten
years on straight line basis.
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The above periods also represent the management’s estimation of economic useful life of the respective
intangible assets.

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise of raw material, work in progress, finished goods, packing material and stores
and spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

The basis of determining costs for various categories of inventories are as follows: -

Raw materials, components, stores and spares, - Weighted Average Method

Packing material, Loose Tools, gauges and

instruments

Work-in-progress and finished goods - Material cost plus appropriate proportion of

labour, manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related
finished goods. Raw materials held for use in production of finished goods are not written down below cost,
except in cases where material prices have declined, and it is estimated that the cost of the finished goods
will exceed its net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-
item basis.

Non-current assets held for sale

The Group classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale rather than through continuing use. Such non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any expected loss is recognized
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met
only when the assets is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold. The
Group treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when:

i. The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset;

ii. An active programme to locatc a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable);

iii. The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value;

iv. The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification, and

v. Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the
standalone balance sheet.
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)
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Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business and reflects Group’s unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the
passage of time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain
significant financing components. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less loss allowance.

Transfer of Financial Assets

The Group transfers certain trade receivables under invoice discounting arrangements. These do not qualify
for derecognition, due to existence of the recourse arrangement. Consequently the proceeds received from
such transfers with recourse arrangements are recorded as loans from banks / financial institutions and
classified under short-term borrowings.

Impairment of assets
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime
ECL. The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL model, are recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is indication of any
impairment. If any indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Assets that do not generate
independent cash flows are grouped together into cash generating units (CGU). An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is determined:

. in case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and

ii. in case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that gencrates identified, independent cash flows),
at the higher of the cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use.

(The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate
(pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the respective company suitably
adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset). For this purpose, a cash generating unit
is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets

Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined net'of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest rate method. Borrowings are de-recognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(n) Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus, etc. The undiscounted amount of short-
term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognised as an expense in
consolidated statement of profit and loss as the related service is rendered by employees.

ii) Other long-term employee benefits:

Other long-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss as and when they accrue. The Group determines the liability using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
with actuarial valuations carried out as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses in respect of such
benefits are charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

iii) Post employment obligations
a. Defined Contribution Plans:

The Group makes payments to defined contribution plans such as provident fund and employees’ state
insurance. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

b. Defined Benefit Plans:
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present

value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss.
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments
are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

(o) Provisions

(p)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the balance sheet date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms
of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

However, Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not received by the Group on its own account. Rather, it is tax
collected on value added to the commodity or supplies made by the seller on behalf of the government.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as follows:
Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the
customer, gencrally on delivery of the goods and there are no unfulfilled obligations. Revenue is measured
based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, service level credits,
performance bonuses, price concessions, staggered discount on early payments and incentives, if any, as
specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Sale of services

The Group recognizes revenue from sales of services over time, because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group. Revenue from services provided is recognised
upon rendering of the services, in accordance with the agreed terms with the customers where ultimate
collection of the revenue is reasonably expected.

Other operating revenue

All export benefits under various policies of Government of India are recognised on accrual basis when no
significant uncertainties as to the amount of consideration that would be derived and as to its ultimate
collection exist.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis using the effective interest method.

\\‘\v/,";
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Contract assets

Contract assets is right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer and
performance obligation satisfied. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional, in the nature of unbilled receivables. Upon completion of the attached
condition and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade
receivables upon invoicing. A receivables represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer or has raised the invoice in
advance. If a customer pays considcration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilitics are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer)

Government grants

Government grants related to property, plant and equipment are included in the non-current liabilities as
deferred government grant and are credited to Profit and loss on the basis of fulfillment of export obligation
and presented within other income in accordance with the primary conditions associated with purchase of
assets and related grants.

Export benefit entitlements are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss when the right to
receive benefit is established in respect of the exports made and the realisation is reasonably certain.

Leases

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of leases
The Group enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several
factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option
to extend/purchase etc.

Recognition and initial measurement
At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance
sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the
asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement
date (net of any incentives received).

Subsequent measurement

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Group also
assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At lease commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily he
Group’s mcremental barrowmg rate (IBR) Lease payments included in the measurement of th ;
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index or rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and
increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in
in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is
reflected in the right-of-use asset.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising
a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in
consolidated statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its IBR to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay for last long-term funds
raised.

Income-tax

Tax expense recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and
current tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax assets on unrealised tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss
will be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Group’s forecast of future
operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of
any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside consolidated
statement of profit and loss is recognised outside consolidated statement of profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential
equity shares outstanding during the period end, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be
estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed. Contingent assets are
neither recognised nor disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and
related income are recogn\ised in the period in which the change occurs.
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Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition, construction or erection of qualifying assets are
capitalised. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates
on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank. Apart from this
derivatives are used as short term investment instruments as a treasury management function.

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognized in net profit
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, the derivatives are measured
at fair value through consolidated statement of profit and loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are
included in other income.

(y) Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 31 March 2023, MCA
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

a) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant
to the consolidated financial statements.

b) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8
to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company has
evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its consolidated financial statements.

¢) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of
this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (continued}

3.6 Assets classified as held for sale

The Holding Company was allotted plot no. GH-33 situated at Sector-1, IMT Manesar, Gurugram, by Haryana State Industrial and Infrastructure Development
Corporation ("HSIIDC") vide RLA no. HSIIDC/CGHS/Manesar/2007/599-600 dated 8 January 2007 for the purpose of building a group housing project.
Subsequently, the Holding Company has constructed an apartment building on this land including car parking and service basement, known as “ASK Greens”
according to scheme of HSIIDC. During the financial year 2017-18 , upon completion of construction of flats, the Holding Company filed a deed of declaration
with sub-registrar, Manesar, thereby converting the aforesaid land and building into 40 flats having a total value of INR 3,640 Lakhs. These group housing flats
had been classified as held for sale, details as follows:

Particulars Amount
As at 1 April 2021 424.00
Sold during the year 318.00
As at 31 March 2022 106.00
Sold during the vear 106.00
As at 31 March 2023 -

4 Right of use assets, Goodwill & Other intangible assets

4A  Right of use assets

Gross block Amount
As at 1 April 2021 935.49
Additions ) 9.152.98
Disposal/Adjusiment (371.35)
As at 31 March 2022 9.717.12
Additions 414.98
Disposal/Adjustment 1183.74)
As at 31 March 2023 9.948.36
A lated Amorti

As at 1 April 2021 157.67
Charge for the year* 711.42
Disposal/Adiustment -
As at 31 March 2022 869.09
Charge for the year* 759.2%
Disposal/Adjustment (108.451
As at 31 March 2023 1,519.93
Net Block

As at 31 March 2023 8.428.43
As at 31 March 2022 8.848.03

* Amortisation of leasehold land of INR 76.54 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 30.93 lakhs) has been transferred to Capital work-in-progress.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

4 Right of use assets, Goodwill & Other intangible assets {continued)
4B _Goodwill

Gross block Amount
As at 1 April 2021 18.191.01
Additions -
Disposal -
As at 31 March 2022 18,191.01
Additions -
Disposal -
As at 31 March 2023 18.191.01
Accumulated Empairment

As at 1 April 2021 -
Charge for the year -
Disposal -
As at 31 March 2022 -
Charge for the year -
Disposal -
As at 31 March 2023 -
Net Block

As at 31 March 2023 18.191.01
As at 31 March 2022 18,191.01

The carrying value of goodwill arose at the time of business purchase of erstwhile APK Automotive and AK Auto Industries by the Holding Company amounting
to INR 18,191.01 Lakhs, has been tested for impairment annually at each balance sheet date in accordance with the Holding Company's procedure for determining
the recoverable amounts of the after market business which is a cash generating unit (CGU). The recoverable amount of CGU is based on value in use. The value
in use for Goodwill is determined based on discounted cash flow projections. These calculations uses management assumptions and discounted pre tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a 5 year period. Cash flow projection beyond 5 years time period are extrapolated using
the estimated terminal growth rate. Certain key assumptions considered by the mar t for impairment testing of CGU are stated below:

» Weighted average cost of capital: 16.20%

» Revenue growth rate: 13%

* Terminal growth rate: 4%

The management of the Holding Company believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the key assumptions used in the value in use calculation would
cause the carrying value of the CGU to materially exceed its value in use.

5

4C Other intangible assets

Gross block Distribution Network  Computer Software Technical Know How Total
As at 1 April 2021 493.00 563.12 160.60 1.216.72
Additions - 6.12 - 6.12
Disposal - - - -
As at 31 March 2022 493.00 569.24 160.60 1,222.84
Additions - 5.01 3.60 8.61
Disposal - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 493.00 574.25 164.20 1,231.45
Accumulated Amortisation

As at 1 April 2021 147.90 388.96 119.12 655.98
Charge for the year 49.30 80.17 18.82 148.29
Disposal - - - -
As at_31 March 2022 197.20 469.13 137.94 804.27
Charge for the year 49.30 45.97 19.08 114.35
Disposal -
As at 31 March 2023 246.50 515.10 157.02 918.62
Net Block

As at 31 March 2023 246.50 59.15 7.18 312.83
As at 31 March 2022 295.80 100.11 22.66 418.57

4C.1 The Group does not have any outstanding contractual commitments to purchase any items of intangible assets.

(This space has been intentionally left biank)
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5  [Investments As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Nos Amount Nos Amount

Non current
Investments carrying at cost (fully paid up)
Unqueted
In joint venture
ASK Fras-Le Friction Private Limited (face value INR 10 each) 43,120,000 404.06 31,115,000 -
Total investments 404.06 =

5.1 Carrying value of INR 404.06 Lakhs as against investment of INR 4,312.00 Lakhs due to share of losses in Joint Venture.

5.2 Refer note 35 for information about interest in Joint Venture.

5.3 The Holding Company has received an offer letter dated 14 December 2022 from ASK Fras-Le Friction Private Limited, Joint Venture of the Holding Company (‘JV'} for subscription of its
1,20,05,000 (One Crore Twenty Lakhs Five Thousand) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each. With the consent of the Board, Holding Company has invested an amount of INR 12,00,50,000 (Rupees Twelve
Crores Fifty Thousand) in the JV on 21 December 2022 for subscription of its 1,20,05,000 (One Crore Twenty Lakhs Five Thousand) Equity Shares of INR 10/~ each, on rights basis.

5A Loans As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Current __Non-current Current Non-current
Loans to related parties
Unsecured and considered good, unless atherwise stated
Loan to ASK Fras-le Friction Private Limited 266.63 799.88 - 876.97
Taotal Loans 266.63 799.88 - 876.97
Loan given is receivable in 4 equal yearty installments of INR 266.63 Lakhs commencing from 20 January 2024 and carries Interest rate of 9% p.a receivable on quarterly intervals.
As at 31 March 2022, Carrying value of Loan has been reduced by INR 189.53 Lakhs. For detailed information, refer note 35.2.
6  Other financial assets As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months (refer note 12) - 219.30 - -
Security deposits 353.89 781.96 73.68 872.77
Other financial assets® 208.45 - 46.20 =
Total other fipancial asset 562.34 1,001.26 119.88 872.77
*This amount includes INR 162.92 Lakhs as at 31 March 2023 towards Initial public offer related transaction costs, which the Holding Company will recover or adjust this amount from the selling
shareholders or reserves and surplus in proportion 1o the offer for sale or fresh issue of equity shares respectively to be decided in due course. Refer note 39 also.

7  Non-current tax assets (net) As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Advance income tax® 66.31 495.05
Total non-current tax assets {net) 66.31 495,05
*Net of provisions for income tax 7,021.19 11,188.32

7A _ Current tax assets (net) As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Ad income tax (including TDS and TCS) 2.06 -
Total current tax assets (net) _ 206 =

8  Other assets As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Current __ Nen-current Current Non-current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances to suppliers 38847 . 145.64 -
Prepaid expenses 203.90 69.56 178.65 55.21
Capital advances - 1,325.49 - 365.94
Advance to employees 13.52 - 6.22 -
Balances with government authorities 1,301.20 0.20 145.25 0.20
GST Recoverable on goods in transit 662.23 - 423.96 -
Other assets 7.70 - 10.58 -
Total other assets 2,577.02 1.395.25 910.30 421.35

9 Inventories As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value

Raw materials* 3,155.88 2,456.58
Work-in-progress 3,721.11 3,481.02
Finished goods** 6,345.71 4,906.17
Packing material 451.61 395.77
Stores and spares inciuding loose tools 1683.31 1.197.41
Total Inventories 15.357.62 12.436,95
*Includes raw material in transit 197.62 74.03
**¥Includes sale of goods in transijt 2,095.61 1,628.63
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11 Cash and cash equivalents As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Balance with Banks
- In current accounts* 216.86 123.73
Cash on hand 5.83 6.45
Total cash and cash equivalents 222.69 130.18
*Includes balance of INR 70.30 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 65.64 lakhs) in unspent CSR expenditure account which is not readily available for use (refer note 31.2).
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of each year.
The Holding Company has und borrowing facilities aggregating to INR 6,808.84 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 11372.66 lakhs ) for future operating activities. This includes INR 1,780.03 Lakbs (31
March 2022: INR 1.474.72 Lakhs) towards sales invoice discounting (refer note 20).
12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Balances with banks: *
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 10.23
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than 12 months 6.67 16.25
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 227.63 -
23430 26.48
Amount disclosed as "Other financial assets” (refer note 6) (219.30) — -
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents — 15,00 26.48
* Margin Money with banks (for guarantees to and g authorities) including accrued interest amounting to INR 234.30 Lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 26.48 Lakhs).
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to other bank balances as at the end of each year.
13 Equity share capital As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number Amount Number Amount
(i) Authorised share capital
Equity shares of face value INR 2 each (31 March 2022: INR 2 each) 225,000,000 4,500.00 225,000,000 4,500.00
225,000.000 4,500.00 225.000.000 4.500.00
(ii) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Equity shares of face value INR 2 each (31 March 2022: INR 2 each) 197,142,600 3,942.85 200,892,600 4,017.85
Total equity share capital 197,142,600 3,942.85 200,892,600 4,017.85
(iii) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity shares - -
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised share capital
At the beginning of the year 225,000.000 4,500.00 225,000,000 4,500.00
As at the end of the vear 225,000,000 4,500.00 225,000.000 4,500.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
At the beginning of the year 200,892,600 4,017.85 203,442,600 4,068.85
Buyback of Shares (refer note {viil below) 13,750.000 1(75.00} (2,550.000) (51.00)
As at the end of the vear 197.142.600 3,942.85 200.892.600 4,017.85
(iv) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having face value of INR 2 per share. All the existing equity sharcs rank pari passu in all respects including but not limited to entitlernent for
dividend, bonus issue and right issue. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Holding Company after settling of all liabilities, in proportion
to their shareholding.
(v) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Holding Comj
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Equity shares of face value INR 2 each Number % of Holdi Number % of Holding
Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathee 81,488,400 41.33% 85,238,400 42.43%
Mrs. Vijay Rathee 63,676,200 32.30% 63,676,200 31.70%
Mr. Prashant Rathee 28,187,999 14.30% 28,188,000 14.03%
Mr. Aman Rathee 23,789.998 12.07% 23.790.000 11.84%
197,142,597 100.00% 200,892,600 100.00%
(vi) Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus and shares issued for consideration other than cash for the period of five periods immediately preceding the reporting date.
Equity shares of face value INR 2 each p— For the vear ended =
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2619 31 March 2018
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalization of reserves
- number of shares - - 152,581,950 - - 42,353,000
(vii) During the year ended 31 March 2023, with the approval of the Board of Directors accorded, the Holding Company offered buyback of 37,50,000 (Thirty seven lakhs fifty thousand only) fully paid-up

eqmty shares of Face Value of INR 2/- (Two only) each at 2 price of INR 240/~ (Two hundred and forty only) per Equity share, on a proportionate basis through the tender offer process. The buyback
was pleted in ber 2022, which resulted in a total cash outflow of INR 9,000.00 Lakhs (excluding tax on buy back). In accordance with the requirement of the Companies Act,

2013 the amount of INR 9,000. OO Lakhs has been adjusted from retained eamnings. Consequent to such buyback, the Holding Company extinguished 37,50,000 equity shares, the paid-up equity share
capital of the Holding Company was reduced by TNR 75 Lakhs and capital redemption reserve of INR 75 Lakhs (representing the nominal value of the shares bought back) has been created out of
retained carnings.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, with the approval of the Board of Directors accorded, the Holding Company offered buyback of 25,50,000 (Twenty five lakhs fifty thousand only) fully paid-up
equity shares of Face Value of INR 2/- (Two only) each at a price of INR 235/- {Two hundred and thirty five only) per Equity share, on a proportionate basis through the tender offer process. The
buyback procedure was completed in September, 2021, which resulted in a total cash outflow of INR 5,992.50 Lakhs (excludmg tax on buy back). In d with the requi of the Comp

Act, 2013, the amount of INR 5,992.50 Lakhs has been adjusted from retained ings.C to such buyback, the Holding Company extinguished 25,50,000 equity shares, the paid-up equity
share capital of the Holding Company was reduced by INR 51 Lakhs and capital redemption reserve of INR 51 Lakhs (representing the nominal value of the shares bought back) has been created out of
retained eamings.
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ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of lidated fi ial staty ts (continued

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

(viii) Equity Shareholding of Promoters

Shares held by prometers at the end of the year* As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Promoter's name Number of % of total shares % Change Number of % of total shares % Change
Shares during the year Shares during the year
Mr. Kuldip Singh Rathee 81,488,400 41.33% -4.40% 85,238,400 42.43% -2.90%
Mrs. Vijay Rathee —— — = 63,676.200 3230% 0.00% 63 676.200 31.70% 0.00%
S ——— 145,164,600 73.63% 148,914,600 74.13%

Promoters for the purpose of this disclosure means promoters as defined under section 2(69) of the Companies Act, 2013,
* As per Annual Retum j.e. Form MGT-7 dated 08 December 2022, filed by the Holding Company with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for the year ended 31 March 2022, there has been a change in

the list of p Basis the ioned Annual Return, Mr. Prashant Rathee and Mr. Aman Rathee are no longer the p s of the Holding Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022.
14  Other equity As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 10.05 10.05
Add/Less: Movement during the year - -
10.05 10.05
Capital redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 59.00 8.00
Add: Additions (refer note 13 {vii)} 75.00 51.00
134.00 59.00
Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 94.05 94.05
Add/Less: Movement during the year - -
94.05 94.05
Retained earnings@
Balance at the beginning of the year 59,009.88 58,041.60
Add: Profit for the year 12,295.00 8,265.86
Add: Other comprehensive income (1.30) 93.19
Less: Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve (refer note 13(vii)) {75.00) (51.00)
Less: Buyback of Shares (tefer note 13(vii)) (8,925.00) (5,941.50)
Less: Income Tax on buyback of shares (2,096.63) (1,396.01)
Less: Expenses for increase in authorised share capital* 111.03) 12.26)
60.195.92 _ 59.009.88
Total other equity — — 60.434.02 = 59.172.98
@This includes balance of INR 118.67 Lakhs (31 March 2022: 119.97 lakhs) arising on account of gain/(loss} booked on remeasurement of post employment benefits obligati through other
comprehensive income.
*This amount represents expenses for the increase in authorised share capital of the Joint Venture and Subsidiary Company during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 respectively.
14.1 Nature and purpose of other equity

- General reserve: This represents appropriation of profit by the Group and is available for distribution of dividend.

- Capital redemption reserve: This represents (i) non-distributable reserve created as per provisions of section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013 on redemption of 0% Non convertible redeemable
preference shares redeemed during the year ended 31 March 2018 (ii) Amount transferred to capital redemption reserve as per provisions of section 68 of the Companies Act, 2013 on Buy back of
equity shares during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

- Securities premium: This represents premium received on issue of sharcs, which can be utilised only in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for specified purposes.

- Retained earnings: This represents the net profits after all distributions and transfers to other reserves.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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15 Borrowings (non-current) As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Secured borrowings
Term loan
From banks (note (i) to (v))

From others (note (vil)

18,868.57
4,313.50

9,978.01
1.999.50

Total borrowings 23,182.07

11.977.51

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (included in note 20) 2,297.40

1,742.56

20.884.67

NNet borrowings (non-current)

10.234.95

Note :- Borrowings taken from Banks and others have been utilised for the purpose for which they were sanctioned and availed.

Interest rates, repayment and other terms of the borrowings:

Term Loans

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

(i) Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited: Term Loan INR 5,000 lakhs, sanctioned and availed by Holding Company, for purchase of Plant and Machinery and
Construction of Building at Plot No.13-14, Sector-5, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon-122050 (Haryana) and was secured by exclusive charge on movable fixed assets
acquired out of this loan. This Loan was also secured by Exclusive charge over immovable property being land and building situated at Plot No.28, Sector-4, Plot
No. 155-156, Sector-5 and Plot No. 13-14, Sector-5, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon (Haryana). The loan was disbursed in January 2019 with a moratorium period of 6
months repayable in 54 monthly instaliments and has been repaid in December 2022 by way of monthly installments. Rate of interest is 3 months MCLR (31
March 2022: 3 months MCLR).

(i} Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited: Working Capital Term Loan INR 2,700 lakhs to Holding Company is sanctioned and availed under Emergency Credit Line
Guarantee Scheme of National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Ltd, (NCGTC) and is secured by way of second hypothecation charge on all existing and
future current assets and movable fixed assets excluding assets exclusively financed by Term lenders and second hypothecation charge on immovable property
being land and building situated at Plot No. 66 & 67, Udyog Vihar, Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana) . The said loan is also secured by second hypothecation charge
on movable fixed assets acquired for Plant situated at Plot No. 13-14, Sector-5, IMT Manesar and second charge over immovable property (Industrial) being
land and building situated at Plot No.28, Sector-4, Plot No, 155-156, Sector-5 and Plot No. 13-14, Sector-5, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon-122050 (Haryana). Out of
sanctioned loan amount , Rs. 2,000 lakhs was disbursed in March 2021 and Rs. 698.84 Lakhs disbursed in Dec. 2021 with a tenor of 5 years with a moratorium
period of 1 year from the date of first disbursement and will be repaid on monthly basis by March 2026. Rate of interest is Repo Rate + <Spread> As at 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

i} Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited: Working Capital Term Loan INR 1,300 lakhs to Holding Company is sanctioned and availed under Emergency Credit Line
G Scheme of National Credit G Trustee Company Ltd. (NCGTC) and is secured by way of second exclusive charge on all existing and future
current assets and movable fixed assets excluding assets exclusively financed by Term lenders and second exclusive charge on moveable fixed assets of the
borrower acquired with the proceeds of working capital term loan (WCTL). This loan is also secured by second charge on immovable property being land and
building situated at Plot No. 66 & 67, Udyog Vihar, Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana), second exclusive charge on immovable property being land and building
situated at Plot No. 13-14, Sector-5, IMT Manesar , second exclusive charge on immovable property being land and building situated at Plot No.28, Sector-4 and
second exclusive charge on immovable property being land and building situated at Plot No. 155-156, Sector-5 , Gurgaon, Haryana. The loan was disbursed in
March 2023 with a tenor of 6 years with a moratorium period of 2 year from the date of first disbursement and will be repaid on monthly basis by March 2029.
Rate of interest is 3 Month MCLR.

(v} Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd.: Term Loan INR 17,400 lakhs sanctioned and availed by Subsidiary Company for the capital expenditure related to plant at Alwar,

Rajasthan and is secured by first and exclusive hypothecation charge on ail existing and future current assets and moveable fixed assets of the Company. The said

loan is also secured by first and exclusive charge on immoveable properties being land and building situated at Plot No- SP4-315, Industrial Area, Karoli. This

loan is also secured by corporate guarantee of Holding Company. The loan is having tenure of maximum 7 years with moraterium of max 6 months from the date
of commercial operations (max moratorium allowed is 2 years from the date of first disbursement). Rate of interest is Repo + 1.80 per annum As at 31 March

2023 and 31 March 2022.

(v} Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd.: Term loan INR 4,000 lakhs sanctioned and availed by Subsidiary Company for the capex related to plant at Bangalore, Karnataka
and is secured by first and exclusive hypoth charge on ble fixed assets financed out of this term loan at Bangalore, Kamataka Plant. This loan is
also secured by corporate guarantee of Holding Company. The loan is having tenure of maximum 66 months including moratorium of maximum 6 months from
the date of first disbursement and will be repaid on quarterly i basis by September 2028. Rate of interest is 3 Month MCLR_

(vi) Bajaj Finance Limited: Term Loan INR 5,500 lakhs to Holding Company is sanctioned and availed by Bajaj Finance Ltd. for reimbursement of expenditure on
plant and machinery, out of which INR 2,000 lakhs was disbursed in March 2022 with a tenor of § years including 1 year moratorium , repayment will be in
monthly installments starting from May 2023 and ending in April 2027. The loan is secured by exclusive charge over plant and machinery reimbursed out of the
said loan. Rate of interest is 7.75% p.a. Further, INR 1,700 lakhs was disbursed in January 2023 with a tenor of 5 years including 1 year moratorium , repayment
will be in monthly installments starting from May 2023 and ending in June 2027. The loan is secured by exclusive charge over plant and machinery reimbursed
out of the said loan. Rate of interest is 8.75% p.a. Further, INR 614 lakhs was disbursed in March 2023 with a tenor of 5 years including 1 year moratorium ,
repayment will be in monthly installments starting from May 2023 and ending in June 2027. The loan is secured by exclusive charge over plant and machinery
reimbursed out of the said lean. Rate of interest is 8.75% p.a. In addition, financial covenants to be maintained during the tenure of the loan are 1) External Debt/
EBIDTA (ED/EBIDTA): not mere than 2x and 2) External Debt/ Tangible net worth ((ED/TNW): not more than 1.25x.

1,767.99

2,118.02 2,698.84

1,300.00 -

12,850.55 5,511.18

2.600.00 -

4,313.50 1,999.50

Total Secured borrowings (Non-Current}

23,182.07 11.9772.51

As at 31 March 2023
Current _ Non-current

721.81 265.18

16  Lease Liabilities

Lease liabiliry {refer note 44)

As at 31 March 2022
Current Non-current

682.31 873.09

Total Lease labilities 721.81 265.18

_s231 #7309

As at 31 March 2023
Current _ Non-current

17  Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity {refer note 17.1)

Provision for coripensated absences

522.16
199.97

2,128.48
436.78

As at 31 March 2022
Non-current

382.84
171.46

1,983.32
420.02

722.13 2.565.26

Total provision

334,30

2.403.34




ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of lidated fi ial stat ts { d
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

17.1 Defined benefit plan and long term employment benefits

A General description:
Gratuity (Defined benefit plan):
Gratuity liability is defincd benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. The gratuity plan is
governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed
year of service. The scheme is unfunded. Actuarial gains or tosses are r ised in other hensive income.

Compensated absence (other long term employee benefits):

The employees of the Group are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Group. The Group treats accumulated Jeave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long term employee

benefit for measurement purposes. Such long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valualion using the projected unit credit method at the year end. The expense related to
d ab: are ised in lidated of profit and loss as employee benefits expense.

P &1

B A reconciliation of the Groups’s defined benefit obligation (DBO) and plan assets, i.e. the gratuity plan, to the amounts presented in the statement of financial position for each of the reporting

periods is presented below:

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Assets and liability (Balance Sheet position)
Present value of obligation 2,650.64 2,366.16
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net liability 2.650.64 2.366.16
€ Expenses recoynised during the vear*
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
In income statement 408,90 410.46
In other comprehensive income (7.17 1126.611
Total expenses recognised during the year 401.73 283.85
* During the year ended 31 March 2023, the exp recognised in the of profit and loss is lower by INR 20.69 Lakhs vis-a-vis the acturial valuation report on account of transfer
of employees within the Group Companies.
D Defined benefit obligation
The details of the Groups’s defined benefits obligations are as follows:
Changes in the present value of obliyation o
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of obligation as at the beginning 2,366.16 2,195.26
Current service cost 269.11 270.06
Interest expense 158.42 140.40
Past service cost, including losses/(gains) on curtailments 2.07 -
Re-measurement or actuarial (gain) / loss arising from: - -
- change in demographic assumptions {22.89) (62.25)
- change in financial assumptions (98.33) (59.74)
- experience adjustments 114.05 (4.62)
Benefits paid — 1137.95/ 1112.95
Present value of oblization as at year end 2.650.64 2,366.16
E Bifurcation of net liabilits -
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current liability 522.16 382,84
Non-current liabililv 212848 1.983.32
Net liabflity = 2.650.64 2.366.16
F  Expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
For the year For the year
ended ended
- 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 269.11 270.06
Net interest cost on the net defined benefit liabili', 158.42 140.40
Exp recognised in the lidated of profit and loss 427.53 410.46
G Other comprehensive income
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial (gains) / losses
- change in demographic assumptions (22.89) (62.25)
- change in financial assumptions (98.33) (59.74)
- expierience variance 114.05 14.62
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income o (7.17) (126.61)
H  Financial assumptions: The principal financial assumyitions used in the valuation are shown in the table below:
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate (per annum) 7.30% 6.70%
Salaly irowth rate |per annum) R 9.00% 9.00%
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ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)

Notes forming part of

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342
(Afl amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

Demographic assumptions
Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Mortality rate (% of [ALM 2012-14) 100.00% 100.00%
Withdrawal rate (all ages) 16.00% 13.00%
These ptions were developed by mar with the assi of independent actuary. Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to market yields of high quality

corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based
on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s historical experience.

J  Sensitivity analysis: Signifi actuarial iptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are di rate, expected salary i and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below
have been d ined based on possible changes of the ptions occurring at the end of the reporting year, while holding ali other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity
analysis is given below:

Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligation ( Base} 2,650.64 2.366.16
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount rate (- / + 1%) 2,792.26 2,521.93 2,523.17 2,226.03
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 5.34% (4.86%) 6.64% (5.92%)
Salary growth rate (- / + 1%) 2,535.82 2,770.77 2,241.95 2,498.57
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity {4.33%) 4.53% (5.25%) 5.60%
Altrition rate (- / + 50% of attrition rate) 2729.64 2609.68 2485.09 2306.05
(% chanye compared to base due to sensitivity 2.98% 11.55%) 5.03% 12.54%)
The change in defined benefit obligation due to 1% i /d in mortality rate, if all other assumptions remain constant is negligible.
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another as some of the iptions may be 1
There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior year.
K The following is expected maturity profile of defined benefit payments in future years:
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Duration of defined benefit p (valued on undi: basis)
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting year) 522.16 382.84
Between 2 and § years 1,457.20 1,090.26
Beyond 5 years 2.151.03 244533
Total expected payments 4.130.39 3.918.43
The weighted average duration of the defined bencfit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years (31 March 2022: 6 years)
18  Other liabilities As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Current  Non-current Current Non-current
Deferred government grant 14.14 - 251.59 -
Advances from customers 1,180.47 - 674.62 -
Statutory dues payable 2,534.83 = 2,699.78 -
Total other liabilities 3,729.44 - 3,625.99 -

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)

Notes forming part of fil ial

CIN: U34300DL1988PL.C030342
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

19 Deferred tax liabilities (net) As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Amount Attributable to:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 3,671.90 3,788.55
Provision for d ab: (160.08) (148.85)
Provision for gratuity (666.44) (595.51)
Provision for bonus (45.36) (64.88)
Other temporary differences 13.91) 17.891
Total deferred tax liabilities (net) 2796.11 2,971.42
19.1 Movement in deferred tax liabilities
Particulars 31 March 2023 . 31 March 2022
Standal Standal Other Standal Standal Other
balance sheet statement of comprehensive bal sheet tat tof comprehensi
profit and loss income profit and loss income
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 3,671.90 (116.65) - 3,788.55 (18.39) -
Provisions
Provision for d ab (160.08) (11.23) - (148.85) 446 -
Provision for gratuity (666.44) (72.73) 1.80 (595.51) (74.88) 31.87
Provision for bonus (45.36) 19.52 - (64.88) (35.52) -
Other liabilities
Others 13.91) 3.98 - 17.8%1 334 -
Total 2.796.11 1177.111 1.80 2,971.42 (120.99) 31.87
Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax credit to consolidated statement of profit and loss account (177.11) (120.99)
Deferred tax credit in other comprehensive income 1.80 31.87
Total (17531} 189.12)
20 Borrowings (Current) As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Loan repayable on demand
Secured
Waorking capital loans (note (i) to (iv)) 5,398.95 476.60
Current maturitics of long term borrowing (refer note 15) 2,297.40 1,742.56
Unsecured
Borrowings on account of sales invoice discounting (refer note 20.1} 3.219.97 3,525.28
Borrowiggs ‘curreng 10,916.32 5,744.44
ilhnihnd
Interest rates and repayment terms of the borrowings:
- As at As at
Working Capital Loan from banks 31 March2023 31 March 2022
(i) HDFC Bank Limited: Working Capital facility secured by first pari passu charge on current assets and movable fixed assets of the Holding Company both 1,839.19 216.76
present and future excluding assets exclusively financed by term lenders. The said loan is also secured by first pari passu charge on immovable property being
land and building at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana). In addition, financial covenants to be maintained during the tenure of the loan are
1) Total outside liability/ Tangible net worth (TOL/TNW): less than 1.00x and 2) Current Ratio: more than 1.00x .
(i) Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited: Working capital facility, availed by Holding Company. is secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge on all existing and 804.29 17151
future current assets and all existing and future movable fixed assets excluding assets exclusively financed by term lenders. The said loan is also secured by first
pari pasu mortgage charge on immovable property being land and building situated at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-1, Gurgaon (Haryana).
(i} Axis Bank Limited: Working Capital facility, availed by Holding Company, from Axis Bank Limiled is secured by way of first pari passu hypothecation charge 2,187.46 86.31
on entire current assets and movable fixed assets (excluding assets exclusively financed by term lenders) both present and future of the company. The said loan is
also secured by first pari pasu charge by way of equitable mortgage on immovable property being land and building situated at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar
Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana).
(iv)  Citi Bank N.A. : Working capital facility, availed by Holding Comapny, is secured by First pari passu charge on present and future stocks and book debts and 568.01 2.02
first pari passu charge on all movable fixed assets of the Company except the assets which are exclusively charged to any lender for term loan facility. The said
loan is also secured by way of equitabl on land & building located at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana).
Total Working capital loans from banks 5,398.95 476.60
20.1 Borrowings on account of sales invoice di ing rep) invoices dis d from HDFC Bank Limited. Also, refer note 40 of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes forming part of
CIN; U34300DL1988PLC030342
(AN amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

22 Other financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Current  Non-current Current Non-current
Capital creditors® 2,233.93 - 688.62 -
Interest accrued 130.20 - 47.49 -
Employee related payable 1,375.43 - 1,227.57 -
Security deposit received 118.50 - 117.26 -
Others liabilities 18.39 - 41.67 -
Total other financial liabilities 3.876.45 - 2,122.61 -

* Includes INR NIL (31 March 2022: INR 13.66 Lakhs) payable to related parties.

As at 31 March 2023

22.1_Capital creditors

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 22.2)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total Capital creditors

As at 31 March 2022

381.53 12.88
1.852.40 55.98
2,233.93 68.86

22.2 Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 for Capital creditors
The micro enterprises and small enterprises have been identified by the Group from the available information. According to such identification, the disclosures in respect to Micro, $mall and Medium

Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is as follows:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

(i) Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to

any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

- principal amount 381.53
- interest amount Nil
(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the Nil
appointed day during each accounting year;
(iii) 'The amount of interest due and payable for the year (where the principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid); Nil
(iv)  The amount of interest accrucd and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil
(v} The amount of turther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are Nil

actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23

As at 31 March 2022

12.88
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

23 Current tax liabilities (net)

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Opening provision for income tax
Provision created during the year

Tax paid during the year

Total current tax liabilities {net)

268.87 106.24
4,853.66 3.187.14
14,841.25) 13,024.51)
28128 268.87

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Auteomotive Private Limited)

Notes forming part of lidated financial stats ts (continued)
CIN: U34300DL1988PL.C030342
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

24 Revenue from operations For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenuc from operations
Sale of products 251,892.35 199,333.94
Sale of services 832.69 295.29
Other operating revenue
Duty drawback and export benefits 203.71 24843
Scrap sales 2,587.91 1.430.69
Total revenue from operations 255,516.66 201,308.35
The revenue from customers (having more than 10% of total revenue) during the year is INR 1,54,465 lakhs (31 March,2022; INR 1,19,294.75 lakhs) anising
from sale of products and services.
Revenue is mainly derived from three customers which account for 34.52% (31 March 2022: 34.22%), 15.57% (31 March 2022: 13.45%) and 10.74% (31
March 2022: 11.71%) of the Holding Company respectively arising from sale of products and services.
Refer note 46 for detailed disclosure.
25 Other income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
Bank deposits 64.71 1.82
Unsecured loans 95.99 95.99
Others 23.53 46.22
Interest income on security deposit measured at fair value 19.80 18.34
Foreign exchange gain (net) 261.58 195.21
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 36.26 2.61
Profit on sale of assets held for sale 6.00 -
Governement grant 284.26 247.45
Rental income 0.56 -
Excess liability / provision written back 138.43 393.11
Miscellaneous income 180.04 116.91
Total other income 1.111.16 1.117.66
26 Cost of material consumed For the year ended For the year ended
31March2023 31 March 2022
Raw material consumed*
At the beginning of year 2,852.35 2,818.90
Add: Purchases during the year 180,613.04 140,414.20
Less: At the end of the vear 3,607.49 2.852.35
Total cost of material consumed 179.857.90 140.380.75
*Includes packing material also.
27  Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress For the year ended Xor the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance
Finished goods 4,906.17 4,464.36
‘Work-in-progress 3.481.02 2.887.41
Total opening balance 8.187.19 7.351.77
Closing Balance
Finished goods 6,345.71 4,906.17
‘Work-in-progress 3,721.11 3.481.02
Total closing balance 10.066.82 8.387.19
Total changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress (1,679.63) (1,035.42)
28 Employee benefits expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 11,894.25 10,476.47
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer note 28.1) 608.24 559.84
Gratuity (refer note 17.1) 408.90 410.46
Compensated absences 88.73 12.83
Staff welfare expenses 936.55 810.61
Total employee benefits expense 13,936.67 12,270.21
28.1 Defined contribution plan

The Group has certain defined contribution plans. The contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the prescribed rates of the basic salary
as per the Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The contributions are made to recognised provident fund administered by the
govemment. The obligation of the Group is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

The expense recognised during the year towards the defined contribution plan is INR 569.19 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 519.60 lakhs).

A\

) l
<IN H
|\t\ EW DEL

S




ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of d fi ial (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

29 Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest
Interest expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1,017.55 644.76
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 372 19.90
Interest on lease liability 86.64 129.55
Others
Other borrowine cost 11.09 14.03
Total finance costs 1,119.00 808.24
30 Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 5,273.2% 4,762.20
Amortisation of other intangible assets (refer note 4C) 114.35 148.30
Amortisation of ritht of use assets (refer note 4A) 682.75 680.49
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 6,070.39 5,590.99
31  Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Power and fuet 9,282.04 7,441.00
Cunsumption of stores and spares 5,456.72 4,640.97
Job work charges 4,561.23 3,681.49
Contractual labour charges 12,796.23 11,042.26
Freight and forwarding 3,132.91 2,502.11
Rent expenses 264.10 221.55
Rates and taxes 99.85 44.80
Repair and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 427.95 298.86
- Building 246.08 173.04
- Others 282.86 248.65
Sales and promotion expenses 357.67 102.76
Travelling and conveyance 499.92 290.56
Telephone and communication expenses 54.76 4801
Insurance 252.73 22343
Security expenses 376.73 371.63
Legal and professional expenses 971.17 579.12
Payment to auditor (refer note 31.1) 56.24 40.95
Testing expenses 89.39 78.28
Royalty 229.43 145.06
Provision for doubtful debts 12.12 0.01
Running and maintenance of vehicle 131.88 112.42
Amount written off 20.74 -
Property, plant and equipment discarded 41.13 0.11
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note 31.2) 275.05 313.06
Miscellaneous expenses 311.65 22248
Total other expenses 40,230.58 32,822.61
31.1 Payment to auditor (excluding Goods and Services tax wherever applicable ) For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
As auditor
- Audit fee 49.50 38.00
- Other Services 3.40 1.90
- Out of pocket cxpenses 3.34 1.05
56.24 40.95

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

31.2 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company had constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The CSR Committee has been examining and evaluating suitable proposals for deployment of funds towards CSR initiatives.
During the current year ended 31 March 2023, Holding Company has contributed following sums towards CSR initiatives.

Details of CSR expenditure incurred during the period is outlined below: For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amount required to be spent as per scction 135 of the Act 275.05 313.06
Amount spent during the period on:
(1) Construction/acquisition of an asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 21544 300.63
Shertfall@ 59.61 12.43
©The shortfall amount of INR 59.61 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 12.43 lakhs) forms part of the ongoing projects.
Details of expenditure incurred For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contribution to a Trust ("AHSAAS") promoted by the Holding Company for its CSR activities towards 63.17 24484
promoting healthcare including preventive healthcare, promoting education, empowering women and
other activities as defined under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
Expenditure directly incurred by the Holding Company 152.27 55.79
Total expense incurred by the Holding Company 215.44 300.63
(a) Details of Unspent CSR Expenditure on Ongoing Projects (Section 135(6)) For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
With Holding Company
Opening Balance 12.50 209.85
Unspent amount for the year* 60.00 12.50
Transferred to Separate CSR Unspent A/c 12.50 209.85
Closing Balance 60.00 12.50
In Separate CSR Unspent A/c
Opening Balance 65.64 -
Transferred from Holding Company 12.50 209.85
Amount spent during the year# 7.84 144.21
Closing Balance 70.30 65.64

# This is the amount transferred by the Holding Company to the AHSAAS, actual amount spent by the AHSAAS during the year is INR 6.76 lakhs.
* The Board of the Holding Company during the year under review has approved allocation of INR 60 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 12.50 lakhs) for ongoing

projects.

As per Section 135(6) of the Companies Act 2013, the Holding Company is required to transfer the unspent amount pertaining to ongoing project to a special
account called "Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account" within 30 days from end of respective financial year. In this regard the Holding Company has
transferred INR 60 Lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 12.50 Lakhs) to the special account on 29 April 2023. Out of the amounts deposited in the bank account for
prior period, Holding Company has transferred to AHSAAS INR 7.84 Lakhs ( 31 March 2022: INR 144.21 lakhs).

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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32 Income tax expense

For the year ended
31 March 2023

(i)  Profit and Loss / Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Profit and Loss

Income tax expense

Current year 4.851.05 3,168.18
Prior Years 6.63 (13.97)
Deferred tax (Credit) during the year (refer note 19.1) (177.11) (120.99)
Total 4,680.57 3,033.22
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Deferred tax during the vear (refer note 19.1) 1.80 31.87
Total income tax expense 4.682.37 3,065.09

(ii) Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit before income tax expense 16,975.57 11,299.08
Other Comprehensive income before tax 0.50 125.06
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 25.168% 4,272.54 2,875.23
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 69.22 78.79
Impact of Share of net losses of joint venture 149.97 133.15
Impact of Share of net losses of subsidiary company 96.04 7.05
Tax Provision for earlier year 6.63 (13.97)
Government grant income (71.54) (62.28)
Others 159.51 47.12
Income tax expense 4.682.37 3,065.09

33 Earnings per share

Eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding. The
reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share to the weighted average number of ordinary equity shares

used in the calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows:

Number of Shares For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening 200,892,600 203,442,600
Buyhack of Shares {Refer note 13 (vii}) (3,750.000) 12,550.000)
Closing 197,142.600 200.892.600
Weighted average number of shares For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening 200,892,600 203,442,600
Adjusted buyhack of shares 11.900.6851 11.487.500)
Closing 198,991.915 201.955,100

The numerators and denominators used to calculate the basic and diluted EPS are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company (A) 12,295.00 8,265.86
Numbers of equity shares (in Lakhs) (B) 1,971 2,009
Weighted average number of equity shares (in Lakhs) (C) 1,990 2,020
Nominal value per equity share (refer note 13(iv)) 2.00 2.00
Earnings per equity share (INR) )
Basic and Diluted (D) (D=A/C) 6.18 4.09

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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34 Segment Reporting
The business activity of the Group falls within one operating segment viz. manufacturing of auto components including advanced braking systems, aluminium
lightweighting precision solutions and safety control cables (earlier considered as friction material components; pressure die casted, machined and painted
components; and safety control cables) primarily for automobile industry and substantial sale of the products is within India. The Board of Directors, which has
been identified as being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), evaluates the Group’s performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various
performance indicator of the Group as a single unit. Therefore there is one reportable segment for the Group.
For information about revenue by geography and revenue from major customers, refer note 46A and 24 respectively.

35 Information about interest in Joint Venture

Interest in Joint venture

Principal place of Ownership interest as at Ownership interest as at
business 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 ASK Fras-Le Friction Private Limited India 49% 49%

No. Name

The Holding Company’s interest in joint venture in the jointlv controlled operations as at 31 March 2023 are as follows:

No. Name of joint venture partner Description of Nature of operation
interest
Jointly A joint venture agreement effective from 5 December 2017. The principal activity of the venture is
1 Fras-Le S.A., Brazil controlied the production and marketing of commercial vehicle brake pads and brake linings (also refer note
operation 35.1 below)

35.1 As per joint venture agreement, the scope and value of work of each partner has been clearly defined and accepted by the partners. The Holding Company’s share
in the joint venture company is duly accounted for in the accounts of the Holding Company in accordance with such division of work and therefore does not
require separate disclosure.

No. Name Principal place of . Carrying Amount*
business 7 of Ownership Asat 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
1 ASK Fras-Le Friction Private Limited India 49% 404.06 -

* Quoted price of the investment has not been disclosed as the same is not available, due to the reason that the joint venture is not a listed company.

35.2 Summarised financial information of joint venture

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 416.78 27.80
Other Assets 3,908.18 5.101.19
Total current assets 4,324.96 5,128.99
Total non-current assets 7,604.91 8,370.36
Financial Liabilities (excluding trade payable) 4,484.92 5,152.36
Other Liabilities 2,786.81 2,802.33
Total current liabilities 7,271.73 7,954.69
Total non-current liabilities 3,003.12 5,101.97
Net assets 1,655.02 442.69
Summarised financial performance
For the period ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Loss from operating operations (1,201.56) {1,076.53)
Other comprehensive income 113.61) (3.17)
Total comprehensive income (1,215.17) (1,079.70)
Reconciliation to carrying amount of ASK Fras Le Friction Private Limited
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Net Assets 442.69 1,522.39
Shares issued during the year 2,450.00 -
{Loss) for the year (1,201.56) {1,076.53)
Expenses for increase in Authorised share capital (22.50) -
Other comprehensive income (13.61) 3.17)
Total Net assets 1,655.02 442.69
Less: _Addition in Capital reserve not idered for Group share % (59.27) 159.27)
Closing Net Assets 1,595.75 383.42
Group Share % 49% 49%
Gross value of Investment 781.92 187.88
Less : Elimination of Gain on transfer of assets to joint venture on consolidation (cumulative) 377.86 37741
Add : Addition of Capital during the vear - -
Net Carryving Value of Investment* 404.06 -

*As at 31 March 2022, the share of losses in Joint Venture exceeded its Investment value by INR 189.53 Lakhs, which is adjusted with Loan amount given to the
Joint Venture as per the provisions of IND AS 111 "Joint Arrangements". Accordingly, Net Carrying Value of Investment has been restricted to NIL for the year
ended 31 March 2022. (Refer note 5 and 5A).
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In respect of Joint Venture - During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Joint Venture Company has incurred losses of INR 1,201.56 lakhs
and INR 1,076.53 lakhs respectively. The losses are expected to continue in the near future. Due to continued losses, the net worth of the Joint Venture Company
has been substantially eroded. Further, the Joint Venture Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by INR 2,946.77 lakhs as at 31 March 2023 (31
March 2022: INR 2,825.70 lakhs) and key ratios are adverse. The Joint Venture Company is significantly dependent on funding to carry out its operations. These
facts indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Joint Venture Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
However, the Joint Venture Company has obtained a letter of continued financial support from the joint venture partners for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022 for its future operations and continues to benefit from the established market position of its JV partners. Further, during the year, the JV partners have
infused further equity of INR 2,450.00 lakhs. Accordingly, the financial statements of Joint Venture Company have been prepared on a going concern basis.

In respect of wholly owned subsidiary - As on 31 March 2023, the net worth of the Subsidiary Company is INR (394.19) lakhs. This is due to the fact that the
Subsidiary Company has been recently incorporated and is in its initial phase. The Subsidiary Company is in the process of setting up its manufacturing facilities
and accordingly has not fully commenced production during the year. The Subsidiary Company has obtained a letter of continued financial support from its
holding company to meet its short term funding requirements. Further, the Subsidiary Company will benefit significantly for its future operations from the
established market position of its holding company once it comes into full production. Accordingly, the financial statements of Subsidiary Company have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Capital and other commitments*

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) is outlined in the table below:

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Properit. plant and equipment- Capital commitment [ yToss! 4.755.47 1,207.17
Less: Advances paid (1.087.87 (343.801
Property nlant and equipment- Capital commitment (net) 3.667.60 863.37

*The above amount excludes Goods and Services Tax.
Contingent liabilities

Corporate guarantees given to banks on account of facilities granted by banks to joint venture and subsidiary company.

The following is a description of claims and assertions where a potential loss is possible, but not probable. The Holding Company believes that none of the

conti ies described below would have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows:

Description Purpose of guarantee As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
ASK Fras-le Friction Private Limited*  Term Loan and Working capital requirem;n_ 8,350.00 8,350.00
ASK Automobiles Private Limited Term Loan and Working capital requirement 25,400.00 21,400.00
Total 33.750.00 29,750.00

*As co guarantor with Fras-Le S.A., Brazil as per their shareholding in Joint venture company.

Others

Surety bonds executed by the Group in favor of the President of India, under Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme (EPCG) for importing capital goods at
concessional rate of custom duty. Amount of duties and taxes saved of INR 435.80 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 845.82 lakhs), against which there is an unfulfilled
export obligation. Management of the Group is confident of meeting its export obligation within stipulated time.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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38 Financial instruments - Fair values measurement and risk management
A Fair values measurement
(i) Financial instruments - by category

The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, their carrying values and their fair values are sct out below:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Total Carrying value Total Carrying value
. Fair Yalue B Fair Value
Fx:::lalue through Other | Amortised To‘t’z;ll::l i Fair Value through Other | Amortised To‘t’:lhl::l ’
gh . through
Comprehensive Cost Comprehensive Cost
Profit or loss Profit or loss
income income
Financial assets
Loans - 1,066.50 1,066.50 - - 876.97 876.97
Trade receivables - 21,044.43 21,044.43 - - 20,116.05 20,116.05
Cash and cash equivalents - 222,69 222.69 - - 130.18 130.18
Other bank balances - - 15.00 15.00 - - 26.48 26.48
Other deposits - - 219.30 219.30 - - - -
Security deposits - - 1,135.85 1,135.85 - - 946.45 946.45
Other financial assets = - 208.45 208.45 - - 46.20 46.20
Total financial assets - - 23.912.22 23.912.22 - - 22,142.33 22.142.33
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 31,800.99 31,800.99 - - 15,979.39 15,979.39
Lease liability - - 986.99 986.99 - - 1,555.40 1,555.40
Trade payables - - 16,985.19 16,985.19 - - 17,884.22 17,884.22
Capital creditors - - 2,233.93 2,233.93 - - 688.62 688.62
Interest accrued - - 130.20 130.20 - - 47.49 47.49
Employee related payable - - 1,375.43 1,375.43 - - 1,227.57 1,227.57
Security deposit received - - 118.50 118.50 - - 117.26 11726
Others liabilities - - 18.39 18.39 - - 41.67 41.67
Total financial liabilities - - 53.649.62 53.649.62 - - 37.541.62 37.541.62

Investment in joint venture is measured at cost as per Ind AS 27, *Separate financial statements’ and hence, not presented here.

B Financial risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk;
- Liquidity risk;
- Market risk - Foreign exchange;
- Market risk - Interest rate; and
- Comodity price risk
(I} Risk management framework
The Holding Company's board of directors has overall ibility for the establist t and oversight of the Groups’s risk management framework, The board of directors
have authorised senior to establish the p who ensures that executive management controls risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework.
The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risks limits and controls, to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and
standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
(a) Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Financial assets

Loans 1,066.50 876.97
Trade receivables 21,044.43 20,116.05
Cash and cash equivalents 222.69 130.18
Other bank balances 15.00 26.48
Other deposits 219.30 -
Security deposits 1,135.85 946.45
Other financial assets 208.45 46.20
Total financial assets 23,912.22 22.142.33

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Groups’s receivables from customers, loans.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group generally invests in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies.
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from
customers primarily located in India. The Group does monitor the economic environment in which it operates.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of loan and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis througheut
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the group compares the risk of a default occurring on the loan as at the reporting date with

the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It iders availabl blc and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

» actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions thal are expected to cause a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations

« actual or expected significant changes in the operating resuits of the borrower

Credit risk has always been managed by the Group through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which
the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Group uses expected credit loss (ECL) model to assess the
impairment loss or gain. The Group uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes into account
available external and internal credit risk factors such as Groups’s historical experience for customers.
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(i) Expected credit loss for investment carried at amortised cost and other financial assets

As at 31 March 2023 -
Assot gronp Estimated gross carrying pmbf;:;::;:':_ Expected credit Carrying amount net of
amount of default loss impairment provision
default
Loan 1,066.50 0% - 1,066.5¢
Cash and cash equivalents 222.69 0% - 222.69
Other bank balances 15.00 0% - 15.00
Other deposits 219.30 0% - 219.30
Security deposits 1,135.85 0% - 1,135.85
Other financial assets - 208.45 0% - 208.45
As at 31 March 2022
Asset group Estimated gross carrying probfl’;giel;'t:‘ Expected credit Carrying amount n.ef of
amount of default loss impairment provision
default
Loan 876.97 0% - 876.97
Cash and cash equivalents 130.18 0% - 130.18
Other bank balances 26.48 0% - 2648
Security deposits 946.45 0% - 946.45
Other financial assets 46.20 0% - 46.20

The credit risk for investment carried at amortised cost and other financial assels is considered negligible. However, specific provision is made in case a particular receivable is
considered to be non -recoverable.

(ii) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
The Holding Company’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:
Particulars Gross carrying amount
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 21,044.43 20,116.05
Trade receivables - credit impaired 16.03 1139
Total 21,060.46 20,149.44
Less : Loss allowance —— (16.03) N _(33.39)
Carryving amount of trade receivables (net of lass allowance) 21.044.43 20.116.05
The following table summarises the change in the loss allowance:
Loss allowance as on 1 April 2021 46.67
Add/(Less). Loss allowance (net) 113.28)
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2022 33.39
Add/(Less): Loss allowance (net) 117.36)
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2023 16.03
(b) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk mar implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adeq amount of itted credit

facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group takes into account the
liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Groups’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering
the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheel liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing
plans.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
As at 31 March 2023 Contractual cash flows

frmonths or 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 Total
i o less years
Financial liabilities - borrowings* 10,238.40 2,555.66 6,151.88 15,480.01 3,193.76 37,619.7t
Lease liabilities 382.25 384.15 141.41 152.13 - 1,059.94
Trade payables 16,985.19 - - - 16,985.19
Other financial liabilities 3.876.45 - - - 3,876.45
Total 31.482.29 2.939.81 6,293.29 15,632.14 3,193.76 59.541.29
As at 31 March 2022 Contractual cash flows

6 months or 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 Total

less years

Financial liabilities - borrowings* 5,220.94 1,201.97 2,497.92 6,128.64 3,170.73 18,220.20
Lease liabilities 369.53 365.17 736.27 11232 - 1,583.29
Trade payables 17.884.22 - - - - 17,884.22
Other financial liabilities 2,122.61 . . - . 2.122.61
Total 25.597.30 1.567.14 3.234.19 6.240.96 3.170.73 39.810.32

*Amortised amount of upfront fees/charges paid at the time of sanction/disbursement of loan in the above outstanding is INR 0.5 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 1.56 lakhs) .This
amount further includes future undiscounted cash flows for interest on term loans INR 5818.22 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 2239.24 lakhs).
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{c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: currency
risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Holding Company is exposed to the
effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. Exposure arises primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations
between the functional currency and other currencies from the Holding Company’s operating, investing and financing activities.

Exposure to currency risk

The summary of quantitative data about the Holding Company's unhedged exposure to currency risk, as expressed in INR :
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2023
Amount in foreign currency Exchange rate Amount in INR
Usp EURO JPY USD EURO JPY USD EURO JPY
Financial assets
Trade receivables 20.88 0.00 - 82.22 89.61 0.62 1,716.41 0.13 -
20.88 0.00 - 1,716.41 0.13 -
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 0.30 - 154.41 82.22 89.61 0.62 24.67 95.43
0.30 - 154.41 24.67 - 95.43
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2022
Amount in foreign currency Exchange rate Amount in INR
USD EURO JPY USD EURO JPY USD EURO JPY
Financial assets
Trade receivables 23.88 - — 75.81 84.66 0.62 1,810.27 - -
23.88 - - 1.810.27 - -

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 1.97 - 118.72 75.81 84.66 0.62 149.26 - 73.88
Capital creditor

1.97 - 118.72 149.26 - 73.88

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at 31 March 2023 would have affected the measurement of financial instruments
denominated in functional currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is performed on foreign currency denominated monetary
financial assets and financial liabilities outstanding as at the year end. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any
impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
USD sensitivity*

INR/USD- increase by 8.46% (as at 31 March 2022 3.13%) 143.12 51.99
INR/USD- decrease by 8.46% (as at 31 March 2022 3.13%) (143.12) (51.99)
EURO sensitivity*

INR/EURO- increase by 5.84% (as at 31 March 2022 1.67%) 0.01 0.00
INR/EURO- decrease by 5.84% (as at 31 March 2022 1.67%) (0.01) (0-00)
JPY sensitivity*

INR/JPY - increase by 0.69% (as at 31 March 2022 6.22%) (0.66) (4.60)
INR/JPY- decrease by 0.69% (as at 31 March 2022 6.22%) 0.66 4.60

* Holding all other variables constant
Note- We have considered change in

=

id rate by the difference in closing and opening rate.

(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s main interest rate risk
arises from long-term borrowings and short term borrowings with variable rates.
Interest rate risk exposure

The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes
as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Variable rate borrowing 20,093.62 9,952.04
Weighted average interest rate 7.48% 6.75%
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Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular forcign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Interest sensitivity*
Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (100 bps) (200.94) (99.52)
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points (100 bps) 200.94 99.52

* Holding all other variables constant

Comaodity price risk

Fluctuation in commodity price in market affects directly or indirectly the price of raw material and components used by the Group. The Group sells its products mainly to
Original Equipment Manufacturers for whom it is manufacturing auto components. The Group does regular negotiation / adjustment of prices on the basis of changes in
commodity prices.

Capital management

For the purpose of the Holding Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, securities premium reserve and all other equity reserves attributable
to the equity holders of the Holding Company. The primary objective of the management of the Holding Company’s capital structure is to maintain an efficient mix of debt and
equity in order to achieve a low cost of capital, while taking into account the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to pursue business opportunities and adequate aceess fo
liquidity to mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash flows.

The Holding Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in tight of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Holding Company may return capital to shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Holding Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as adjusted net interest-bearing debts divided by total capital.

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Short term borrowings (refer note 20) 10,916.32 5,744.44
Long term borrowings (refer note 15) 20,884.67 10,234.95
Less : Cash and cash equivalent (refer note 11) (222.69) {130.18)
Adjusted net debt A 31,578.30 15,849.21
‘Total capital (refer note 13 and 14) B 64,376.87 63,190.83
Net debt to equity ratio (in times)* A/B 0.49 0.28

* The Group's adjusted net debt has increased by INR 15,729.09 lakhs for capital expenditure and working capital requirement against increase in shareholder's equity by INR
1,186.04 lakhs.

Related party disclosures

Disclosure of related partics/related party transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 “ Related Party Disclosures”

Name of the related parties and nature of the related party relationship:

{i

=

(i)

(i)

Name of the entity Principal place of operation / country of
incorporation
Enterprise in which directors of the Company and
their relatives are able to exercise significant|
influence ("Significant Influence”) with whom
transactions have taken place
A.P.Automotives Private Limited India
AA Friction Materials Private Limited India
Vijaylaxmi Infra Projects Private Limited India
AHSAAS Trust India
Joint Venture
ASK Fras-Le Friction Private Limited India
Name Designation

Key P ] and relatives of key
management personnel ("KMP")
M. Kuldip Singh Rathee Managing Director
Mrs. Vijay Rathee Director
Mr. Prashant Rathee Executive Director
Mr. Aman Rathee Executive Director
MTr. Rajesh Kataria Executive Director
Mr. Kurnaresh Chandra Misra Independent Director (w.e.f. 01 April 2023)
Ms. Deepti Sehgal Independent Director (w.e.f. 01 April 2023)
Mr. Arun Duggal Independent Director (w.e.f. 01 May 2023)
Mr. Yogesh Kapur Independent Director (w.e.f. 01 May 2023)
Mr. Vinay Kumar Piparsania Independent Director (w.e.f. 01 May 2023)
Ms. Rajani Sharma Company Secretary
Mr. Naresh Kumar Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f 28 March 20231
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ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of lid: i

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(continued)

(ANl amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

40 R

41

of pr

ly reported fi

ial information
During the current year ended 31 March 2023, the Holding Company has restated the comparative financial information as at 31 March 2022 due o cl.

ification of certain bal

as further

explained in Note 10.3 and 20.1. The impact of these adjustments as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is not considered to be material to the Group, as there is no impact on Consolidated
statement of profit and loss, net worth or key financial ratios of the Holding Company reported in earlier years. The impact of restatement is detailed below:

* The Group has no CWIP, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

(This space has been intentinally left blank)

A) Impact on line items:
Amount as on Amount as on Amount as on Amount as on
Particulars Notes 31 March 2022 Adjustments 31 March 2022 1 April 2021 Adjustments 1 April 2021
{Reported) {Restated) (Reported) (Restated)
Current assets
Trade receivables Note 10.3 16,590.77| 3,525.28 20,116.05 13,270.41 2,587.88 15,858.29)
Carrent liabilities
Bormrowings Note 20.1 2,219.16 3,525.28| 5,744.44 1,134.53 2.587.88] 372241
B) Impact on Consolidated statement of Cash Flows
. As at " As at
Adjustment:
Particulars 31 March 2022 AUSIIENtS 1 31 Mareh 2022
(Reported) {Restated)
Movement in working capital
Change in trade receivables (3,256.16) (937.40) {4,193.56)
Cash flow from financing activities
Movement of short term borrowings (net) 476.60 937.40 1,414.00
Capital work in progess (CWIP)
CWIP Ageing schedule *
As at 31 March 2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3vears More than 3 vears Total
Project in progress 11,691.53 133.00 - - 11,824.53 -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 11,691.53 133.00 - - 11,824.53
As at 31 March 2022 Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3vears More than 3 vears Total
Project in progress 285.01 - - - 285.01
Projects temporarily suspended - s - -
Total 285.01 - - - 285.01




ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)

Notes forming part of ¢

1543,

CIN: U34300DL1983PLC030342
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

42

d financial st

nts (continued)

Quarterly Statements submitted to Bank
The Holding company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions (Refer note no 20). The Subsidiary Company does not have any working capital limit. hence quarterly
statements is not required to be submitted with the banks and financial institutions.
The periodical statements of current assets* submitted by the Holding company with the banks and financial institutions are in agreement with books of account except as under:
For the vear ended 31 March 2023
Amount as |
. Amount as per| reported in the .
Quarter Name of Bank P“_‘K“la" _Of books of quarterly Difference Reas‘on for ma.terlnl
security provided discrepancies
account return/
statement
June 2022 w* ** 15,485.26 12,102.39 (3,382.87)| e difference is on
account of trade
September 2022 " > 17,193.27 1395428 | (323890 Teceivables discounted
through sales invoice
discounting facility not
*
December 2022 * o 13,237.60 10,682.82 (2,554.78) netted off during
March 2023 e . quarterly closure of
arc] 19,322.96 16,253.39 (3,069.57) books of accounts.
For the v ear ended 31 March 2022
Amount as
. Amount as per| reported in the .
Quarter Name of Bank Par‘tlculars.of books of quarterly Difference Reas_on for ma'tenal
security provided discrepancies
account return/
statement
June 2021 1 L 8,908.89 10,761.89 1.853.00 rr
September 2021 * *k 11,504.50 12,299.28 794.78 | 211
December 2021 *E s 13,918.90 14,072.34 153.94 | —
March 2022 i = 14,674.02 10,933.40 (3,740.62) i

* Current Assets = Inventories + Trade Receivables - Trade Payables

** Name of Bank & Securitv provided

Name of Bank

Particulars of Security provided

HDFC Bank Limited

Working Capital facility secured by first pari passu charge on current assets and movable fixed assets of the company both|
present and future excluding assets exclusively financed by term lenders. The said loan is also secured by first pari passu charge|
on immovable property being land and building at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana).

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

Working capital facility is secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge on all existing and future current assets and all
existing and future movable fixed assets excluding assets exclusively financed by term lenders. The said loan is also secured by,
first pari pasu mortgage charge on immovable property being land and building situated at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-I,
Gurgaon (Haryana),

Axis Bank Limited

Working Capital facility is secured by way of first pari passu hypothecation charge on entire current assets and movable fixed)|
assets (excluding assets exclusively financed by term lenders) both present and future of the company. The said loan is also|
secured by first pari pasu charge by way of equitable mortgage on immovable property being land and building situated at Plot
No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana).

Citi Bank N.A.

Working capital facility is secured by First pari passu charge on present and future stocks and book debts and first pari passul
charge on all movable fixed assets of the Company except the assets which are exclusively charged to any lender for term loan|
facility. The said loan is also secured by way of equitable mortgage on land & building located at Plot No. 66-67, Udyog Vihar|
Phase-I, Gurgaon (Haryana).

*** Reasons for material di

Quarter (’;ror:‘:lssii:l Provisions Dis;::it::b’:";ade Total Remarks

June 2021 1369.05 2269.22 (1,785.27) 1853.00| Quarterly returns filed with the bank were based on

September 2021 1,560.49 2,065.97 (3,731.68) 794.78 provisionfal numl?ers and diff?rence is mainly on account
of goods in transit and provisions and also on account of

December 2021 1,167.97 2462.06 (3,476.09) 153.94| estatement of trade receivables discounted through sales

March 2022 - (215.34) (3,525.28) (3,740.62)| invoice discounting facility.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Prlvne Limited)

Notes

LTI PO Y

forming part of

ol ctat {
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CIN: U34300DL1938PLC030342
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

43 Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instrutions for Preparation of C

Act 2013:
For the s ear ended 31 March 2023

lidated Fi ial St:

to Schedule II to the C.

Net Assets i.e. total asset less total

Shares in profit/{loss)

Share in other comprehensive income |

Share in total comprehensive income

For the vear ended 31 March 2022

Net Assets Le, total asset less total

Shares in profit/(loss)

| Share in other comprehensive income |

liabilities
Name of the Entity | AsToof Amount As ool Amount Vs of otfier Amount As o of tofal Amount
Consolidated Net Consolidated comprehensive comprehensive
Assets __| Profit or (Loss) income income |

Holding Company
ASK Automotive Limited 107.31% 69,081.80 110.61% 13,599.24 {413.67)% 537 | 110.66% 13,604.61
{Formerly known as ASK Automotive
Private Limited)

¥
Indian |
ASK Automobiles Private Limited (0.61)% (394.19) (3.57% (438.94) - - B.5N% (438.94)
Joint Venture*
Indian
ASK Fras-le Friction Private Limited 1.26% 810.96 (4.79)%| (589.21) 513.67% (6.67) (6.85Y% (595.88)
e o arising out of P (7.96)% (5,121.70) (2.25\% (276.09) - (2.25)% (276.09)

]

Total 100.00% 64.376.87 100.00% 12.295.00 100.00% 11.30) 100.00% 12,293.70

Share in total comprebensive income

liabilities
Name of the Entity As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of other Amount | As % of total Amount
Consolidated Net Consolidated comprehensive comprehensive
Assets Profit or (Losy) income income
Holding Company
ASK Automotive Private Limited 105.35% 66,573.82 107.35%, 8,873.07 101.67% 94.74 107.28% 8,967.81
Subsidiary
Indian
ASK Automobiles Private Limited 0.07% 44.75 {034)% (27.99) 0.00% - {0.33)% (27.99)
Joint Venture* |
Indian
ASK Frag-le Friction Private Limited 0.34% 216.92 (6.38)% (527.50) {L67)% (1.55)] {6.33)%! (529.05)
| AdE arising out of - B.IN% (3,644.66) (0.63)% (51.72) 0.00% (0.62)% {51.72)
Total 100.00% 6319083 T100.00% 8.265.86 100.00% 9319 100.00% 8.359.05

*Investment accounted as per equity method

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)

Notes forming part of

d
ed

financial s

ts (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

44 The Group recorded the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and has measured right-of-use

asset at an amount equal to lease liability.

Right of use assets (Net Blocki:
Particulars

Amount
As at 1 April 2021 777.82
Additions 9,152.98
Deletions/Adjustment (371.35)
Amortisation during the year 711.42
As at 31 March 2022 8,848.03
Additions 414.98
Deletions/Adjustment (75.29)
Amortisation during the year 759.29
As at 31 March 2023 8,428.43
Lease liability:
Particulars Amount
As at 1 April 2021 42742
Additions 9,098.02
Deletions/Adjustment 26.68
Finance cost for the year 129.55
Repayment made during the year (including| 8,072.91
Interest)
As at 31 March 2022 1,555.40
Additions 408.59
Deletions/Adjustment 90.81
Finance cost for the year 86.64
Repayment made during the year (including 972.83
Interest)
As at 31 March 2023 986.99

Maturity profile of Lease liability:
Year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars within 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years Above S years Total
Lease payments (Cash} 766.39 25438 39.16 - 1,059.93
Less:- Interest payments 44.58 27.32] 1.04) - 72.94
Lease Principal 721.81 227.06 3812 - 986.99
Year ended 31 March 2022
| Particulars within 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years Above 5 years Total
Lease payments {Cash) 769.82 895.07 19.06 - 1,683.95
Less:- Interest payments 87.51 40.88 0.16 - 128.55
Lease Principal 682.31 854,19 18.90| - 1,555.40)
Following amount has been recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss account:
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amortisation on right of use asset 759.29 71142
(refer note 4A)
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 29) 86.64 129.55
Expenses related to short term leases (included 54.39 33.37
in Rent under other expenses) (refer note 31)
Total amount recognized in lidated 900.32 874.34
statement of profit and loss
45 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 7 "Statement of cash flows"- changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Particulars Non- current Current borrowings  Interest accrued on Total
borrowings (refer note 20) borrowings
(including current (refer note 22)
maturities)
(refer note 15)
Opening balance as at 1 April 2021 5,401.53 2,587.88 24.60 8,014.01
(a) Changes from financing cash flow 6,575.00 1,414.00 (673.19) 7,315.81
(b) Interest charge to consolidated statement of profit and loss - - 664.66 664.66
(c) Amortisation of Bank charges during the year 0.98 - (0.98) -
(d) Interest capitalised to CWIP - - 32.40 32.40
Closing balance as at 31 March 2022 11,977.51 4,001.88 47.49 16,026.88
Opening balance as at 1 April 2022 11,977.51 4,001.88 47.49 16,026.88
(a) Changes from financing cash flow 11,203.50 4,617.05 (1,430.49) 14.390.06
{hY Interest charge to consolidated statement of profit and loss - - 1,021.27 1,021.27
(c) Qmonisation of Bank Charges during the year 1.06 - (1.06) -
(d) Iverest capitalised to CWIP N\ 0) T/ % - - 492.99 492.99
Closiag:balance as at 31 March 2023 RO 23,182.07 8,618.93 130.20 31,931.20




ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Autometive Private Limited)

Notes forming part of lidated financial stat
CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

46 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

A Disaggregation of revenue

ts (continued)

The Group has performed a disaggregated analysis of revenues considering the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues. This includes disclosure of revenues

by geography and timing of recognition.

Revenue from operations Year ended Year ended
P 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
|Revenue by geography
Domestic* 246,615.46 191,538.88
Export* 9,714.00 8,857.09
Total 256,329.46 200,395.97
Adjustment for goods in transit net of opening-:
Domestic (395.64)) (284.42)
Export 1417.16) 1.196.80
Total (812.80) 912.38
Net Revenue from operations 255,516.66 201,308.35
Revenue by time
Revenue recognised at point in time 255,516.66 201,308.35
Revenue recognised over time - -
| Total 255,516.66 201,308.35
" Export benefit has been included in domestic revenue INR 203.71 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 248.43 lakhs )
"Indirect/Deemed exports included in export revenue INR 102.12 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 147.08 lakhs )
B. Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance 674,62 417.94
Add: Net Addition during the year 1,078.85 668.32
Less: Revenue recogised during the year 573.00 411.64
Closing Balance 1,180.47 674.62
C. _Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
Description As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 |
Non-current Current Non-turrent, Current
Contract liabilities related to sale of goods
Advance from customers 1,180.47 - 674.62
D. Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss with Contract price
Year ended Year ended|
Description 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
| Contract price 258,323.02 204,082.60
| Less: Discount, rebates. credits etc. 2,806.36 2774.25
Revenue from operations as per Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 255,516.66 201,308.35

(This space has been intentionally left hlank)




ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Notes forming part of lidated fi ial st (continued)

CIN: U34300DL1988PLC030342

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except otherwise stated)

47 Other disclosures required as per schedule ITI-

(a) The Group has not invested or traded in crypto currency & virtual currency.

(b) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the

intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries): or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or

otherwise) that the Group shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(d) The borrowings obtained by the Group from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.
(¢) The Group has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

(D The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(8 There has not been any proceedings initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Benami transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of

1988) and rules made thereunder.
(h) Relationship with struck off companies

The Group has no transaction/ Balance with companies struck off under section 248 of the companies act, 2013 to the best of the knowledge of company’s management

except below:

Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions Balance ggﬁtstand.ing Relationshi
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Perfect Polvplast India Private Limited Payghles - - Vendor
Absolut Info Systems Private Limited Pavables - - Vendor
Rohit Industries Grougp (P) Ltd. Pavables - 0.86 Vendor

(i) The Group does not have any charges or satisfactions, which is yet to be registered with Registrar of companies, beyond the statutory period prescribed under the

Companies Act 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

() The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Group is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly cxccuted in favour of the lessee),

as disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, are held in the name of the Group except the one disclosed in note 3.4.
(k) The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

(1) The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules

2017

48  Certain amounts {currency value or percentages) shown in various tables and paragraphs included in these consolidated financial stat ts have been rounded off or

truncated as deemed appropriate by the management of the Group.
49 Previous year figures regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current year's classification.
50 No significant subsequent events have occured post the balance sheet date 31 March 2023 which may require an adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

51 Authorisation of financial statements
The Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were approved by the board of directors on 16 May 2023.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ASK Automotive Limited (Formerly known as ASK Automotive Private Limited)
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Partner A CCO\Y}fanaging Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Date: 16 May 2023 Date: 16 May 2023




